# The Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program: Fisheries Research and Development

### Report 2009

August 1, 2009

#### U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Gary Locke Secretary

#### **National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration**

Jane Lubchenco, Ph.D Under Secretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmosphere and NOAA Administrator

#### **National Marine Fisheries Service**

James W. Balsiger, Ph.D., Acting Assistant Administrator for Fisheries Gary Reisner, Director, Office of Management and Budget Leo Erwin, Chief, Financial Services Division

Cover Design: Barbara Comstock, National Marine Fisheries Service, Pascagoula, Mississippi

### The Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program: Fisheries Research and Development

## **REPORT 2009**

August 1, 2009

## **U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE Gary Locke, Secretary**

#### National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

Jane Lubchenco, Ph.D

Under Secretary of Commerce for Oceans and Atmosphere and NOAA Administrator

#### **National Marine Fisheries Service**

James W. Balsiger, Ph.D., Acting Assistant Administrator





#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

I.	INTRODUCTION 4
II.	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5
III.	BACKGROUND 6
IV.	ONGOING GRANT PROGRAM PROJECTS 9 Conservation Engineering 9 Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources 10 Fisheries Socioeconomics 12 Right Whale Gear Entanglement Research 12 Impacts of Reduced Fishing Effort in Gulf of Mexico Fisheries 13 Klamath River Chinook Salmon 13
V.	ONGOING NATIONAL PROGRAM PROJECTS
VI.	COMPLETED GRANT PROGRAM PROJECTS
VII.	COMPLETED NATIONAL PROGRAM PROJECTS

#### LIST OF APPENDICES

I.	NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE OFFICES	17
II.	FY 2009 NOAA OMNIBUS SOLICITATION NOTICE FOR S-K, PUBLISHED IN THE <i>FEDERAL REGISTER</i> ON JULY 11, 2008	19
III.	FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS RECEIVED	55
IV.	FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING	69
V.	FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS NOT RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING	72
VI.	FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS DISQUALIFIED	81

#### I. INTRODUCTION

This Report to Congress on the Saltonstall-Kennedy (S-K) Grant Program, administered by the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), U.S. Department of Commerce, covers fiscal year (FY) 2009. The report contains information on the S-K Program regarding its legislative authority, the application solicitation and grant selection process, recipients, and funding.

A notice was published in the *Federal Register* on July 11, 2008, to solicit applications contingent on the FY 2009 allocation. The application review process was initiated in FY 2009, and the S-K Program had approximately \$29.83 million available for the National Program and the Competitive Grant Program.

Appendix I contains addresses of NMFS Headquarters and Regional Offices from which information regarding the S-K Program may be obtained. Appendix II contains the *Federal Register* notice soliciting applications for the FY 2009 program. Appendix III lists applications received in response to the FY 2009 S-K solicitation. Appendix IV lists applications recommended for funding from the FY 2009 S-K solicitation. Appendix V lists applications not recommended for funding, and Appendix VI lists applications disqualified.

This report is submitted pursuant to the S-K Act, as amended, which requires the following information be submitted annually to Congress:

- 1. The fisheries development goals and funding priorities for a national program of research and development for the next fiscal year (page 6).
- 2. A description of all ongoing fisheries research and development projects (page 9).
- 3. A list of those applications approved and disapproved and the total amount of grants made (page 55).
- 4. A statement of the extent to which available funds were not obligated or expended by the Secretary for grants (page 7).
- 5. An assessment of each project completed in the preceding fiscal year regarding the extent to which objectives of the project were attained and the project contributed to fishery development (page 15).

#### II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

- This annual report is required under the Saltonstall-Kennedy Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. 713c-3).
- The report includes a description of ongoing projects and an assessment of those projects completed since the last report.
- The report covers projects funded under both the Competitive Grant Program and the National Program.
- NMFS conducted a Competitive Grant Program in FY 2009, with \$8.07 million in S-K grants awarded.
- For FY 2010, NMFS plans to conduct a Competitive Grant Program, subject to the availability of Federal allocations.
- Funding priorities reflect NOAA's goal to optimize economic benefits within the context of rebuilding and maintaining sustainable fisheries, and in dealing with the impacts of conservation and management measures.
- NMFS expects to have approximately \$5.3 million available in FY 2010 for the S-K Competitive Grant Program.

#### III. BACKGROUND

The Saltonstall-Kennedy Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. 713c-3), established a fund (known as the S-K fund) that the Secretary of Commerce uses to provide grants or cooperative agreements for fisheries research and development projects. Under this authority, grants and cooperative agreements are made annually on a competitive basis (subject to funding) to assist in carrying out projects related to U.S. commercial and recreational fisheries.

The S-K Grant Program funding priorities are consistent with the goals and objectives of the NOAA and NMFS Strategic Plans and the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act. The objective of the S-K Grant Program is to address the needs of fishing communities (as defined in the Magnuson-Stevens Act) in optimizing economic benefits within the context of rebuilding and maintaining sustainable fisheries, and in dealing with the impacts of conservation and management measures.

Proposals received in response to a solicitation are evaluated for merit by appropriate privateand public-sector experts, and for usefulness by representatives of various fisheries constituencies. Proposals are ranked by their average scores. After proposals have been evaluated and ranked, recommendations for funding are developed and submitted to the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, who determines which projects will be funded.

In addition, 15 U.S.C. 713c-3(d) authorizes the Secretary of Commerce to carry out a National Program to address aspects of U.S. fisheries not adequately addressed by projects assisted under the Competitive Grant Program.

For FY 2010, NMFS plans to conduct both a National Program and a Competitive Grant Program, subject to the availability of federal allocations. Funding priorities reflect NOAA's goal to conserve, protect, manage, and restore living marine resources and coastal and ocean resources critical to public health and the vitality of the U.S. economy. The S-K Program expects to have approximately \$5.3 million available for the Competitive Grant Program in FY 2010, per the President's Budget Request. The Competitive Grant Program will primarily focus on Aquaculture, Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources under Federal or State Management, Fisheries Socioeconomics, and Conservation Engineering.

The S-K program is capitalized through annual transfers by the Secretary of Agriculture to the Secretary of Commerce into the Promote and Develop Fishery Products account of amounts equal to 30 percent of the gross receipts collected under the customs laws on imports of fish and fish products. Table 1 indicates the total duties collected on fishery products; the total receipts in Promote and Develop for FY 2009; the amount transferred to operations, research, and facilities (ORF); and the amount allocated for the S-K Program, including the Competitive Grant Program, the National Program, and program administrative costs, including monitoring of ongoing awards.

Table 1. S-K Funding for FY 2009 (\$ in millions)

Funding Item	Amount	
Total Duties Collected on Fishery Products	\$361.70	
Total Transfer to Promote and Develop account	108.51	
ORF Transfer	<u>(79.00</u> )	
S-K Allocation	29.51	
Carryover <sup>1</sup>	0.32	
Total Available for S-K `Program	29.83	
S-K Program Obligations/Commitments		
FY 2009 Grant Program	8.07	
National Program	20.94	
Program Administration	0.50	
Estimated Unobligated Balance	<u>0.32</u>	
Total	29.83	

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Includes unanticipated prior year recoveries as well as unobligated funds.

Table 2 indicates the recent funding history of the S-K Program.

*Table 2. S-K Funding, 1996–2009 (\$ in millions)* 

Fiscal Year	Total Duties	Total P&D Transfer	ORF Offset	Funds Directed to Non-S-K Activities in Appropriations	Available S-K Program Allocation	S-K Program Allocation as % of Transfer to P&D
				Legislation		
1996	242.98	72.89	63.00		9.89	13.57
1996	242.98	66.38	66.00	-	0.38	0.57
1998	219.11	65.73	62.38	-	3.35	5.10
1999	221.42	66.43	63.38	-	3.05	4.59
2000	233.07	69.92	68.00	-	1.92	2.75
2001	242.76	72.83	68.00	-	4.83	6.73
2002	263.77	79.13	68.00	-	11.13	14.07
2003	250.75	75.22	65.00	10.00	$0.22^2$	0.29
2004	265.75	79.72	62.00	17.00	$0.72^{3}$	0.90
2005	258.46	77.54	65.00	10.00	2.544	3.28
2006	264.28	79.28	67.00	$7.00^{5}$	5.28	6.66
2007	276.05	82.82	79.00	-	3.82	4.61
2008	281.98	84.59	77.00	-	7.59	8.97
2009	361.70	108.51	79.00	-	29.83	27.49

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Another \$10 million was allocated, but directed to the Alaska Fisheries Marketing Board, outside of the S-K Program.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Another \$17 million was allocated, but directed to the Alaska Fisheries Marketing Board, Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation, Inc., South Carolina Seafood Alliance, Oregon Trawl Commission, and Oregon State University Seafood Laboratory, outside of the S-K Program.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Another \$10 million was allocated, but directed to the Alaska Fisheries Marketing Board, outside of the S-K Program.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Allocation directed to Alaska Fisheries Marketing Board, per Public Law 109-108, Section 208.

#### IV. ONGOING GRANT PROGRAM PROJECTS

This section contains a description of all ongoing projects under the S-K Grant Program as of May 31, 2009, along with the name of the grantee, grant number, project title, federal funding level, recipient funding level (i.e., cost share), and the NMFS contact (addresses for whom appear in Appendix I). The projects are listed by grantee within each subject area.

#### **CONSERVATION ENGINEERING**

Grantee: New England Aquarium Corporation, Boston, MA
Grant No.: NA08NMF4270418 NMFS Contact: F/NER

Project Title: The Immediate and Short-Term Post-Release Mortality of Species in the

Northwest Atlantic Skate Complex Captured by Gillnet and Otter Trawl

Funding: Federal: \$222,618 Recipient: \$24,739

Description: The study aims to quantify the species-specific at-vessel and short-term discard mortality rates from trawl and gillnet capture for skates in the Northeast Skate Complex. The analyses will consider not only the impacts of fishing conditions (e.g., season, depth, and seawater and air temperature), but also fishing practices (e.g., tow/soak times, sorting durations/deck-times, and handling protocols (i.e., picking versus non-picking)). In addition to generating data of great interest to management of species in the Complex, this study will expand the limited body of field-oriented stress investigation in elasmobranch fish.

Grantee: Oregon State University, Corvallis, OR

Grant No.: NA08NMF4270423 NMFS Contact: F/NWR

*Project Title:* The Effects of Decompression and the Efficacy of Recompression as a Bycatch

Mortality Reduction Tool for Rockfish

Funding: Federal: \$61,374 Recipient: \$20,243

Description: This study will evaluate the efficacy of using recompression to reduce bycatch mortality in rockfish species. Some fishermen already use recompression devices (weighted barbless hooks, weighted cages) voluntarily to recompress rockfish; however, there is little knowledge available as to the long-term recovery potential of recompressed rockfish. Scientifically, the next step requires an understanding of the physiological basis for decompression and how individual fish respond and recover after recompression.

Grantee: University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH Grant No.: NA08NMF4270417 NMFS Contact: F/NER

Project Title: New Grids to Reduce Small Shrimps and Finfish Bycatch in the Gulf of Maine

Shrimp Fishery

Funding: Federal: \$195,938 Recipient: \$25,750

Description: The objective of the proposed research is to optimize a shrimp size sorting grid and a size/species combination grid to reduce finfish bycatch and small shrimps in the pink shrimp fishery and to facilitate adoption of the technology in the fishery. Specific objectives are: (a) to test two size sorting grids with different grid spacing (9 and 11 mm bar spacing) and two grid angles (35 and 45 degrees) to reduce small shrimps; (b) to test a modified Nordmore grid (rope grid) to reduce finfish bycatch; (c) to test a size and species combination grid using the size sorting grid and the bycatch reduction grid (rope grid) to reduce both finfish bycatch and small shrimps; and (d) to facilitate the adoption of optimal grid designs in the pink shrimp fishery in the Gulf of Maine through workshops, on-site and at-sea demonstrations, and publication in trade magazines.

Grantee: Skagit River System Cooperative, LaConner, WA Grant No.: NA08NMF4270424 NMFS Contact: F/NWR

Project Title: Impact of Hatchery Steelhead Smolt Release Levels on Wild and Hatchery

Steelhead Survival Rates

Funding: Federal: \$189,601 Recipient: \$88,829

Description: Reduce or eliminate adverse interactions between fishing operations and non-targeted, protected, or prohibited species, including the inadvertent take, capture, or destruction of such species. These include juvenile or sublegal-sized fish and shellfish, females of certain crabs, fish listed under the Endangered Species Act (ESA), marine turtles, seabirds, or marine mammals. Improve the survivability of fish discarded or intentionally released and of protected species released in fishing operations.

#### OPTIMUM UTILIZATION OF HARVESTED RESOURCES

Grantee: University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH Grant No.: NA08NMF4270416 NMFS Contact: F/NER

Project Title: Disease Diagnostics and Treatment of Hematopoietic Neoplasia in the Soft-Shell

Clam Mya Arenaria

Funding: Federal: \$133,334 Recipient: \$16,666

Description: The soft-shell clam Mya arenaria is harvested commercially in the United States and has been a reliable source of income for local fisherman. Since the 1980s, the annual harvest has drastically declined and loss of seasonal and full-time jobs has been significant in New England and the Chesapeake Bay area. The situation is particularly severe in New Hampshire, where commercial clam digging has been banned since 1951, although recreational harvesting still occurs. Soft-shell clam hematopoietic neoplasia (leukemia), one of the six most devastating

bivalve diseases, is one of very few marine diseases that has been characterized at the molecular level, yet almost nothing is known about the environmental triggers of this disease.

Grantee: Texas A&M University, Corpus Christi, TX
Grant No.: NA08NMF4270415 NMFS Contact: F/SER

Project Title: Assessing Stock Enhancement Efficacy and the Success of Hatchery-Reared Fish

Using a Combination of Genetics and Otolith Chemistry

Funding: Federal: \$69,791 Recipient: \$44,349

Description: Marine stock enhancement programs have been instituted to offset habitat declines and overfishing, and improve economically important fisheries. Clearly, the efficacy of such programs depends on the survival of hatchery-reared fish and documenting the fate of these hatchery fish is important. Although many resources are spent on stock enhancement, the success of hatchery programs remains controversial. We will apply a combination of techniques to gain insight to the contribution of hatchery fish to wild stocks using spotted seatrout (Cynoscion nebulosus) as a model species.

Grantee: Duke University, Durham, NC

Grant No.: NA08NMF4270413 NMFS Contact: F/SER

Project Title: Genetic Variability and Population Structure of Striped Bass Along the U.S.

Eastern Seaboard

Funding: Federal: \$117,153 Recipient: \$14,466

Description: The analyses described in this proposal will evaluate the degree of striped bass genetic population structure on regional (mid-Atlantic) and local scales (within the Hudson River, the Chesapeake Bay, and among North Carolina and South Carolina rivers). We will also examine temporal genetic variability to ensure that the observed structure is stable over time. Information about population structure is essential for delineating the appropriate geographic scale on which to focus population management and conservation efforts. Assignment testing will also be performed on large migratory fish from coastal Atlantic waters and the mainstem Chesapeake Bay to assess the feasibility of assigning or rejecting individuals to/from populations of origin. This would be a very powerful tool, allowing managers to determine the degree to which stocks mix both on feeding grounds and during migration. We will perform bottleneck analyses to evaluate which (if any) populations have undergone severe declines in effective population size, and make specific estimates of relative effective population size to enable comparisons among populations. Populations that have undergone bottlenecks or show disproportionately small effective population sizes could then become candidates for increased conservation efforts.

#### FISHERIES SOCIOECONOMICS

Grantee: University of Alaska, Fairbanks, AK

Grant No.: NA08NMF4270420 NMFS Contact: F/AKR

Project Title: Fishing for Pollock in a Sea of Change Funding: Federal: \$144,715 Recipient: \$16,079

Description: This project will retrace the evolution of the pollock fishery, model its current economic and institutional structure, and explore the resiliency of that structure to substantive changes in pollock biomass and fuel costs. It will determine the extent to which alternative fishery management strategies, such as sector allocations and Limited Access Privileges (LAPs), affect the likelihood of achieving economic, social, and resource management objectives in the face of ecosystem change and changes in markets.

Grantee: Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation, Inc., Tampa, FL

Grant No.: NA08NMF4270412 NMFS Contact: F/SER

Project Title: Development of Social Indicators for Fishing Communities of the Southeast:

Measures of Dependence, Vulnerability, Resilience, and Gentrification

Funding: Federal: \$240,933 Recipient: \$32,351

*Description:* The purpose of this research is to identify potential threats to the commercial and recreational fishing communities in the South Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico. This research will identify broad areas of concern in a workshop convened to develop a protocol for the construction of social indicators applicable to coastal fishing communities and their evaluation through field research in a few select communities.

#### RIGHT WHALE GEAR ENTANGLEMENT RESEARCH

Grantee: University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH Grant No.: NA08NMF4270419 NMFS Contact: F/NER

Project Title: The Time Tension Line Cutter Evaluation: Fisherman Pilot Study and Controlled

**Experiments** 

Funding: Federal: \$97,744 Recipient: \$24,889

*Description:* The proposed project goal will be to define the operational parameters of the Time Tension Line Cutter (TTLC) for use in the vertical lines of fixed fishing gear. Any mitigation strategy designed to minimize entanglement with North Atlantic right whales must be benign to the whale and easily integrated into the fishing operation. Clarifying these definitions is the essence of this proposal.

#### IMPACTS OF REDUCED FISHING EFFORT IN SHRIMP AND REEF FISH FISHERIES

Grantee: Florida State University, Tallahassee, FL
Grant No.: NA08NMF4270414 NMFS Contact: F/SER

Project Title: Indirect Effects of the Bait Shrimp Fishery on Juvenile Gag Grouper

Funding: Federal: \$76,847 Recipient: \$13,525

Description: The goal of this project is to evaluate the effects of the bait-shrimp fishery on populations of juvenile gag grouper (*Mycteroperca microlepis*). The bait-shrimp fishery operates in shallow seagrass beds and primarily targets penaeid shrimps (especially pink shrimp, *Penaeus duorarum*). The fishery uses rollerframe trawls to capture the shrimp, which are sold to bait houses that supply recreational fishermen. As with other trawl fisheries (e.g., commercial food-shrimp fishery in Gulf of Mexico), rollerframe hauls can include high abundances of both targeted and non-targeted species. Juvenile gag grouper are common and often abundant in the same seagrass habitats in which the bait-shrimp fishery occurs, and survival of gag during this life stage is crucial for the long-term sustainability of their populations.

#### KLAMATH RIVER CHINOOK SALMON

Grantee: California Salmon Council, El Dorado Hills, CA Grant No.: NA08NMF4270421 NMFS Contact: F/SWR

Project Title: Strategies to Minimize Catch of Klamath River Chinook Salmon in West Coast

Mixed Salmon Fisheries

Funding: Federal: \$1,000,000 Recipient: \$216,314

Description: Determine the distribution of Klamath River Chinook and other Chinook stocks in times and areas closed to salmon commercial fishing due to restrictions on ocean harvest of Klamath River fall Chinook and ESA-listed stocks, including some times and areas that have been closed for over 20 years. Provide information that may allow fishery managers to design fisheries that provide greater harvest of strong (abundant) stocks while limiting weak stock impacts to ensure compliance with allowable fishery impacts on weak stocks. A broader third goal is to establish a uniting collaborative process among fishermen, scientists, and fisheries managers on the West Coast by working together to achieve goals and objectives as outlined in this proposal.

#### V. ONGOING NATIONAL PROGRAM PROJECTS

This section contains a description of all ongoing projects under the S-K National Program, along with project number, project title, federal funding level, and the NMFS contact.

#### PRODUCT QUALITY AND SAFETY

Grantee: Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation, Inc., Tampa, Florida

Grant No.: NA03NMF4270393 NMFS Contact: F/SER

Project Title: At-Risk Vibrio vulnificus Educational Program Targeting the Medical/

**Professional Community** 

Funding: Federal: \$1,473,800 Recipient: \$0

Description: To evaluate the success or failure of past at-risk consumer education efforts and to identify and develop appropriate strategies, programs, and educational materials aimed at reducing *V. vulnificus*—related illnesses among the at-risk segment of the population. The target audience is the *V. vulnificus* at-risk segment and the medical and health care professionals who diagnose and provide medical advice to such patients and clients. The core states of Florida, Louisiana, and Texas will be targeted for a multifaceted educational campaign regarding the dangers to at-risk individuals of *V. vulnificus* illness from eating raw oysters. Direct mailing to health care professionals will educate and warn them of symptoms and treatments and the risks of eating raw oysters, and will characterize the at-risk consumer. Radio and television advertisements will be created and a website developed to educate the general public.

#### VI. COMPLETED GRANT PROGRAM PROJECTS

This section contains an assessment of each S-K Grant Program project completed during the period June 1, 2007, through May 31, 2008, regarding the extent to which the objectives of the project were attained and the project contributed to fishery development. The projects are listed by grantee within each subject area, along with the grant number, project title, federal funding level, recipient funding level (i.e., cost share), and the NMFS contact.

#### FISHERIES SOCIOECONOMICS

Grantee: Community Conservation Network, Honolulu, HI Grant No.: NA08NMF4270422 NMFS Contact: F/PIR

Project Title: Fisheries Socioeconomic Monitoring to Improve MPA Management of Helen

Reef, Republic of Palau

Funding: Federal: \$63,431 Recipient: \$8,375

*Description:* This project was unilaterally terminated. No funds were expended, and no work from the statement of work was accomplished. The Community Conservation Network dissolved and is no longer in operation.

#### VII. COMPLETED NATIONAL PROGRAM PROJECTS

This section contains an assessment of each S-K National Program project completed during the period June 1, 2007, through May 31, 2008, regarding the extent to which the objectives of the project were attained and the project contributed to fishery development. The projects are listed by grantee within each subject area, along with the grant number, project title, federal funding level, recipient funding level (i.e., cost share), and the NMFS contact.

#### PRODUCT QUALITY AND SAFETY

Grantee: Wild American Shrimp, Inc., Tarpon Springs, Florida

Grant No.: NA05NMF4271149 NMFS Contact: F/SER Project Title: Wild American Shrimp Certification Program

Funding: Federal: \$1,000,000 Recipient: \$0

Description: A certification program was successfully developed to ensure all shrimp branded as "Wild American Shrimp" meet new quality standards developed in cooperation with the NMFS Seafood Inspection Program. This new certification program and the associated new quality standards were accomplished with assistance from Sea Grant College participants in the southeastern United States. Due to the successful certification marketing program based on premium standards, well-trained in-plant evaluators, and a national consumer education media effort; prices soared during the spring and summer of 2008. The increased demand for premium certified Wild American Shrimp allowed the boats to shrimp and be profitable in spite of record high diesel fuel prices that exceeded \$4.00 per gallon. Not only did demand for certified Wild American Shrimp increase but other wild domestic shrimp prices were pulled along as well, just as all angus beef prices have risen as the certified Angus Beef program has matured. With state-of-the-art premium standards, over 104 trained evaluators, over 80 approved suppliers, and a government-approved Wild American Shrimp certification mark, the American shrimp industry is positioned to be the world leader in wild caught shrimp.

#### **APPENDIX I:** NATIONAL MARINE FISHERIES SERVICE OFFICES

Information regarding the Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program may be obtained from the following offices of the National Marine Fisheries Service:

#### **NMFS Headquarters**

Daniel A. Namur National Marine Fisheries Service Office of Management and Budget 1315 East-West Highway Silver Spring, MD 20910 Telephone: (301) 713-1364 Email: dan.namur@noaa.gov

#### **Northeast Region**

Joyce Lacerda National Marine Fisheries Service State, Federal & Constituent Programs Division One Blackburn Drive Gloucester, MA 01930 Telephone: (978) 281-9256

#### **Southeast Region**

Ellie F. Roche National Marine Fisheries Service Cooperative Programs Division 263 13<sup>th</sup> Avenue, South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 Telephone: (727) 824-5324 Email: ellie.roche@noaa.gov

Email: joyce.lacerda@noaa.gov

#### **Southwest Region**

Trisha Culver National Marine Fisheries Service Fisheries Management Division 501 West Ocean Boulevard, Suite 4200 Long Beach, CA 90808

Telephone: (562) 980-4239 Email: trisha.culver@noaa.gov

#### **Pacific Islands Region**

Scott Bloom National Marine Fisheries Service Fisheries Management Division 1601 Kapiolani Boulevard, Suite 1110 Honolulu, HI 96814-4704 Telephone: (808) 944-2218 Email: scott.bloom@noaa.gov

#### **Northwest Region**

Kevin A. Ford National Marine Fisheries Service Trade and Industry Services Division 7600 Sand Point Way, N.E. BIN C15700, Building 1 Seattle, WA 98115 Telephone: (206) 526-6115 Email: kevin.ford@noaa.gov

#### Alaska Region

Shawn Carey National Marine Fisheries Service Office of Management and Information Federal Building 709 West 9<sup>th</sup> Street, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor Juneau, AK 99801 Telephone: (907) 586-7845

Email: shawn.carey@noaa.gov

APPENDIX II: FY 2009 NOAA OMNIBUS SOLICITATION NOTICE FOR S-K, PUBLISHED IN THE  $FEDERAL\ REGISTER$  ON JULY 11, 2008



Friday, July 11, 2008

#### Part III

## Department of Commerce

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

Availability of Grant Funds for Fiscal Year 2009; Notice

#### DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

[Docket No. 080626787-8788-01]

#### RIN 0648-ZB96

#### Availability of Grant Funds for Fiscal Year 2009

AGENCY: National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Commerce.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) publishes this notice to provide the general public with a consolidated source of program and application information related to its competitive grant and cooperative agreement (CA) award offerings for fiscal year (FY) 2009. This Omnibus notice is designed to replace the multiple Federal Register notices that traditionally advertised the availability of NOAA's discretionary funds for its various programs. It should be noted that additional program initiatives unanticipated at the time of the publication of this notice may be announced through subsequent Federal Register notices. All announcements will also be available through the Grants.gov Web site.

DATES: Proposals must be received by the date and time indicated under each program listing in the SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section of this notice.

ADDRESSES: Proposals must be submitted to the addresses listed in the SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section of this notice for each program. The Federal Register and Full Funding Opportunity (FFO) notices may be found on the Grants.gov Web site. The URL for Grants.gov is http:// www.grants.gov

#### FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Please contact the person listed within this notice as the information contact under each program.

#### SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Applicants must comply with all requirements contained in the Federal Funding Opportunity announcement for each of the programs listed in this omnibus notice. These Federal Funding Opportunities are available at http:// www.grants.gov. The list of entries below describe the basic information and requirements for competitive grant/ cooperative agreement programs offered by NOAA. These programs are open to any applicant who meets the eligibility criteria provided in each entry. To be considered for an award in a

competitive grant/cooperative agreement program, an eligible applicant must submit a complete and responsive application to the appropriate program office. An award is made upon conclusion of the evaluation and selection process for the respective program.

#### **Table of Contents**

I. Background

II. Electronic Access

III. NOAA Project Competitions National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS)

- 1. FY 2009 Monkfish Research Set-Aside
- 2. FY 2009 Sea Scallop Research Set-Aside
- Cooperative Research Program
   FY 2009 B-WET Chesapeake
- 5. FY 2009 Open Rivers Initiative
- 6. FY 2009 Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grants
- 7. FY 2009 Community-based Marine Debris Prevention and Removal Project Grants
- Marine Fisheries Initiative (MARFIN)
   NOAA General Coral Reef Conservation Grants Program
- 10. Projects to Improve or Amend Coral Reef Fishery Management Plans
- 11. Protected Species Cooperative Conservation
- 12. Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program (FY 2009)
- 13. Prescott 2009

- National Ocean Service (NOS) 1. FY 2009 CRCP Coral Reef Ecosystem Monitoring 2. FY 2009 CRCP-Coral Reef Management
- 3. Bay Watershed Education and Training (B-WET) Hawaii Program
- 4. CSCOR FY 2009 NGOMEX and CRES
- 5. FY 2009 California Bay Watershed Education and Training Program
- 6. International Coral
- 7. NOAA's National Height Modernization Program 8. National Coastal and Estuarine Research
- and Technology Program 9. National Estuarine Research Reserve
- Graduate Research Fellowship Program FY 2009
- 10. National Estuarine Research Reserve Land Acquisition and Construction Program FY 2009

Oceanic and Atmospheric Research (OAR)

- 1. Climate Program Office for FY 2009 2. FY 2009 NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Marine Resource Economic
- 3. FY 2009 NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Population Dynamics
- FY 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship Program)
- 5. FY 2009 Joint Hurricane Testbed
- 6. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus— Education
- 7. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus-Marine Archaeology 8. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus—
- Ocean Exploration
- IV. NOAA Project Competitions Listed by NOAA Mission Goals

1. Protect, Restore and Manage the Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources Through Ecosystem-Based Management

Summary Description: Coastal areas are among the most developed in the Nation. More than half the population lives on less than one-fifth of the land in the contiguous United States. Furthermore, employment in near shore areas is growing three times faster than population. Coastal and marine waters support over 28 million jobs and provide a tourism destination for nearly 90 million Americans a year. The value of the ocean economy to the United States is over \$115 billion. The value added annually to the national economy by the commercial and recreational fishing industry alone is over \$48 billion. U.S. aquaculture sales total almost \$1 billion annually. With its Exclusive Economic Zone of 3.4 million square miles, the United States manages the largest marine territory of any nation in the

Funded proposals should help achieve the following outcomes:

• Healthy and productive coastal and

- marine ecosystems that benefit society
   A well-informed public that acts as a steward of coastal and marine ecosystems
- Program Names: 1. FY 2009 CRCP-Coral Reef Management 2. Bay Watershed Education and Training
- (B-WET) Hawaii Program
- 3. Cooperative Research Program 4. Marine Fisheries Initiative (MARFIN) 5. National Estuarine Research Reserve Land Acquisition and Construction Program FY 2009
- 6. National Estuarine Research Reserve Graduate Research Fellowship Program FY 2009
- 7. International Coral 8. CSCOR FY09 NGOMEX and CRES
- 9. FY 2009 California Bay Watershed
- Education and Training Program 10. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus—
- Marine Archaeology 11. FY 2009 Sea Scallop Research Set-Aside
- 12. FY 2009 CRCP Coral Reef Ecosystem Monitoring 13. NOAA's National Height
- Modernization Program FY 2009 Monkfish Research Set-Aside
   Protected Species Cooperative
- Conservation 16. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus—
- Ocean Exploration 17. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus-
- Education
  - 18. FY 2009 B–WET Chesapeake 19. National Coastal and Estuarine
- Research and Technology Program 20. NOAA General Coral Reef Conservation
- Grants Program
- 21. FY 2009 Open Rivers Initiative
- 22. FY 2009 Community-based Marine Debris Prevention and Removal Project
- 23. Projects to Improve or Amend Coral
- Reef Fishery Management Plans 24. FY 2009 Atlantic Salmon Conservation
- Grants
  25. FY 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship Program)

26. FY 2009 NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Population Dynamics

27. FY 2009 NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Marine Resource Economics 28. Prescott 2009

2. Understand Climate Variability and Change To Enhance Society's Ability To Plan and Respond

Summary Description: Climate shapes the environment, natural resources, economies, and social systems that people depend upon worldwide. While humanity has learned to contend with some aspects of climate's natural variability, major climatic events. combined with the stresses of population growth, economic growth, public health concerns, and land-use practices, can impose serious consequences on society. The 1997– 98 El Nino, for example, had a \$25 billion impact on the U.S. economy-property losses were \$2.6 billion and crop losses approached \$2 billion. Long-term drought leads to increased and competing demands for fresh water with related effects on terrestrial and marine ecosystems, agricultural productivity, and even the spread of infectious diseases. Decisions about mitigating climate change also can alter economic and social structures on a global scale. We can deliver reliable climate information in useful ways to help minimize risks and maximize opportunities for decisions in agriculture, public policy, natural resources, water and energy use, and public health. We continue to move toward developing a seamless suite of weather and climate products. The Climate Goal addresses predictions on time scales of up to decades

Funded proposals should help achieve the following outcomes:

- A predictive understanding of the global climate system on time scales of weeks to decades with quantified uncertainties sufficient for making informed and reasoned
- · Climate-sensitive sectors and the climate-literate public effectively incorporating NOAA's climate products into their plans and decisions.
- Program Names: 1. Bay Watershed Education and Training
- (B-WET) Hawaii Program
  2. Climate Program Office for FY 2009
  3. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus-
- Marine Archaeology
  4. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus— Ocean Exploration
- 5. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus—
- 6. FY 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship
- 3. Provide Critical Support for NOAA's

Summary Description: Strong, effective, and efficient support activities are necessary for us to achieve our Mission Goals. Our facilities, ships, aircraft, environmental satellites, data processing systems, computing and communication systems, and our approach to management provide the foundation of support for all of our programs. This critical foundation must adapt to evolving mission needs and, therefore, is an

integral part of our strategic planning. It also must support U.S. homeland security by maintaining continuity of operations and by providing NOAA services, such as civil alert relays through NOAA Weather Radio and air dispersion forecasts, in response to national emergencies. NOAA ships, aircraft, and environmental satellites are the backbone of the global Earth observing system and provide many critical mission support services. To keep this capability strong and current with our Mission Goals, we will ensure that NOAA has adequate access to safe and efficient ships and aircraft through the use of both NOAA platforms and those of other agency, academic, and commercial partners. We will work with academia and partners in the public and private sectors to ensure that future satellite systems are designed, developed, and operated with the latest technology. Leadership development and program support are essential for achieving our Mission Goals. We must also commit to organizational excellence through management and leadership across a 'corporate'' NOAA. We must continue our commitment to valuing NOAA's diverse workforce, including effective workforce planning strategies designed to attract, retain and develop competencies at all levels of our workforce. Through the use of business process to engineering was will citize for process re-engineering, we will strive for state-of-the-art, value-added financial and administrative processes. NOAA will ensure state-of-the-art and secure information technology and systems. By developing longrange, comprehensive facility planning processes, NOAA will be able to ensure rightsized, cost-effective, and safe facilities.

Funded proposals should help achieve the following outcomes:

- A dynamic workforce with competencies that support NOAA's mission today and in the future.
- Program Names
- 1. Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program (FY 2009)
- 2. FY 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship
- 4. Support the Nation's Commerce With Information for Safe, Efficient, and Environmentally Sound Transportation

Summary Description: Safe and efficient transportation systems are crucial to the U.S. economy. The U.S. marine transportation system ships over 95 percent of the tonnage and more than 20 percent by value of foreign trade through U.S. ports, including 48 percent of the oil needed to meet America's energy demands. At least \$4 billion is lost annually due to economic inefficiencies resulting from weather related air-traffic delays. Improved surface weather forecasts and specific user warnings would reduce the 7,000 weather related fatalities and 800,000 injuries that occur annually from crashes on roads and highways. The injuries, loss of life, and property damage from weather-related crashes cost an average of \$42 billion annually. We provide information, services, and products for transportation safety and for increased commerce on roads, rails, and waterways. We will improve the accuracy of our information for marine, aviation, and

surface weather forecasts, the availability of accurate and advanced electronic navigational charts, and the delivery of realtime oceanographic information. We seek to provide consistent, accurate, and timely positioning information that is critical for air, sea, and surface transportation. We will respond to hazardous material spills and provide search and rescue routinely to save lives and money and to protect the coastal environment. We will work with port and coastal communities and with Federal and state partners to ensure that port operations and development proceed efficiently and in an environmentally sound manner. We will work with the Federal Aviation Administration and the private sector to reduce the negative impacts of weather on aviation without compromising safety. Because of increased interest by the public and private sectors, we also will expand weather information for marine and surface transportation to enhance safety and

efficiency.
Funded proposals should help achieve the

- following outcomes:

   Safe, secure, efficient, and seamless movement of goods and people in the U.S.
- transportation system
   Environmentally sound development and use of the U.S. transportation system. Program Names:
- 1. NOAA's National Height Modernization Program
- 2. FY 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship Program)
- 5. Serve Society's Needs for Weather and Water Information

Summary Description: Floods, droughts, hurricanes, tornadoes, tsunamis, wildfires, and other severe weather events cause \$11 billion in damages each year in the United States. Weather is directly linked to public health and safety, and nearly one-third of the U.S. economy (about \$3 trillion) is sensitive to weather and climate. With so much at stake, NOAA's role in understanding, observing, forecasting, and warning of environmental events is expanding. With our partners, we seek to provide decision makers with key observations, analyses, predictions, and warnings for a range of weather and water conditions, including those related to water supply, air quality, space weather, and wildfires. Businesses, governments, and nongovernmental organizations are getting more sophisticated about how to use this weather and water information to improve operational efficiencies, to manage environmental resources, and to create a better quality of life. On average, hurricanes, tornadoes, tsunamis, and other severe weather events cause \$11 billion in damages per year. Weather, including space weather, is directly linked to public safety and about one-third of the U.S. economy (about \$3 trillion) is weather sensitive. With so much at stake, NOAA's role in observing, forecasting, and warning of environmental events is expanding, while economic sectors and its public are becoming increasingly sophisticated at using NOAA's weather, air quality, and water information to improve their operational efficiencies and their

management of environmental resources, and quality of life.

Funded proposals should help achieve the following outcomes:

• Reduced loss of life, injury, and damage

- to the economy

  Better, quicker, and more valuable
- weather and water information to support improved decisions
- Increased customer satisfaction with weather and water information and services Program Names: 1. FY 2009 Joint Hurricane Testbed
- 2. FY 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship Program) V. NOAA Non-competitive Opportunity

#### I. Background

Each of the following grant opportunities provide: A description of the program, funding availability, statutory authority, catalog of federal domestic assistance (CFDA) number, application deadline, address for submitting proposals, information contacts, eligibility requirements, cost sharing requirements, and intergovernmental review under Executive Order 12372.

In addition, this notice announces information related to a non-competitive financial assistance project to be administered by NOAA. This project is titled "NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program—Coral Reef Ecosystem Research Grants". The NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program announces that it is providing funding to the NOAA Undersea Research Program (NURP) Centers for: The Southeastern U.S., Florida, and Gulf of Mexico Region, the Southeast U.S. and Gulf of Mexico Center; and the Hawaii and Western Pacific Region, the Hawaii Undersea Research Laboratory, to administer two external, competitive coral reef ecosystem research grants programs. To receive an award for this project, an eligible applicant must submit a complete and responsive application to the appropriate program office. An award is made upon conclusion of the evaluation process for the prospective project.

#### II. Electronic Access

The FFO for each program is available via the Grants.gov Web site at: http:// www.grants.gov. Electronic applications for the NOAA Programs listed in this announcement may be accessed, downloaded, and submitted to that Web site. The due dates and times for paper and electronic submissions are identical. NOAA strongly recommends that you do not wait until the application deadline to begin the application process through Grants.gov.

Grants.gov

Getting started with Grants.gov is easy. Users should note that there are two key features on the Web site: Find Grant Opportunities and Apply for Grants. The site is designed to support

these two features and your use of them. While you can begin searching for grant opportunities immediately, it is recommended that you complete the steps to Get Started (below) ahead of time. This will help ensure you are ready to go when you find an opportunity for which you would like to

Applications From Individuals

In order for you to apply as an individual, the announcement must specify that the program is open to individuals and it must be published on the Grants.gov Web site. Individuals must register with the Credential Provider (see Step 3 below) and with Grants.gov (see Step 4 below).

Individuals do not need a DUNS number to register (see Step 4 below) and submit their applications. The system will generate a default value in that field.

Grants.gov Application Submission and Receipt Procedures

This section provides the application submission and receipt instructions for NOAA program applications. Please read the following instructions carefully and completely

1. Electronic Delivery. NOAA is participating in the Grants.gov Initiative, which provides the Grant Community a single site to find and apply for grant funding opportunities. NOAA encourages applicants to submit their applications electronically through: http://www.grants.gov/

applicants/apply\_for\_grants.jsp.
2. The following describes what to expect when applying online using Grants.gov/Apply:

a. Instructions. On the site, you will find step-by-step instructions, which enable you to apply for NOAA funds. The Grants.gov/Apply feature includes a simple, unified application process that makes it possible for applicants to apply for grants online. There are six "Get Started" steps to complete at Grants.gov. The information applicants need to understand and execute the steps can be found at: http://www.grants.gov/ applicants/get\_registered.jsp. Applicants should read the Get Started steps carefully. The site also contains registration checklists to help you walk through the process. NOAA recommends that you download the checklists and prepare the information

requested before beginning the registration process. Reviewing and assembling required information before beginning the registration process will make the process fast and smooth and save time.

b. DUNS Requirement. All applicants applying for funding, including renewal funding, must have a Dun and Bradstreet Universal Data Numbering System (DUNS) number. The DUNS number must be included in the data entry field labeled "Organizational Duns" on the form SF-424. Instructions for obtaining a DUNS number can be found at the following Web site: http://www.grants.gov/applicants/ get\_registered.jsp.

c. Central Contractor Registry and Credential Provider Registration. In addition to having a DUNS number, applicants applying electronically through Grants.gov must register with the Federal Central Contractor Registry and with a Credential Provider. The http://www.grants.gov Web site at http://www.grants.gov/applicants/ get\_registered.jsp provides step-by-step instructions for registering in the Central Contractor Registry and for registering with a credential provider. All applicants filing electronically must register with the Central Contractor Registry and receive credentials from the Grants.gov credential provider in order to apply online. Failure to register with the Central Contractor Registry and credential provider will result in your application being rejected by the Grants.gov portal.

The registration process is a separate process from submitting an application. Applicants are, therefore, encouraged to register early. The registration process can take approximately two weeks to be completed. Therefore, registration should be done in sufficient time to ensure it does not impact your ability to meet required submission deadlines. You wilÎ be able to submit your application online any time after you receive your e-authentication credentials.

d. Electronic Signature. Applications submitted through Grants.gov constitute submission as electronically signed applications. The registration and e-authentication process establishes the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR). When you submit the application through Grants.gov, the name of your authorized organization representative on file will be inserted into the signature line of the application. Applicants must register the individual who is able to make legally binding commitments for the applicant organization as the

Authorized Organization Representative.

3. Instructions on how to submit an electronic application to NOAA via Grants.gov/Apply: Grants.gov has a full set of instructions on how to apply for funds on its Web site at http:// www.grants.gov/applicants/ apply for grants.jsp. The following provides simple guidance on what you will find on the Grants.gov/Apply site. Applicants are encouraged to read through the page entitled, "Complete Application Package" before getting started. Grants gov allows applicants to download the application package, instructions and forms that are incorporated in the instructions, and work offline. In addition to forms that are part of the application instructions, there will be a series of electronic forms that are provided utilizing an Adobe

Note: For the Adobe Reader, Grants.gov is only compatible with versions 8.1.1 and above. Please do not use lower versions of the Adobe Reader. Mandatory Fields on Adobe Reader Forms; In the Adobe forms you will note fields that appear with a yellow background and red outline color. These fields are mandatory and must be completed to successfully submit your application.

Completion of SF-424 Fields: The Adobe forms are designed to fill in common required fields such as the applicant name and address, DUNS number, etc., on all Adobe electronic forms. To trigger this feature, an applicant must complete the SF-424 information first. Once it is completed the information will transfer to the other

Customer Support. The Grants.gov Web site provides customer support via (800) 518–4726 (this is a toll-free number) or through e-mail at support@grants.gov. The Contact Center is open from 7 a.m. to 9 p.m. Eastern time, Monday through Friday, except federal holidays, to address Grants.gov technology issues. For technical assistance to program related questions, contact the number listed in the Program Section of the program you are applying for.
4. Timely Receipt Requirements and

Proof of Timely Submission. a. Electronic Submission. All applications must be received by http:// www.grants.gov/applicants/ apply\_for\_grants.jsp the due date established for each program. Proof of timely submission is automatically recorded by Grants.gov. An electronic time stamp is generated within the system when the application is successfully received by Grants.gov. The applicant will receive an acknowledgment of receipt and a

tracking number from Grants.gov with the successful transmission of their application. Applicants should print this receipt and save it, along with facsimile receipts for information provided by facsimile, as proof of timely submission. When NOAA successfully retrieves the application from Grants.gov, Grants.gov will provide an electronic acknowledgment of receipt to the e-mail address of the AOR. Proof of timely submission shall be the date and time that Grants.gov receives your application. Applications received by Grants.gov after the established due date for the program will be considered late and will not be considered for funding

by NOAA. NOAA suggests that applicants submit their applications during the operating hours of the Contact Center for Grants.gov, so that if there are questions concerning transmission, operators will be available to walk you through the process. Submitting your application during the Contact Center hours will also ensure that you have sufficient time for the application to complete its transmission prior to the application deadline. Applicants using dial-up connections should be aware that transmission may take some time before Grants.gov receives it. Grants.gov will provide either an error or a successfully received transmission message. The Grants.gov reports that some applicants abort the transmission because they think that nothing is occurring during the transmission process. Please be patient and give the system time to process the application. Uploading and transmitting many files particularly electronic forms with associated XML schemas will take some time to be processed.

Evaluation Criteria and Selection Procedures

NOAA has standardized the evaluation and selection process for its competitive assistance programs. There are two separate sets of evaluation criteria and selection procedures (see below), one for project proposals, and the other for fellowship, scholarship, and internship programs.

#### Project Proposals

Review and Selection Process. Some project proposals may include a preapplication process that provides for feedback to applicants that responded to a call for letters of intent or preproposals; however, not all programs will include this pre-application. If a program has a pre-application process, it will be described in the Summary Description section of the announcement and the deadline will be

specified in the Application Deadline

Upon receipt of a full application by NOAA, an initial administrative review will be conducted to determine compliance with requirements and completeness of the application. A merit review will also be conducted to

produce a rank order of the proposals.
The NOAA Program Officer may
review the ranking of the proposals and
make recommendations to the Selecting Official based on the administrative and/or merit review(s) and selection factors listed below. The Selecting Official selects proposals after considering the administrative and/or merit review(s) and recommendations of the Program Officer. In making the final selections, the Selecting Official will award in rank order unless the proposal is justified to be selected out of rank order based upon one or more of the selection factors below. The Program Officer and/or Selecting Official may negotiate the funding level of the proposal. The Selecting Official makes final award recommendations to the Grants Officer authorized to obligate the funds.

#### **Evaluation Criteria**

At least three technical reviewers will individually evaluate and rank proposals using the following evaluation criteria:

1. Importance and/or relevance and applicability of a proposed project to the program goals: This ascertains whether there is intrinsic value in the proposed work and/or relevance to NOAA, Federal (other than NOAA), regional,

state, or local activities.
2. Technical/scientific merit: This assesses whether the approach is technically sound and/or innovative, if the methods are appropriate, and whether there are clear project goals and objectives.

3. Overall qualifications of applicants: This ascertains whether the applicant possesses the necessary education, experience, training, facilities, and administrative resources to accomplish

the project.
4. Project costs: The project's budget is evaluated to determine if it is realistic and commensurate with the project

needs and timeframe.
5. Outreach and education: NOAA
assesses whether this project provides a focused and effective education and outreach strategy regarding its mission to protect the Nation's natural resources.

Selection Factors. The merit review ratings will be used to provide a rank order to the Selecting Official for final funding recommendations. A Program Officer may first make

recommendations to the Selecting Official applying the selection factors listed below. The Selecting Official shall award in rank order unless the proposal is justified to be selected out of rank order based upon one or more of the following factors:

- Availability of funding.
   Balance/distribution of funds:
- Geographically,
- b. By type of institutions,
- c. By type of partners,
- d. By research areas, and
- e. By project types. 3. Whether the project duplicates other projects funded or considered for funding by NOAA or other federal
- 4. Program priorities and policy factors
- 5. Applicant's prior award performance
- 6. Partnerships and/or participation of targeted groups.
- Adequacy of information necessary for NOAA to make a National Environmental Policy Act determination and draft necessary documentation before funding recommendations are made to the Grants Officer.

Fellowship, Scholarship and Internship Programs

Review and Selection Process: Some fellowship, scholarship and internship programs may include a pre-application process that provides for feedback to the applicants that have responded to a call for letters of intent or pre-proposals; however, not all programs will include this pre-application. If a program has a pre-application process, the process will be described in the Summary Description section of the announcement and the deadline will be specified in the Application Deadline

Upon receipt of a full application by NOAA, an initial administrative review will be conducted to determine compliance with requirements and completeness of the application. A merit review will also be conducted to produce a rank order of the proposals.

The NOAA Program Officer may review the ranking of the proposals and make recommendations to the Selecting Official based on the administrative and/or merit review(s) and selection factors listed below. The Selecting Official selects proposals after considering the administrative and/or merit review(s) and recommendations of the Program Officer. In making the final selections, the Selecting Official will award in rank order unless the proposal is justified to be selected out of rank order based upon one or more of the selection factors below. The Program

Officer and/or Selecting Official may negotiate the funding level of the proposal. The Selecting Official makes final award recommendations to the Grants Officer authorized to obligate the

#### **Evaluation Criteria**

At least three technical reviewers will individually evaluate and rank proposals using the following evaluation criteria.

- 1. Academic record and statement of career goals and objectives of the
- 2. Quality of project and applicability to program priorities.
  3. Recommendations and/or
- endorsements of the student.
- 4. Additional relevant experience related to diversity of education; extracurricular activities; honors and awards; and interpersonal, written, and oral communications skills
  - 5. Financial need of the student.

#### Selection Factors

The merit review ratings will be used to provide a rank order by the Selecting Official for final funding recommendations. A Program Officer may first make recommendations to the Selecting Official by applying the selection factors listed below. The Selecting Official shall award in the rank order unless the proposal is justified to be selected out of rank order based upon one or more of the following factors:

- Availability of funds.
- Balance/distribution of funds:
- a. Across academic disciplines,
- b. By types of institutions, or

- c. Geographically.
  3. Program-specific objectives.
  4. Degree in scientific area and type of degree sought.

#### III. NOAA Project Competitions

National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS)

1. FY 2009 Monkfish Research Set-Aside

Summary Description: NMFS announces that the New England and Mid-Atlantic Fishery Management Councils (Councils) have set aside 500 monkfish days-at-sea (DAS) to be used for research endeavors under a research set-aside (RSA) program. NMFS is soliciting proposals for research activities concerning the monkfish fishery for fishing year 2009 (May 1, 2009-April 30, 2010). Through the allocation of research DAS, the Monkfish RSA Program provides a mechanism to reduce the cost for vessel owners to participate in cooperative

monkfish research. The intent of this program is for fishing vessels to utilize these research DAS to conduct monkfish related research, rather than their allocated monkfish DAS, thereby eliminating any cost to the vessel associated with using a monkfish DAS. Landings from such research trips may be sold to generate funds to help defray research costs. No Federal funds are provided for research under this notification. Rather, projects funded under the Monkfish RSA Program would be provided with additional opportunity to harvest monkfish, and the catch sold to generate income to offset research costs. Projects funded under an RSA DAS award must enhance the knowledge of the monkfish fishery resource or contribute to the body of information on which management decisions are made. The Councils and NMFS will give priority to funding research proposals in the following general subject areas: (1) Cooperative research to supplement NMFS surveys; (2) life history studies on age and growth, longevity, reproduction, and natural mortality; (3) tagging and telemetry studies to investigate shortand long-term movements and habitat use; (4) research concerning bycatch and discard mortality of target and/or non-target species; (5) trawl and gillnet gear studies concerning size and/or species selectivity and bycatch reduction (including reducing bycatch of and interactions with protected species); and (6) research concerning trophic interactions of monkfish with other species. Please note that the research subject areas listed above are not listed in order of priority. Projects that follow up or expand on previous cooperative research are encouraged and will be given additional consideration, provided such research would enhance the utility of the initial work.

Funding Availability: No Federal funds are provided for research under this notification. Rather, projects selected under the Monkfish RSA Program would be provided with additional opportunity to harvest monkfish, and the catch sold to generate income to offset research costs. The Federal Government (i.e., NMFS) may issue an Exempted Fishing Permit (EFP), if needed, that may provide special fishing privileges in response to research proposals selected under this program. For example, vessels participating in an approved research project may be authorized by the Northeast Regional Administrator, NMFS, to harvest monkfish in excess of established possession limits. This would be the fourth year of the

Monkfish RSA Program. Two awards were issued under the 2006 Monkfish RSA Program, with these projects ending in April 2007. Three awards were issued under the 2007 Monkfish RSA Program, with these projects recently ending April 2007. Four awards have been issued under the 2008 Monkfish RSA program, and these projects are expected to commence in May 2008. A total of 137.5 RSA DAS were issued to projects during FY 2006. A total of 367 RSA DAS were issued to projects for FY 2007. All of the 500 monkfish RSA DAS available thru the Monkfish RSA program have been issued to projects for FY 2009. It is anticipated that 2-5 awards will be made under the 2009 Monkfish RSA Program. Funds generated from landings harvested and sold under the Monkfish RSA Program shall be used to cover the cost of research activities, including vessel costs. For example, the funds may be used to pay for gear modifications, monitoring equipment, the salaries of research personnel, or vessel operation costs. The Federal Government shall not be liable for any costs incurred in the conduct of the project. Specifically, the Federal Government is not liable for any costs incurred by the researcher or vessel owner should the sale of catch not fully reimburse the researcher or vessel owner for his/her expenses. Any additional funds generated through the sale of set-aside landings, above the cost of the research activities, shall be retained by the vessel owner as compensation for the use of his/her vessel.

Statutory Authority: Statutory authority for this program is found under sections 303(b)(11), 402(e), and 404(c) of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act, 16 U.S.C. 1853(b)(11), 16 U.S.C. 1881a(e), and 16 U.S.C. 1881(c), respectively. The ability to set aside monkfish DAS for research purposes was established in the final rule implementing Amendment 2 to the Monkfish Fishery Management Plan (70 FR 21927, April 28, 2005), codified at 50 CFR 648.92(c). Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.454,

Unallied Management Projects.

Application Deadline: Full proposals

must be received by 5 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time, on September 9, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals: To apply for this NOAA Federal funding opportunity, please go to http:// www.grants.gov, and use the following funding opportunity # NMFS-NEFSC 2009-2001478. Applicants without Internet access may contact Cheryl Corbett, NMFS, Northeast Fisheries

Science Center, 166 Water Street, Woods Hole, MA 02543, by phone 508-495-2070, fax 508-495-2004, or e-mail ccorbett@noaa.gov.

Information Contacts: Information may be obtained from Paul Howard, Executive Director, New England Fishery Management Council (NEFMC). by phone 978–465–0492, or by fax 978– 465–3116; Philip Haring, Senior Fishery Analyst, NEFMC, by phone 978–465– 0492, or by e-mail at pharing@nefmc.org; or Cheryl Corbett, NMFS, Northeast Fisheries Science Center, phone 508-495-2070, fax 508-495-2004, or e-mail ccorbett@noaa.gov, or from Ryan Silva, NMFS, Northeast Regional Office, phone (978) 281-9326, fax (978) 281-9135, e-mail ryan.silva@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: 1. Eligible applicants include, but are not limited to, institutions of higher education, hospitals, other nonprofits, commercial organizations, individuals, State, local, and Native American tribal governments. Federal agencies and institutions are not eligible to receive Federal assistance under this notice. Additionally, employees of any Federal agency or Regional Fishery Management Council (Council) are ineligible to submit an application under this program. However, Council members who are not Federal employees may submit an application. 2. DOC/NOAA supports cultural and gender diversity and encourages women and minority individuals and groups to submit applications to the RSA program. In addition, DOC/NOAA is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanic serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that work in underserved areas. DOC/NOAA encourages proposals involving any of encourages proposals involving any of the above institutions. 3. DOC/NOAA encourages applications from members of the fishing community and applications that involve fishing community cooperation and participation.

Cost Sharing Requirements: None required.

Intergovernmental Review: Applicants will need to determine if their State participates in the intergovernmental review process. This information can be found at the following Web site: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html. This information will assist applicants in providing either a Yes or No response to Item 16 of the Application Form, SF-424, entitled 'Application for Federal Assistance."

2. FY 2009 Sea Scallop Research Set-Aside

Summary Description: NMFS requests scallop research proposals to utilize Atlantic sea scallop (scallop) total allowable catch (TAC) and Days-at-Sea (DAS) that have been set-aside by the New England Fishery Management Council (Council) to fund scallop research endeavors through the 2009 Atlantic Sea Scallop Research Set-Aside Program (Scallop RSA Program). NMFS is requesting proposals for research activities for FY 2009. No Federal funds are provided for research under this notification.

Rather, the Scallop RSA Program funds scallop research and compensates participating vessels through the sale of scallops harvested under the research set-aside quota. Priority will be given to scallop research proposals that investigate research priorities identified by the Council and detailed under the Program Priorities section of the FFO.

Funding Availability: No Federal funds are provided for sea scallop research under this notice. Funds are generated through the sale of set-aside scallops. The Federal government will issue Letters of Authorization (LOAs) that provide special fishing privileges in response to sea scallop research proposals selected to participate in the 2009 Scallop RSA Program. Funds generated from RSA landings shall be used to cover the cost of the research activities, including vessel costs, and to compensate vessels for expenses incurred during the collection of set-aside scallops. For example, these funds could be used to pay for gear modifications, monitoring equipment, additional provisions (e.g., fuel, ice, food for scientists) or the salaries of research personnel. The Federal Government is not liable for any costs incurred by the researcher or vessel owner. Any additional funds generated through the sale of set-aside scallops above the cost of the research activities, shall be retained by the vessel owner as compensation for the use of his/her

Statutory Authority: Statutory authority for this program is provided under sections 303(b)(11), 402(e), and 404(c) of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act, 16 U.S.C. 1853(b)(11), 16 U.S.C. 1881a(e), and 16 U.S.C. 1881(c), respectively. The ability to set aside scallop TAC and DAS and to establish parameters are found in the Joint Frameworks (69 FR 63460, November 2, 2004), and Amendment 10 (69 FR 35194, June 23, 2004) and Framework Adjustment 19 (73 FR 30790, May 29, 2008) to the Federal

Atlantic Sea Scallop Fishery Management Plan (May 15, 1982). Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.454, Unallied Management Projects.

Unallied Management Projects.

Application Deadline: Full proposals
must be received by 5 p.m., Eastern
Standard Time, on August 25, 2008.

Standard Time, on August 25, 2008. Address for Submitting Proposals: To apply for this NOAA Federal funding opportunity, please go to http://www.grants.gov, and use the following funding opportunity # NMFS-NEFSC-2009-2001472. Applicants without Internet access may contact Cheryl Corbett, NMFS, Northeast Fisheries Science Center, 166 Water Street, Woods Hole, MA 02543, by phone 508-495-2070, fax 508-495-2004, or e-mail conhett@paga.gov

ccorbett@noaa.gov.
Information Contacts: Information
may be obtained from Deirdre Boelke,
New England Fishery Management
Council, phone (978) 465–0492, fax
(978) 465–3116, or e-mail
dboelke@nefmc.org, from Cheryl
Corbett, NMFS, Northeast Fisheries
Science Center, phone 508–495–2070,
fax 508–495–2004, or e-mail
ccorbett@noaa.gov, or from Ryan Silva,
NMFS, Northeast Regional Office,
phone (978) 281–9326, fax (978) 281–
9135, e-mail ryam\_slyam\_noagov.

9135, e-mail ryan.silva@noaa.gov. Eligibility: 1. Eligible applicants include, but are not limited to, institutions of higher education, hospitals, other nonprofits, commercial organizations, individuals, state, local, and Native American tribal governments. Federal agencies and institutions are not eligible to receive Federal assistance under this notice. Additionally, employees of any Federal agency or Regional Fishery Management Council (Council) are ineligible to submit an application under this program. However, Council members who are not Federal employees may submit an application. 2. DOC/NOAA supports cultural and gender diversity and encourages women and minority individuals and groups to submit applications to the RSA program. In addition, DOC/NOAA is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanic serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that work in underserved areas. DOC/NOAA encourages proposals involving any of the above institutions. 3. DOC/NOAA encourages applications from members of the fishing community and applications that involve fishing community cooperation and

participation.
Cost Sharing Requirements: None

Required.

Intergovernmental Review: Applicants will need to determine if their State participates in the intergovernmental review process. This information can be found at the following Web site: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html. This information will assist applicants in providing either a Yes or No response to Item 16 of the Application Form, SF-424, entitled "Application for Federal Assistance."

#### 3. Cooperative Research Program

Summary Description: The CRP program provides financial assistance for projects that seek to increase and improve the working relationship between researchers from the NMFS state fishery agencies, universities, and fishermen in the Gulf of Mexico and off the South Atlantic states of North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, and Florida involving the U.S. fishing industry (recreational and commercial). The program is a means of involving commercial and recreational fishermen in the collection of fundamental fisheries information. Collection efforts support the development and evaluation of management and regulatory options. This program addresses NOAA's mission goal to "Protect, Restore, and Manage the Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources Through an Ecosystem Approach to Management.

Funding Availability: Approximately \$2.0 million may be available in fiscal year (FY) 2009 for projects. Actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. The NMFS Southeast Regional Office estimates awarding projects that will range from \$25,000 to \$400,000. The average award is \$150,000. Publication of this notice does not obligate NMFS to award any specific grant or cooperative agreement or any of the available funds.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the CRP is provided by the following: 15 U.S.C. 713c-3(d).

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.454, Unallied Management Projects.

Unallied Management Projects.

Application Deadline: Applications must be received by 5 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time on September 9, 2008 to be considered for funding. Applications received after the deadline will be rejected/returned to the sender without further consideration.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: National
Marine Fisheries Service, State/Federal

Liaison Branch, 263 13th Avenue South, St. Petersburg, FL 33701.

Information Contacts: For questions regarding the application process, you may contact: Robert Sadler, State/Federal Liaison Branch, (727) 824–5324, or Robert.Sadler@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants may be institutions of higher education, nonprofits, commercial organizations, individuals, and state, local, and Indian tribal governments. Federal agencies or institutions are not eligible. Foreign governments, organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments, and international organizations are excluded for purposes of this solicitation since the objective of the CRP is to optimize research and development benefits from U.S. marine fishery resources. Applicants who are not commercial or recreational fisherman must have commercial or recreational fishermen participating in their project. There must be a written agreement with a fisherman describing the involvement in the project activity.

Cost Sharing Requirements: Costsharing is not required for this program. Intergovernmental Review:

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications submitted by state and local governments are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a State's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

#### 4. FY 2009 B-WET Chesapeake

Summary Description: The Chesapeake B-WET grant program is a competitively based program that supports existing environmental education programs, fosters the growth of new programs, and encourages the development of partnerships among environmental education programs throughout the entire Chesapeake Bay watershed. Funded projects assist in meeting the Stewardship and Community Engagement goals of the Chesapeake 2000 Agreement. Projects chosen for award under this program support organizations that provide students meaningful watershed educational experiences and teachers related professional development opportunities related to the Chesapeake Bay watershed.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that approximately \$3.5M may be available in FY 2009 in award amounts to be determined by the proposals and available funds. Funding is anticipated to maintain partnerships for up to 3 years duration, but is dependent on funding made available annually by Congress. Project proposals accepted for funding with a project period over one year do not have to compete for the additional years of funding. However, funding for the additional years is contingent upon the availability of funds and satisfactory performance and is at the sole discretion of the agency. 1. Approximately \$2.5M of the \$3.5M available in FY 2009 will be for exemplary programs that successfully integrate teacher professional development on the Chesapeake Bay watershed with indepth classroom study and outdoor experiences for their students. 2. Approximately \$500K of the \$3.5M available in FY 2009 will be for proposals that provide opportunities either for students to participate in MWEEs related to Chesapeake Bay or related Professional Development for teachers. 3. Approximately \$500K of the \$3.5M available in FY 2009 will be for proposals that incorporate CBIBS into meaningful watershed educational experiences for students or related professional development for teachers. The NCBO anticipates that typical awards for B–WET Exemplar Programs that successfully integrate teacher professional development with in-depth classroom student and outdoor experiences for their students will range from \$50,000 to \$200,000. Projects that represent either meaningful watershed educational experiences for students or teacher professional development in watershed education will range from \$25,000 to \$75,000. Projects focusing on the Chesapeake Bay Interpretive Buoy system will range from \$25,000 to \$200,000. Actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in preaward negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds. If applicants incur any costs prior to an award being made, they do so at their own risk of not being reimbursed by the government. Notwithstanding verbal or written assurance that may have been received, there is no obligation on the part of NOAA to cover pre-award costs unless approved by the

Grants Officer as part of the terms when the award is made.

Statutory Authority: Under 33 U.S.C. 893a(a), the Administrator of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration is authorized to conduct, develop, support, promote, and coordinate formal and informal educational activities at all levels to enhance public awareness and understanding of ocean, coastal, Great Lakes, and atmospheric science and stewardship by the general public and other coastal stakeholders, including underrepresented groups in ocean and atmospheric science and policy careers. In conducting those activities, the Administrator shall build upon the educational programs and activities of the seency

the agency.

Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.457,
Chesaneake Bay Studies

Chesapeake Bay Studies.

Application Deadline: Proposals must be received by 5 p.m. eastern time on Friday, October 3, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: Shannon
Sprague, B—WET Program Manager,
NOAA Chesapeake Bay Office, 410
Severn Avenue, Suite 107A, Annapolis,

MD 21403 Information Contacts: Please visit the B-WET Web site for further information at: http://noaa.chesapeakebay.net/ educationgrants.aspx or contact the NOAA Chesapeake Bay Office, 410 Severn Avenue, Suite 107A, Annapolis, MD 21403, or by phone at 410–267– 5660. Potential applicants are also invited to contact the staff before submitting an application to discuss the applicability of partnership ideas to B WET goals and objectives. B-WET contacts are as follows: Virginia/West Virginia: Ann Marie Chapman (annmarie.chapman@noaa.gov—757-627-3823), Maryland's Eastern Shore/ Delaware: Doug Levin (doug.levin@noaa.gov-410-226-5193), Maryland (other than Eastern Shore)/ Washington, DC: Kevin Schabow (kevin.schabow@noaa.gov—410-267-3145), Pennsylvania/New York: Shannon Sprague

5664). Eligibility: Eligible applicants are K-through-12 public and independent schools and school systems, institutions of higher education, community-based and nonprofit organizations, state or local government agencies, interstate agencies, and Indian tribal governments in the Chesapeake Bay watershed. The

(shannon.sprague@noaa.gov—410–267–

Department of Commerce/National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanic serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that work in underserved areas. The NCBO encourages proposals involving any of the above institutions.

the above institutions. Cost Sharing Requirements: No cost sharing is required under this program, however, the NCBO strongly encourages applicants applying for either area of interest to share as much of the costs of the award as possible. Funds from other Federal awards may not be considered matching funds. The nature of the contribution (cash versus in-kind) and the amount of matching funds will be taken into consideration in the review process. Priority selection will be given to proposals that propose cash rather than in-kind contributions.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

#### 5. FY 2009 Open Rivers Initiative

Summary Description: The NOAA Open Rivers Initiative (ORI) provides funding to catalyze the implementation of locally-driven projects to remove dams and other river barriers, in order to benefit living marine and coastal resources, particularly diadromous fish. Projects funded through the Open Rivers Initiative have strong on-theground habitat restoration components that foster economic, educational, and social benefits for citizens and their communities in addition to long-term ecological habitat improvements for NOAA trust resources. Through the ORI, NOAA provides funding and technical assistance for barrier removal projects. Proposals selected for funding through this solicitation will be implemented through a cooperative agreement. Funding of up to \$7,000,000 is expected to be available for ORI Project Grants in FY 2009. The NOAA Restoration Center (RC) within the Office of Habitat Conservation will administer this grant initiative, and anticipates that typical awards will range from \$50,000 to \$250,000. Although a select few may fall outside of this range, project proposals requesting less than \$30,000 or greater than \$1,000,000 will not be accepted or reviewed.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that funding of up to \$7,000,000 is expected to be available for Open Rivers Initiative Project Grants in FY 2009. Actual funding availability

for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. NOAA anticipates that typical project awards will range from \$50,000 to \$250,000; proposals requesting less than \$30,000 or more than \$1,000,000 will not be accepted under this solicitation. NOAA does not guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all proposals. The number of awards to be made as a result of this solicitation will depend on the number of eligible applications received, the amount of funds requested by the applicants, the merit and ranking of the proposals, and the amount of funds made available to the ORI by Congress. NOAA anticipates that between 10 and 20 awards will be made as a result of this solicitation. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in preaward negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Publication of this document does not obligate NOAA to award any specific project or obligate all or any parts of any available funds.

Statutory Authority: The Secretary of Commerce is authorized under the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, 16 U.S.C. 661, as amended by the Reorganization Plan No. 4 of 1970, to provide grants or cooperative agreements for fisheries habitat restoration. The Secretary of Commerce is also authorized under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Reauthorization Act of 2006 (H.R. 5946) to provide funding and technical expertise for fisheries and coastal habitat restoration and to promote significant community support and volunteer participation in such activities.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.463, Habitat Conservation.

Application Deadline: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov by 11:59 p.m. EDT, October 31, 2008. If an applicant does not have Internet access, hard copy applications with the SF-424 Form bearing an original, ink signature must be postmarked, or provided to a delivery service and documented with a receipt, by October 31, 2008. No facsimile or electronic mail applications will be accepted.

accepted. Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: NOAA Restoration Center (F/HC3), Office of Habitat Conservation, NOAA Fisheries, 1315 East-West Highway, Rm. 14718,

Silver Spring, MD 20910. ATTN: Open Rivers Initiative Project Applications.

Information Contacts: For further information contact Tisa Shostik (Tisa. Shostik @noaa.gov) or Melanie Gange (Melanie. Gange @noaa.gov) at (301) 713-0174. Potential applicants are invited to contact NOAA Restoration Center staff before submitting an application to discuss the applicability of project ideas to the goals and objectives of ORI. Additional information on the ORI can be found on the World Wide Web at http://

www.nmfs.noaa.gov/habitat/restoration. Eligibility: Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education, nonprofits, industry and commercial (for profit) organizations, organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments, international organizations, and state, local and Indian tribal governments whose projects have the potential to benefit NOAA trust resources. Applications from federal agencies or employees of federal agencies will not be considered. Federal agencies are strongly encouraged to work with states, nongovernmental organizations, national service clubs or youth corps organizations and others that are eligible to apply. The Department of Commerce/ National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanic-serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that work in under-served areas. The ORI

encourages proposals from or involving any of the above institutions.

Cost Sharing Requirements: A major goal of the ORI will be to provide seed money for projects that leverage funds and other contributions from a broad public and private sector to implement locally important barrier removals to benefit living marine and coastal resources. To this end, applicants are encouraged to demonstrate a 1:1 nonfederal match for ORI funds requested to conduct the proposed project. NOAA strongly encourages applicants to leverage as much investment as possible. Applicants with less than 1:1 match will not be disqualified. However, applicants should note that cost sharing is an element considered in Evaluation Criterion #4 "Project Costs" (Section V.A.4.) in the FFO. Matching funds can come from a variety of public and private sources and can include inkind goods and services and volunteer labor. Applicants are permitted to combine contributions from non-federal partners, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other

funds and are available within the project period stated in the application. Federal sources cannot be considered for matching funds, but can be described in the budget narrative to demonstrate additional leverage. Applicants are also permitted to apply federally negotiated indirect costs in excess of federal share limits as described in Section IV. E. 2. "Indirect Costs" of the FFO. Applicants whose proposals are selected for funding will be bound by the percentage of cost sharing reflected in the award document signed by the NOAA Grants Officer. Successful applicants should be prepared to carefully document matching contributions, including the overall number of volunteers and inkind participation hours devoted to individual barrier removal projects. Letters of commitment for any secured resources that will be used as match for an award under this solicitation should be submitted as an attachment to the application, see Section IV.B of the FFO. Intergovernmental Review:

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this initiative are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a state's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

#### 6. FY 2009 Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grants

Summary Description: NOAA Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grants provide funding to catalyze the implementation of locally driven projects that address priority needs for Atlantic salmon recovery and restoration. Through these grants, NOAA provides funding and technical assistance to support restoration of habitat connectivity and function for the benefit of Atlantic salmon within their current and historical range in New England. Funded projects have strong on-the-ground habitat restoration or protection components that lead to longterm ecological habitat improvements for Atlantic salmon, and also provide educational and social benefits related to Atlantic salmon conservation for citizens and their communities Proposals selected for funding through this solicitation will be implemented

through a cooperative agreement. The Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grants initiative is collaboratively managed by the NOAA Northeast Regional Office and the Office of Habitat Conservation. The NOAA Restoration Center (RC) within the Office of Habitat Conservation will administer the grant competition. Funding of up to \$2,500,000 is expected to be available for Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grants in FY 2009. Typical awards will range from \$50,000 to \$250,000. Although a select few may fall outside of this typical award range, project proposals requesting less than \$30,000 or more than \$500,000 will not be accepted or reviewed.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that funding of up to \$2,500,000 is expected to be available for the Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grants in FY 2009. Actual funding availability for this solicitation is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. NOAA anticipates that typical project awards will range from \$50,000 to \$250,000; proposals requesting less than \$30,000 or more than \$500,000 will not be accepted under this solicitation. NOAA anticipates that between 25 and 40 awards will be made as a result of this solicitation. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Publication of this document does not obligate NOAA to award any specific project or obligate all or any parts of any available funds.

Statutory Authority: The Secretary of Commerce is authorized under the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, 16 U.S.C. 661, as amended by the Reorganization Plan No. 4 of 1970, to provide grants or cooperative agreements for fisheries habitat restoration. The Secretary of Commerce is also authorized under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Reauthorization Act of 2006 (H.R. 5946) to provide funding and technical expertise for fisheries and coastal habitat restoration and to promote significant community support and volunteer participation in such activities.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.463, Habitat Conservation.

Application Deadline: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov by 11:59 p.m. EDT, November 14, 2008. If an applicant does not have Internet access, hard copy applications with the SF-424 Form bearing an original, ink signature must be postmarked, or provided to a delivery

service and documented with a receipt, by November 14, 2008. No facsimile or electronic mail applications will be accepted. Address for Submitting Proposals:

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: NOAA
Restoration Center (F/HC3), Office of
Habitat Conservation, NOAA Fisheries,
1315 East-West Highway, Rm. 14727,
Silver Spring, MD 20910. ATTN:
Atlantic Salmon Conservation Grant
Applications.

Information Contacts: For further information contact Cathy Bozek (Cathy.Bozek@noaa.gov) or Craig Woolcott (Craig.Woolcott@noaa.gov) at (301) 713–0174. Potential applicants are invited to contact NOAA staff before submitting an application to discuss the applicability of project ideas to the goals and objectives of the grant solicitation.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education, other non-profits, industry and commercial (for profit) organizations, organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments, international organizations, and state, local and Indian tribal governments whose projects have the potential to benefit NOAA trust resources. Applications from federal agencies or employees of federal agencies will not be considered. Federal agencies are strongly encouraged to work with states, nongovernmental organizations, national service clubs or youth corps organizations and others that are eligible to apply. The Department of Commerce/ National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanicserving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that work in under-served areas. NOAA encourages proposals from or involving any of the above institutions.

Cost Sharing Requirements: A major goal of this grant solicitation will be to provide seed money for projects that leverage funds and other contributions from a broad segment of the public and private sector to implement locally important habitat restoration projects to benefit Atlantic salmon populations. To this end, applicants are encouraged to demonstrate a 1:1 non-federal match for NOAA funds requested to conduct the proposed project. NOAA strongly encourages applicants to leverage as much investment as possible, but applicants with little or no match will not be disqualified. Applicants should

note that cost sharing is an element considered in Evaluation Criterion #4 "Project Costs" (Section V.A.4.) of the FFO; however matters related to the importance and scientific merits of the proposed project comprise the majority of the evaluation criteria. Match to NOAA funds can come from a variety of public and private sources and can include in-kind goods and services and volunteer labor.

Applicants are permitted to combine

contributions from non-federal partners, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other funds and are available within the project period stated in the application. Federal sources cannot be considered for matching funds, but can be described in the budget narrative to demonstrate additional leverage. Applicants are also permitted to apply federally negotiated indirect costs in excess of federal share limits as described in Section IV.E. "Funding Restrictions" of the FFO. Applicants whose proposals are selected for funding will be bound by the percentage of cost sharing reflected in the award document signed by the NOAA Grants Officer. Successful applicants should be prepared to carefully document matching contributions, including the overall number of volunteers and in-kind participation hours devoted to individual restoration projects. Letters of commitment for any secured resources that will be used as match for an award under this solicitation should be submitted as an attachment to the application, see Section IV.B of the FFO.

application, see Section V.B. of the FPO Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this initiative are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a state's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

7. FY 2009 Community-based Marine Debris Prevention and Removal Project Grants

Summary Description: The NOAA Marine Debris Program (MDP), authorized in the Marine Debris Research, Prevention, and Reduction Act (MDRPR Act, 33 U.S.C. 1951 et seq.), provides funding to catalyze the implementation of locally driven, community-based marine debris prevention, assessment and removal projects that will benefit coastal habitat, waterways, and NOAA trust resources. Projects funded through the MDP have strong on-the-ground habitat components involving the removal of marine debris and derelict fishing gear, as well as activities that provide social benefits for people and their communities in addition to long-term ecological habitat improvements for NOAA trust resources. Through this solicitation the MDP identifies marine debris prevention, assessment and removal projects, strengthens the development and implementation of habitat restoration through the removal of marine debris within communities, and fosters awareness of the effects of marine debris to further the conservation of living marine resource habitats across a wide geographic area. Proposals selected for funding through this solicitation will be implemented through a cooperative agreement. Funding of up to \$2,000,000 is expected to be available for Community-based Marine Debris Prevention and Removal Project Grants in FY 2009. The NOAA MDP anticipates that typical awards will range from \$15,000 to \$150,000.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that funding of up to \$2,000,000 is expected to be available for Community-based Marine Prevention and Removal Project Grants in FY 2009. Actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. The NOAA Restoration Center anticipates that typical project awards will range from \$15,000 to \$150,000; NOAA will not accept proposals for under \$15,000 or proposals for over \$250,000 under this solicitation. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all proposals. The number of awards to be made as a result of this solicitation will depend on the number of eligible applications received, the amount of funds requested for initiating marine debris removal projects by the applicants, the merit and ranking of the proposals, and the amount of funds made available to the MDP by Congress. The NOAA Restoration Center anticipates that between 10 and 25 awards will be made as a result of this solicitation. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Publication of this document does not obligate NOAA to award any specific project or obligate

all or any part of any available funds. In FY 2008, 10 applications were recommended for funding ranging from \$39,000 to \$175,000, for a total grant competition funding level of approximately \$900,000. This is the fourth year of the Community-based Marine Debris Prevention and Removal Project Grants, a grant partnership between the NOAA Marine Debris Program and NOAA Restoration Center. These grants are funded through the NOAA Marine Debris Program with appropriations to the Office of Response and Restoration, National Ocean Service for this purpose. The NOAA Restoration Center will administer this grants program in the same manner that the Community-based Restoration Program is conducted.

Statutory Authority: The Administrator of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration is authorized under the MDRPR Act to provide grants or cooperative agreements to identify, determine sources of, assess, reduce, and prevent marine debris and its adverse impacts on the marine environment and navigation safety.

Catalog of Federal Domestic

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.463, Habitat Conservation.

Application Deadline: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov by 11:59 p.m. EDT, October 31, 2008. If an applicant does not have Internet access, hard copy applications with the SF-424 Form bearing an original, ink signature must be postmarked, or provided to a delivery service and documented with a receipt, by October 31, 2008. No facsimile or electronic mail applications will be accepted.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: NOAA
Restoration Center (F/HC3),
Community-based Restoration Program,
NOAA Fisheries, 1315 East-West
Highway, Rm. 14727, Silver Spring, MD
20910. ATTN: MDP Project
Applications.

Information Contacts: For further information contact David Landsman at 301–713–0174 or by e-mail at David.Landsman@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education, other non-profits, commercial (for profit) organizations, organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments, international organizations, and state, local and Indian tribal governments whose projects have the potential to

benefit NOAA trust resources. Applications from federal agencies or employees of federal agencies will not be considered. Federal agencies are strongly encouraged to work with states. non-governmental organizations, national service clubs or youth corps organizations and others that are eligible to apply. The Department of Commerce/ National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanic serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that work in under-served areas. The MDP encourages proposals involving any of the above institutions.

Cost Sharing Requirements: A major goal of the MDP is to provide seed money to projects that leverage funds and other contributions from a broad segment of the public and private sector to implement locally important marine debris prevention and removal activities to benefit living marine resources. To this end, the MDRPR Act requires applicants to demonstrate a minimum 1:1 non-Federal match for MDP funds requested to conduct the proposed project. In addition to formal match, NOAA strongly encourages applicants to leverage as much investment as possible. However, the MDRPR Act allows the Administrator to waive all or part of the matching requirement if the applicant can demonstrate that: (1) No reasonable means are available through which applicants can meet the matching requirement and (2) the probable benefit of such project outweighs the public interest in such matching requirement. In addition, the MDP may waive any requirement for matching funds by an Insular Area (Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands, and the Government of the Northern Mariana Islands). Under 48 U.S.C. 10.1469a(d.ii.i), any department or agency may waive any requirement for matching funds otherwise required by law to be provided by the Insular Area involved. All applicants should note that cost sharing is an element considered in Evaluation Criterion #4, "Project Costs" of the FFO. Match can come from a variety of public and private sources and can include in-kind goods and services such as private boat use and volunteer labor. Applicants are permitted to combine contributions from non-federal partners, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other funds and are available within the project period stated in the application. Federal sources cannot be

considered for matching funds, but can be described in the budget narrative to demonstrate additional leverage Applicants are permitted to combine contributions from multiple non-federal partners in order to meet the 1:1 match recommendation, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other funds. Applicants are also permitted to apply federally negotiated indirect costs in excess of federal share limits as described in Section IV. E. 2. "Indirect Costs" of the FFO. Applicants should also note that the following activities, in general, will not be considered as match under project awards: (1) Activities that constitute legally required mitigation for the adverse effects of an activity regulated or otherwise governed by local, state or Federal law; (2) activities that constitute restoration for natural resource damages under Federal, state or local law; and (3) activities that are required by a separate consent decree, court order, statute or regulation. However, the MDRPR Act allows the Administrator to authorize, as appropriate, the non-Federal share of the cost of a project to include money paid pursuant to, or the value of any inkind service performed under, an administrative order on consent or judicial consent decree that will remove or prevent marine debris. Applicants whose proposals are selected for funding will be bound by the percentage of cost sharing reflected in the award document signed by the NOAA Grants Officer. Successful applicants should be prepared to carefully document matching contributions, including the names of participating volunteers and the overall number of volunteer or community participation hours devoted to individual marine debris prevention or removal projects. Letters of commitment for any secured resources expected to be used as match for an award should be submitted as an attachment to the application.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications submitted by state and local governments are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a State's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http://

www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

8. Marine Fisheries Initiative (MARFIN)

Summary Description: The National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), Southeast Region, is seeking proposals under the Marine Fisheries Initiative Program (MARFIN), for research and development projects that optimize the use of fisheries in the Gulf of Mexico and off the South Atlantic states of North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, and Florida involving the U.S. fishing industry (recreational and commercial), including fishery biology, resource assessment, socioeconomic assessment, management and conservation, selected harvesting methods, and fish handling and processing. This program addresses NOAA's mission goal to "Protect, Restore, and Manage the Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources Through an Ecosystem Approach to Management."

Ecosystem Approach to Management."
Funding Availability: Approximately \$2.0 million may be available in fiscal year (FY) 2009 for projects. This amount includes possible in-house projects. Actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. The NMFS Southeast Regional Office anticipates awarding projects that will range from \$25,000 to \$300,000. The average award is \$150,000. Publication of this notice does not obligate NMFS to award any specific grant or cooperative agreement or any of the available funds. Project proposals accepted for funding with a project period over one year do not have to compete for the additional years of funding. However, funding for the additional years is contingent upon the availability of funds and satisfactory performance and is at the sole discretion of the agency.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the

Statutory Authority: Authority for the Marine Fisheries Initiative Program is provided by the following: 15 U.S.C. 713c–3fdl.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.433, Marine Fisheries Initiative. Application Deadline: Applications

Application Deadline: Applications must be received by 5 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time on August 11, 2008 to be considered fur funding. Applications received after the deadline will be rejected/returned to the sender without further consideration.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: National
Marine Fisheries Service, State/Federal
Liaison Branch, 263 13th Avenue South,
St. Petersburg, FL 33701.

Information Contacts: For questions regarding the application process, you may contact: Robert Sadler, State/Federal Liaison Branch, (727) 824–5324, or Robert.Sadler@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants may be

Eligibility: Eligible applicants may be institutions of higher education, nonprofits, commercial organizations, individuals, state, local and Indian tribal governments. Federal agencies or institutions are not eligible. Foreign governments, organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments, and international organizations are excluded for purposes of this solicitation since the objective of the MARFIN program is to optimize research and development benefits from U.S. marine fishery resources.

Cost Sharing Requirements: Costsharing is not required for this program.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications submitted by state and local governments are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a State's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

#### NOAA General Coral Reef Conservation Grants Program

Summary Description: The NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Program/ General Coral Reef Conservation Grants Program (GCRCGP) provides funding to institutions of higher education, nonprofit organizations, commercial organizations, Freely Associated State government agencies, and local and Indian tribal governments to support coral reef conservation projects in the United States and the Freely Associated States in the Pacific, as authorized under the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000. Projects funded through the GCRCGP support on-the ground efforts that: (1) Help preserve, sustain and restore the condition of coral reef ecosystems, (2) promote the wise management and sustainable use of coral reef resources, (3) increase public knowledge and awareness of coral reef ecosystems and issues regarding their conservation and (4) develop sound scientific information on the condition of coral reef ecosystems and the threats to such ecosystems. Projects should complement and fill gaps in state,

territorial and commonwealth coral reef programs, emphasize community-based conservation, or address local action strategy priorities.

Proposals selected for funding through this solicitation require a 1:1 match and will be implemented through a grant. Funding of up to \$600,000 is expected to be available for GCRCGP in FY 2009. These funds will be divided approximately equally among the U.S. Pacific and Atlantic to maintain geographic balance, as outlined in the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000. Awards will range from \$15,000-\$50,000.

Funding Availability: NOAA announces the availability of up to \$600,000 of Federal assistance may be available in FY 2009 for the GCRCGP to support financial assistance awards for coral conservation activities. Proposals can be submitted for a minimum of \$15,000 to a maximum of \$50,000; NOAA will not accept proposals requesting over \$50,000 of Federal funds. There is no limit on the number of applications that can be submitted by the same applicant during the 2009 competitive grant cycle. However, multiple applications submitted by the same applicant must clearly identify different projects and must be successful in the competitive review process. The number of awards made as a result of this solicitation will depend on the number of eligible applications received, the amount of funds requested for each project, the merit and ranking of the proposals, and the amount of funds made available to the Program by Congress. In addition, funding will be divided between the U.S. Pacific and U.S. Atlantic to meet requirements for geographic distribution of funds, as described in the Coral Reef Conservation Act. Attempts will also be made to fund one or more projects in each jurisdiction, provided that the project addresses priorities outlined above, it is identified as having sufficient merit, and it meets all other requirements as stipulated in this solicitation. The funds have not yet been appropriated for this program, and there is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds

Statutory Authority: Authority for the NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program is provided by Section 6403 (Coral Reef Conservation Program) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000 (16 U.S.C. 6401 et seq.). Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.463, Habitat Conservation.

Habitat Conservation.

Application Deadline: Proposals must be received by 5 p.m. Eastern Time on November 3, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov. If an applicant does not
have Internet access, hard copy
applications with the SF-424 Form
bearing an original, ink signature must
be postmarked November 3, 2008 and
sent to: Jennifer Koss, NOAA Coral Reef
Conservation Program, NOAA Fisheries,
Office of Habitat Conservation (F/HC),
1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring,
MD 20910. ATTN: CRCGP Project
Applications.

Information Contacts: Technical point of contact for NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program/General Grants is Jennifer Koss, 301–713–3459, extension 195 or E-mail at Jennifer.Koss@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Institutions of higher education, non-profit organizations, commercial organizations, local and Indian tribal governments and Freely Associated State Government Agencies can apply for funding under the GCRCGP. U.S. federal, state, territory, and commonwealth governments and Regional Fishery Management Councils are not eligible for this program. NOAA employees are not allowed to help in the preparation of applications or write letters of support for any application. NOAA staff are available to provide information on programmatic goals and objectives, ongoing coral reef conservation programs, Regional funding priorities, and, along with other Federal Program Officers, can provide information on application procedures and completion of required forms. For activities that involve collaboration with current NOAA programs or staff, NOAA employees must provide a letter verifying that they are collaborating with the project. Federal employee travel and salaries are not allowable

costs under this program.

Cost Sharing Requirements: As per section 6403(b)(1) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, Federal funds for any coral conservation project funded under this Program may not exceed 50 percent of the total cost of the project. All GCRCGP projects submitted to this program require a 1:1 match obtained from non-Federal sources. Applicants must specify in their proposal the source of the match and provide letters of commitment to confirm stated match contributions. The match can include in-kind contributions and other non-cash support. Applicants are permitted to combine contributions

from additional non-Federal partners in order to meet the 1:1 match expected, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other funds. Federal funds may not be used as matching funds. The nature of the contribution (cash versus in-kind) and the amount of matching funds will be taken into consideration in the review process with cash being the preferred method of contribution. Applicants with less than 1:1 match will not be disqualified, if they provide justification for a lower amount of matching funds, however, applicants should note that cost sharing is an element considered in Evaluation Criterion d. Project Costs of the FFO. As per section 6403(b)(2) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, the NOAA Administrator may waive all or part of the matching requirement if the Administrator determines that the project meets the following two requirements: (1) No reasonable means are available through which an applicant can meet the matching requirement; and (2) The probable benefit of such project outweighs the public interest in such matching requirement. In the case of a waiver request, the applicant must provide a detailed justification at the time the proposal is submitted explaining the need for the waiver including attempts to obtain sources of matching funds, how the benefit of the project outweighs the public interest in providing match, and any other extenuating circumstances preventing the availability of match. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, and in accordance with 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d), the Program shall waive any requirement for local matching funds for any project under \$200,000 (including in-kind contribution) to the governments of Insular Areas, defined as the jurisdictions of the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Eligible applicants choosing to apply 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d) must include a letter requesting a waiver that demonstrates that their project meets the requirements of 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d).

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this Program are subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

10. Projects To Improve or Amend Coral Reef Fishery Management Plans

Summary Description: The NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program/ Projects to Improve or Amend Coral Reef Fishery Management Plans (CRFMPGP) provides funding to the Regional Fishery Management Councils for projects to conserve and manage coral reef fisheries, as authorized under the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000. Projects funded through the CRFMPGP are for activities that: (1) Provide better scientific information on the status of coral reef fisheries resources, critical habitats of importance to coral reef fishes, and the impacts of fishing on these species and habitats; (2) identify new management approaches that protect coral reef biodiversity and ecosystem function through regulation of fishing and other extractive uses; and (3) incorporate conservation and sustainable management measures into existing or new Federal fishery management plans for coral reef species. Proposals selected for funding through this solicitation will be implemented through a Cooperative Agreement. The role of NOAA in the CRFMPGP is to help identify potential projects that reduce impacts of fishing on coral reef ecosystems, strengthen the development and implementation of the projects, and assist in coordination of these efforts with Federal, state, territory or commonwealth management authorities and various coral reef user groups. Funding up to \$1,050,000 is expected to be available for CRFMPGP Cooperative Agreements in FY 2009. These funds will be divided equally among the Atlantic and Pacific to maintain the geographic split required by the Act. The NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Program anticipates that awards will range from \$175,000–\$525,000. Funding Availability: This solicitation

announces that approximately \$1,050,000 is expected to be available for cooperative agreements in support of coral reef conservation activities for Projects to Improve or Amend Coral Reef Fishery Management Plans (CRFMPGP) in FY 2009. Actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. The NOAA Coral reef Conservation Program anticipates that typical project awards will range from about \$175,000 to \$525,000; NOAA will not accept proposals for over \$525,000 under this solicitation. Equal funding will be provided to the Atlantic and Pacific, up to a maximum of \$525,000 for activities in the Western Pacific, and a maximum of \$525,000 for activities in the South

Atlantic, the Gulf of Mexico, and the Caribbean. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Activities approved by NOAA will be awarded as new cooperative agreements through the NMFS Office of Habitat Conservation (HC). The number of awards made as a result of this solicitation will depend on the number of eligible applications received, the amount of funds requested for each project, the merit and ranking of the proposals, and the amount of funds made available to the Program by Congress. The funds have not yet been appropriated for this program, and there is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any

available funds. Statutory Authority: Authority for the NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program is provided by Section 6403 (Coral Reef Conservation Program) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000

(16 U.S.C. 6401 et seq.). Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.441, Regional Fishery Management Councils. Application Deadline: Proposals must be received by 5 p.m. eastern time on

November 3, 2008. Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: Jennifer Koss, NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Program, NOAA Fisheries, Office of Habitat Conservation (F/HC1), 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910. ATTN: CRCGP Project Applications. Electronic copies of the project narrative and budget narrative are requested when submitting by mail (liz.fairey@noaa.gov), however E-mail applications submitted without a mailed hard copy with appropriate postal date stamp will not be accepted.

Information Contacts: Technical point of contact for NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program/Projects to Improve or Amend Coral Reef Fishery Management Plans Grants Program is Jennifer Koss, 301–713–3459, extension 195 or E-mail at

Jennifer.Koss@noaa.gov. Eligibility: Eligible applicants are limited to the Western Pacific Regional Fishery Management Council, the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council, the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, and the Caribbean Fishery Management Council.

Cost Sharing Requirements: No cost sharing or matching is required under this program. The Administrator has waived the matching requirement for the Fishery Management Councils as discussed in Section VII of the Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program Implementation Guidelines (**Federal** Register Vol. 67, No. 76, page 19396, Friday, April 19, 2002). This waiver is based on the fact that the Councils are funded solely by awards from the U.S. Federal Government, and therefore, do not have the ability to generate matching funds.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this CRFMPGP are subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. Specific information regarding Intergovernmental Review can be found above in Section IV. Application and Submission Information, D. Intergovernmental Review of the FFO.

#### 11. Protected Species Cooperative Conservation

Summary Description: States play an essential role in the conservation and recovery of endangered and threatened species. Protected species under the National Marine Fisheries Service's (NMFS) jurisdiction may spend all or a part of their life-cycles in state waters, and success in conserving these species will depend in large part on working cooperatively with State agencies. The NMFS is authorized to provide Federal assistance to eligible States to support the development of conservation programs for marine and anadromous species that reside within that State. This assistance, provided in the form of grants through the Protected Species Cooperative Conservation program, can be used to support conservation of endangered, threatened, and candidate species, as well as post-delisting monitoring of recovered species Funded activities may include development and implementation of management plans, scientific research, and public education and outreach; projects should address priority actions identified in either an ESA Recovery Plan or a State's ESA section 6 conservation program. Projects focusing on listed Pacific salmon will not be considered for funding under this grant program; such projects may be funded through the Pacific Coastal Salmon Recovery Fund. Any State agency that has entered into an agreement with the NMFS pursuant to section 6(c) of the ESA is eligible to apply to this grant program. This document describes how to submit proposals for funding in fiscal year (FY) 2009 and how NMFS will

determine which proposals will be funded; the document should be read in its entirety, as information may have changed from the previous year.
Funding Availability: This solicitation

announces that a minimum of \$330K and a maximum of \$780K may be available for distribution under the FY 2009 PSCC program, in award amounts to be determined by the proposals and available funds; actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon Fiscal Year 2009 Congressional appropriations. As funds have not yet been appropriated for this program, there is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific grant proposal or to obligate any available funds. There is no set minimum or maximum amount, within the available funding, for any award. There is also no limit on the number of applications that can be submitted by the same applicant. Multiple applications submitted by the same applicant must clearly identify distinct projects, and single applications should not include multiple, unrelated projects. Project proposals accepted for funding with a project period over one year do not have to compete for the additional years of funding. However, funding for the additional years is contingent upon the availability of funds and satisfactory performance and is at the sole discretion of the agency.
Statutory Authority: 16 U.S.C. 661 et

seq.; 1535. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.472, Unallied Science Program.

Application Deadline: Proposals

submitted through Grants.gov must be received by 5 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time on September 17, 2008; proposals submitted by mail must be postmarked

by September 17, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, 3 hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: NMFS Office of Protected Resources, Attn: Lisa Manning, 1315 East-West Highway SSMC3, Silver Spring, MD 20910. Paper applications should not be bound in any manner.

Information Contacts: If you have any questions regarding this proposal solicitation, please contact Lisa Manning at the NOAA/NMFS/Office of Protected Resources, Endangered Species Division, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910, by phone at 301-713-1401, or by E-mail at Lisa.Manning@noaa.gov. You may also contact one of the following people in your region for further guidance: Karla Reece, Southeast Regional Office, Protected Resources Division (Karla.Reece@noaa.gov, 727-824-5312); Amanda Johnson, Northeast Regional Office, Protected Resources Division (Amanda.Johnson@noaa.gov, 978-281-9300 x6513); Jayne LeFors, Pacific Islands Regional Office, Protected Resources Division (Javne.LeFors@noaa.gov, 808-944-2277); Scott Rumsey, Northwest Regional Office, Fish and Wildlife Administrator (Scott.Rumsey@noaa.gov,

503–872–2791).

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are state agencies that have entered into an agreement with NMFS pursuant to section 6(c) of the ESA. The terms "state" and "state agency" are used as defined in section 3 of the ESA (16 U.S.C. 1532). Currently eligible state agencies are from the following states: Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Puerto Rico, South Carolina, the U.S. Virgin Islands, and Washington. Any state agency that enters into a section 6(c) agreement with NMFS prior to the application deadline (September 17, 2008) is also eligible to apply. States may apply for funding to conduct work on federally listed species that are included in their ESA section 6 agreement and any species that has become a candidate species by the grant application deadline. States may not apply for funding to conduct work on federally listed species that are not covered in their ESA section 6 agreement unless said species is added to the agreement by the grant application deadline. Federal agencies or institutions are not eligible to receive Federal assistance under this notice. In addition, NOAA and NMFS employees shall not provide assistance in writing applications, write letters of support for any application, or otherwise confer any unfair advantage on a particular application. However, for activities involving collaboration with current NMFS programs, NMFS employees can write a letter verifying that they are collaborating with the project.

Cost Sharing Requirements: In accordance with section 6(d) of the ESA, all proposals submitted must include a minimum non-Federal cost share of 25 percent of the total budget if the proposal involves a single state. If a proposal involves collaboration of two or more states, the minimum non-Federal cost share decreases to 10 percent of the total project budget. The project proposal and budget should

reflect the work and responsibilities to be carried out by each of the cooperating states. Pursuant to Public Law 95-134 Title V, section 501 (1977), as amended (48 U.S.C. 1469a) the following Insular Areas are exempt from this matching requirement: American Samoa, Guam, the Virgin Islands, and the Northern Mariana Islands. The non-Federal cost share should be identified in the project budget (and on the SF-424A) and may include in-kind contributions according to the regulations at 15 CFR part 24.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372. "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

12. Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program (FY 2009)

Summary Description: The Saltonstall-Kennedy Act established a fund (known as the S-K fund) that the Secretary of Commerce uses to provide grants or cooperative agreements for fisheries research and development projects addressing aspects of U.S. fisheries, including, but not limited to, harvesting, processing, marketing, and associated infrastructures. U.S. fisheries include any fishery, commercial or recreational, that is, or may be, engaged in by citizens or nationals of the United States, or citizens of the Northern Mariana Islands (NMI), the Republic of the Marshall Islands, Republic of Palau, and the Federated States of Micronesia.

Funding Availability: Funding is contingent upon availability of Federal allocations. The S–K program has sought funding for \$5 million in grant awards. We anticipate awarding 20-25 grants of approximately \$100,000 to \$250,000 each. Applicants are hereby given notice that funds have not yet been allocated for this program. In no event will NOAA or the Department of Commerce be responsible for proposal preparation costs if this program fails to receive funding or is cancelled because of other agency priorities. Publication of this notice does not obligate NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds. You should not initiate your project in expectation of Federal funding until you receive a grant award document signed by an authorized NOAA official. If one incurs any costs prior to receiving an award agreement signed by an authorized NOAA official, one would do so solely at one's own risk of these costs not being included under the award. Recipients and subrecipients are subject to all Federal laws and agency policies, regulations and procedures applicable to Federal financial assistance awards.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program is provided under the Saltonstall-Kennedy Act (S–K Act), as amended (15 U.S.C. 713~3)

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.427, Fisheries Development and Utilization Research and Development Grants and Cooperative Agreements Program.

Cooperative Agreements Program.

Application Deadline: Applications must be received by 5 p.m., Eastern Time on October 1, 2008. Applications received after the deadline will be rejected/returned to the sender without further consideration. No facsimile or electronic mail applications will be accepted.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: Mr. Steve
Aguzin, S–K Program Manager, NOAA/
NMFS (F/MB5), 1315 East-West
Highway, Room 13134, Silver Spring,
MD 20010-3282

MD 20910-3282. Information Contacts: The point of contact is: Steve Aguzin, S-K Program Manager, NOAA/NMFS (F/MB5), 1315 East-West Highway, Room 13134, Silver Spring, MD 20910-3282; or by Phone at (301) 713-2358 ext. 215, or fax at (301) 713-1306, or via E-mail at

Stephen. Aguzin@noaa.gov.
Eligibility: You are eligible to apply for a grant or a cooperative agreement under the Saltonstall-Kennedy Grant Program if: 1. You are a citizen or national of the United States; 2. You are a citizen of the Northern Mariana Islands (NMI), or an individual who qualifies as such under section 8 of the Schedule on Transitional Matters attached to the constitution of the NMI; 3. You are a citizen of the Republic of the Marshall Islands, Republic of Palau, or the Federated States of Micronesia; or 4. You represent a corporation, partnership, association, or other non-Federal entity, non-profit or otherwise (including Indian tribes), that is based in the United States or NMI, within the meaning of section 2 of the Shipping Act, 1916, as amended (46 U.S.C. app. 802). We support cultural and gender diversity in our programs and encourage women and minority individuals and groups to submit applications. Furthermore, we recognize the interest of the Secretaries of Commerce and Interior in defining appropriate fisheries policies and programs that meet the needs of the U.S. insular areas, so we also encourage applications from individuals, government entities, and businesses in U.S. insular areas. We are strongly committed to broadening the

participation of Minority Serving Institutions (MSIs), which include Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Hispanic Serving Institutions, and Tribal Colleges and Universities, in our programs, including S-K. Therefore, we encourage all applicants to include meaningful participation of MSIs. We encourage applications from members of the fishing community, and applications that involve fishing community cooperation and participation. We will consider the extent of fishing community involvement when evaluating the potential benefit of funding a proposal. You are not eligible to submit an application under this program if you are an employee of any Federal agency; a Fishery Management Council; or an employee of a Council. However, Council members who are not Federal employees can submit an

application to the S-K Program.

Cost Sharing Requirements: We are requiring cost sharing in order to leverage the limited funds available for this program and to encourage partnerships among government, industry, and academia to address the needs of fishing communities. You must provide a minimum cost share of 10 percent of total project costs, but your cost share must not exceed 50 percent of total costs.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications submitted by state and local governments are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a State's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http:// www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

#### 13. Prescott 2009

Summary Description: The Marine Mammal Health and Stranding Response Program of the National Marine Fisheries Service is charged under the Marine Mammal Protection Act with facilitating the collection and dissemination of reference data on stranded marine mammals and health trends of marine mammal populations in the wild. Through cooperation with NMFS Regional Coordinators, local organizations and state and local government officials respond to and collect valuable data from stranded

marine mammals as participants in the national Marine Mammal Stranding Network. The John H. Prescott Marine Mammal Rescue Assistance Grant Program is conducted by NOAA to provide Federal assistance to eligible members of the Stranding Network to: (1) Support basic needs of organizations for response, treatment, and data collection from living and dead stranded marine mammals; (2) fund scientific research objectives designed to answer questions about marine mammal strandings, health, or rehabilitation techniques utilizing data from living and dead stranded marine mammals; and, (3) support facility operations directly related to the recovery or treatment of stranded marine mammals and collection of data from living or dead stranded marine mammals.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that approximately \$4M may be available for distribution under the FY 2009 annual competitive Prescott Program. Actual funding availability for this program is contingent upon FY 2009 Congressional appropriations. Applicants are hereby given notice that these funds have not yet been appropriated for this program, and therefore exact dollar amounts cannot be given. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. The maximum Federal award for each grant cannot exceed \$100,000, as stated in the legislative language (16 U.S.C. 1421f-1). Funds will be set aside from the annual appropriation to provide for emergency assistance awards to eligible stranding network participants. These emergency funds will be available until expended. There is no limit on the number of proposals that can be submitted by the same stranding network participant during the 2009 competitive grant cycle. However, since there are insufficient funds to award financial assistance to every member of the network, organizations will receive no more than two awards per year as part of the competitive program. The two awards must be for projects that are clearly separate in their objectives, goals, and budget requests and must be successful in the competitive review process. The two projects should be completely independent (i.e., you will be able to carry out either proposal even if the other does not receive funding). In addition, eligible researchers applying as Principal Investigators, but not independently authorized under the MMPA Section 112(c), the MMPA Section 109(h) (50 CFR 216.22), or the National Contingency Plan for Response

to Marine Mammal Unusual Mortality Events, can receive no more than one award per year as part of the

competitive cycle. Authorized stranding network participants and researchers may be identified as Co-Investigators or collaborators on as many proposals as needed as long as no more than 100 percent of their time is funded through the Prescott Program. In addition, Department of Commerce (DOC) and Department of Interior (DOI) employees may act as collaborators if they are responsible for performing analyses on data or samples collected under a Prescott award. See section I.F. of the FFO for Eligibility requirements. If an application for a financial assistance award is selected for funding, NOAA/ NMFS has no obligation to provide any additional funding in connection with that award in subsequent years beyond the award period. If one incurs any costs prior to receiving an award agreement signed by an authorized NOAA official, one would do so solely at one's own risk of these costs not being included under the award. Notwithstanding any verbal or written assurance that applicants have received, pre-award costs are not allowed under the award unless the Grants Officer approves them in accordance with 15 CFR 14.28. Statutory Authority: 16 U.S.C.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.439, Marine Mammal Data Program.

Application Deadline: Proposals must be postmarked or submitted online by 11:59 p.m. EDT on Wednesday, October 1, 2008

Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: NOAA/ NMFS/Office of Protected Resources, Marine Mammal Health and Stranding Response Program, 1315 East-West Highway, Room 13620, Silver Spring, MD 20910-3283.

Information Contacts: Please visit the Prescott Grant Program Web site at: http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/pr/health/ prescott/ or contact Michelle Ordono at the NOAA/NMFS/Office of Protected Resources, Marine Mammal Health and Stranding Response Program, 1315 East-West Highway, Room 13620, Silver Spring, MD 20910–3283, by phone at (301) 713-2322, or by fax at (301) 427-2525, or by E-mail at

PrescottGrantFR.comments@noaa.gov. Eligibility: There are three categories of eligible stranding network participants that may apply for funds

under this Program: (1) Stranding Agreement (SA) holders or their designee organizations; (2) holders of researcher authorization letters issued by a NMFS Regional Administrator; and, (3) state, local, eligible federal government or tribal employees or personnel. All applicants must currently be: (1) Active as an authorized participant or researcher in the marine mammal stranding network; (2) In good standing and; (3) Not a current full or part-time employee or contractor of DOC or DOI. To be "in good standing", you must meet all of the following criteria: (1) If the applicant is a designated Principal Investigator of an MMPA or Endangered Species Act (ESA) scientific research or enhancement permit holder, the applicant must have fulfilled all permit requirements, including but not limited to submission of all reports, and must have no pending or outstanding enforcement actions under the MMPA or ESA. (2) Have complied with the terms and responsibilities of the appropriate SA, MMPA Section 109(h) authorization, or researcher authorization letter. This includes, but is not limited to, the following reporting requirements: (a) Timely reporting of strandings to NMFS; (b) timely submission of complete reports on basic or Level A data to the Regional Coordinator (includes investigator's name, species, stranding location, number of animals, date and time of stranding and recovery, length and condition, and sex: marine mammal parts retention or transfer; annual reports); and (c) collecting information or samples as necessary and as requested. This also includes the following coordination/cooperation requirements: (a) Cooperation with state, local, and Federal officials; (b) cooperation with state and local officials in the disposition of stranded marine mammals; and (c) cooperation with other stranding network participants. (3) Have cooperated in a timely manner with NMFS in collecting and submitting Level B (supplementary information regarding sample collection related to life history and to the stranding event) and Level C (necropsy results) data and samples, when requested. (4) Have no current enforcement investigation for the take of marine mammals contrary to the MMPA/ESA regulations. (5) Have no record of a pending NMFS notice of violation(s) regarding the policies governing the goals and operations of the Stranding Network and Stranding Agreement, if applicable (e.g., probation, suspension, or termination). In addition to these general criteria,

organizations and individuals must meet the following eligibility criteria specific to their category of participation: (1) SA Holder Participant or SA Designee Participant. SA participants must be holding a current (active) SA for stranding response (either live or dead animal response) or rehabilitation from a NMFS Regional Administrator or the Assistant Administrator. SA Designee participants must be holding a current (active) letter of designation from a NMFS SA holder, and designees cannot request authorization for activities beyond the scope of what is authorized by the SA to the letter holder. (2) Researcher Participant. Researcher participants must be holding a current (active) authorizing letter for the proposed award period from the NMFS Regional Administrator or the Assistant Administrator to salvage stranded marine mammal specimens and parts or samples for the purpose of utilization in scientific research (50 CFR 216.22). Persons authorized to salvage dead marine mammal specimens under this section must register the salvage with the appropriate NMFS Regional Office within 30 days after the taking occurs. Researchers who are authorized under an MMPA/ESA Scientific Research Permit must still obtain an authorizing letter from the Regional Stranding Coordinator in order to use parts or specimens from stranded animals Researcher participants that would not require an authorizing letter from the NMFS Regional Administrator (i.e., they will be working with data only and not possessing samples or specimens) must still provide a letter of eligibility from the Regional Stranding Coordinator (see IV.B.8 of the FFO). Researcher participants must also have designated Co-Investigator(s) that are active NMFS authorized stranding network participants in good standing, and provide documentation to this effect. (3) State, Local, Federal Government Employees or Tribal Participants, State and local government officials or employees participating pursuant to MMPA Section 109(h) (16 U.S.C 1379(h)) for marine mammal species not listed under the ESA fulfilling reporting obligations outlined in 50 CFR 216.22 (i.e., submission of written report to NMFS every six months containing description of animal(s) involved, circumstances of taking, method of taking, name and position of official or employee involved, and disposition of animal(s)). Government officials must be involved in areas of geographic need (i.e., municipality or larger region with no existing SA holder responder).

Applicants must submit the required documentation in their proposal (see Section IV, Application and Submission Information of the FFO) as evidence that they are an SA holder or designee participant, researcher participant, or a state, local, or Federal government employee, or tribal participant at the time of the submission and during the award period. All eligibility criteria specified for the participant's category must be met in order for a proposal to be considered for funding. We support cultural and gender diversity in our programs and encourage eligible women and minority individuals and groups to submit proposals. Furthermore, we recognize the interest of the Secretaries of Commerce and Interior in defining appropriate marine management policies and programs that meet the needs of the U.S. insular areas, so we also encourage proposals from eligible individuals, government entities, universities, colleges, and businesses in U.S. insular areas as defined by the MMPA (Section 3(14), 16 U.S.C. 1362). This includes the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, American Samoa, Guam, and the Northern Mariana Islands. We are strongly committed to broadening the participation of Minority Serving Institutions (MSIs), which include Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Hispanic Serving Institutions, Tribal Colleges and Universities, and institutions that work in undeserved areas in our programs.

The DOC/NOAA/NMFS vision. mission, and goals are to achieve full participation by MSIs, to advance the development of human potential, strengthen the Nation's capacity to provide high-quality education, and increase opportunities for MSIs to participate in and benefit from Federal financial assistance programs. Therefore, Prescott Grant Program encourages all eligible applicants to include meaningful participation of MSIs whenever practicable. Applicants are not eligible to submit a proposal under this program if they are an employee of the DOC or DOI. NOAA/ NMFS employees (whether full-time, part-time, or intermittent) are not allowed to help in the preparation of proposals, except for providing information on data or sample analyses as an identified collaborator/Co-Investigator in the proposal. Since this is a competitive program, NMFS and NOAA employees cannot provide assistance in conceptualizing, developing, or structuring proposals, or write letters of support for any proposal. However, for activities that involve

collaboration with current NOAA programs that include, but are not limited to, the National Marine Mammal Tissue Bank (NMMTB) or laboratories conducting analysis of tissues for contaminants, employees of NOAA or the National Institute of Standards and Technology can write a letter verifying that they are collaborating with the project, or that the organization or individual applying is trained to participate in the NMMTB or is currently participating in the National Marine Analytical Quality Assurance Program. In addition, proposals encompassing activities conducted under the authority of a MMPA Scientific Research Permit issued to a DOC or DOI organization (e.g., NMFS Regional Science Center) should include a copy of the permit and a letter from the Principal Investigator (DOC/DOI employee) verifying that the work is being conducted with their approval. Federal employee travel costs or salaries are not allowable costs under this program. MMHSRP staff (at the regional and national level) are available to provide information regarding statistics on strandings, MMHSRP programmatic goals and objectives, ongoing marine mammal programs, regional funding priorities for the current and previous Prescott solicitations, and, along with other Federal Program Officers, can provide guidance on application procedures and proper completion of required forms. Unsatisfactory performance under prior or current Federal awards, including delinquency in submitting progress and financial reports, may result in proposals not being considered for funding under the 2009 Prescott Grant Program.

Cost Sharing Requirements: All proposals submitted must provide a minimum non-Federal cost share of 25 percent of the total budget (i.e., .25  $\times$  total project costs = total non-Federal share). Therefore, the total Federal share will be 75 percent or less of the total budget. For a proposed total Federal share of \$100,000, the minimum non-Federal share is \$33,334 (total budget of \$133,334;  $.25 \times $133,334 = $33,334$ ). For a proposed total Federal share of \$80,000, the minimum non-Federal share is \$26,667 (total budget of \$106,667; .25 × \$106,667 = \$80,000). Cost share must be an integer, so please round up. The applicant can include a non-Federal cost share for more than 25 percent of the total budget, but this obligation will be binding. In order to reduce calculation error in determining the correct cost share amounts, we urge all applicants to use the cost share calculator on the Prescott Program Web

page (http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/pr/ health/prescott/proposals/ costshare.htm). Legislation under which the Prescott Program operates requires this cost sharing, or non-Federal match, in order to leverage the limited funds available for this program and to encourage partnerships among government, private organizations, nonprofit organizations, the stranding network, and academia to address the needs of marine mammal health and stranding response. If a proposal does not comply with these cost share requirements, it will not be returned and considered in this annual funding cycle. Pursuant to 48 U.S.C. 1469a, match may be waived for applicants that are residents in the U.S. insular areas (Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the U.S. Virgin Islands). The Federal Program Officer will determine the appropriateness of all non-Federal cost sharing proposals, including the valuation of in-kind contributions, according to the regulations codified at 15 CFR 14.23 and 24.24. An in-kind contribution is a non-cash contribution, donated or loaned, by a third party to the applicant. In general, the value of inkind services or property used to fulfill a non-Federal cost share will be the fair market value of the services or property. Thus, the value is determined by the cost of obtaining such services or property if they had not been donated, or of obtaining such services or property for the period of the loan. The applicant must document the in-kind services or property used to fulfill the non-Federal cost share. If we decide to fund a proposal, we will require strict accounting of the in-kind contributions within the total non-Federal cost share included in the award document. The Grants Officer (i.e., the DOC official responsible for all business management and administrative aspects of a grant and with delegated authority to award, amend, administer, close out, suspend, and/or terminate awards) is the final approving authority for the award, including the budget and any costsharing proposals.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications submitted under this program are subject to the provisions of Executive Order 12372,
"Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Any applicant submitting an application for funding is required to complete item 16 on SF-424 regarding clearance by the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) established as a result of EO 12372. To find out about and comply with a State's process under EO 12372, the names, addresses and phone

numbers of participating SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's home page at: http:// www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

National Ocean Service (NOS)

1. 2009 CRCP Coral Reef Ecosystem Monitoring

Summary Description: The NOAA
Coral Reef Monitoring Grant Program, as authorized under the Coral Reef
Conservation Act of 2000, provides matching grants to Governor-appointed point of contact agencies for the jurisdictions of Puerto Rico, the U.S.
Virgin Islands (USVI), Florida, Hawaii, American Samoa, Guam, the
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI), the Republic of Palau, the Federated States of Micronesia (including Chuuk, Yap, Kosrae, and Pohnpei), and the Republic of the Marshall Islands to support State and Territory Coral Reef Monitoring activities in these jurisdictions.
Funding Availability: NCCOS may

provide approximately \$1,100,000 in funding for FY 2009 to support coral reef ecosystem monitoring activities under this program. FY 2009 awards to Puerto Rico, Florida, U.S. Virgin Islands, Hawaii, American Samoa Guam, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands are expected to range from \$50,000 to \$130,000. FY 2009 awards to the Federated States of Micronesia (FSM—including Chuuk, Yap, Kosrae, and Pohnpei), Republic of Palau, and the Republic of the Marshall Islands (RMI) are expected to be approximately \$30,000 per year. Funding will be subject to the availability of federal appropriations. FY 2009 grant seekers may submit proposals up to three years in duration, at funding levels specified above (i.e., up to \$90,000 for three year proposals for Palau, FSM, and RMI, and up to \$390,000 for three year proposals for all other eligible applicants). In certain instances, when requested by the applicant and agreed upon by NOAA, NOAA may hold back a portion of any awarded funds in order to provide specific technical assistance in the form of contractual or other services. This will only be allowed where such priority technical assistance and/or the lack of sufficient means to deliver it are unavailable at the local level. Such requests proposed herein will be reviewed on a case by case basis with respect to the specific management objectives of this and the local coral reef program. If all available funds are not awarded, NOAA will consult with the eligible applicants on the use of any

residual funds. NOAA will work with each jurisdiction to ensure the greatest degree of success in meeting local, state, territorial, and national coral reef monitoring needs.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program is provided by Section 6403 (Coral Reef Conservation Program) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000 (ISLN C. 640) at Coral Reef Conservation Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000 (ISLN C. 640) at Coral Reef Conse

(16 U.S.C. 6401 et seq.). Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.426, Financial Assistance for National Centers for Central Coastal Ocean Science.

Application Deadline: Preproposals due: 5 p.m. on EST November 14, 2008. Comments on preproposals provided to the applicants on January 9, 2009. Final proposals due: 5 p.m. EST on February 20, 2009.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Pre-applications must be sent to
coral.grants@noaa.gov or to Jenny
Waddell, NOAA National Ocean
Service, N/SCI-1, 1305 East-West
Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910.
Final applications must be submitted
through www.grants.gov, unless an
applicant does not have Internet access.
In that case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: Jenny
Waddell, NOAA National Ocean
Service, N/SCI-1, 1305 East-West
Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910.
Information Contacts: The technical

Information Contacts: The technical point of contact for State and Territory Coral Reef Monitoring is Jenny Waddell. She can be reached at 301–713–3028 extension 174 or by e-mail at jenny wooddell@page.gov.

jenny.waddell@noaa.gov. Eligibility: Eligible applicants are limited to a natural resource management agency in each U.S. State or Territory, or an appropriate nongovernmental agency in the case of the Freely Associated States, with jurisdiction over and an ability to monitor the condition of coral reefs, as designated by the respective governors or other applicable senior jurisdictional official. Applicants from the Freely Associated States must also provide a letter of support from their respective officially-designated coral reef point of contact to ensure that the proposed activities are coordinated with other ongoing coral reef conservation efforts. NOAA is requesting proposals from Puerto Rico, Florida, U.S. Virgin Islands, Hawaii, American Samoa, Guam, and Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, the Federated States of Micronesia, Republic of Palau, and the Republic of the Marshall Islands. Federal agencies are not eligible for funding under this Program Furthermore, to be eligible for FY 2009

funding, applicants previously receiving funds under this program must have made significant progress implementing those tasks and met data submission deadlines, including all performance and fiscal reporting requirements and data transfers.

Cost Sharing Requirements: As per section 6403(b)(1) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, Federal funds for any coral conservation project funded under this Program may not exceed 50 percent of the total cost of the projects. Therefore, any coral conservation project under this program requires a 1:1 match. Matching funds must be from non-Federal sources and can include in-kind contributions and other non-cash support.

NOAA strongly encourages applicants to leverage as much investment as possible. Federal funds may not be considered as matching funds. As per section 6403(b)(2) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, the NOAA Administrator may waive all or part of the matching requirement if the Administrator determines that the project meets the following two requirements: 1. No reasonable means are available through which an applicant can meet the matching requirement, and, 2. The probable benefit of such project outweighs the public interest in such matching requirement. Applicants must specify in their proposal the source and may be asked to provide letters of commitment to confirm stated match contributions.

In the case of a waiver request, the applicant must provide a detailed justification explaining the need for the waiver including attempts to obtain sources of matching funds, how the benefit of the project outweighs the public interest in providing match, and any other extenuating circumstances preventing the availability of match. Notwithstanding any other provisions berein, and in accordance with 48
U.S.C. 1469a(d), the Program shall
waive any requirement for local
matching funds for any project under
\$200,000 (including in-kind contribution) to the governments of Insular Areas, defined as the jurisdictions of the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Please Note: eligible applicants choosing to apply 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d) should note the use and amount in the matching funds section of the respective application.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372,
Intergovernmental Review of Federal
Programs.

2. 2009 CRCP-Coral Reef Management

Summary Description: The NOAA Coral Reef Management Grant Program, as authorized under the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, provides matching grants to the Governors appointed point of contact agencies for the jurisdictions of Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands (USVI), Florida, Hawaii, Guam, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI), and American Samoa for State and Territory Coral Reef Management activities. The objective of the State and Territory Coral Reef Management Grant program is to support comprehensive management programs for the conservation of coral reef ecosystems in these jurisdictions.

Funding Availability: Funding up to \$3,000,000 is expected to be available for cooperative agreements to support priority coral reef management activities that address areas 1-10 in the Federal Funding Opportunity. There is no appropriation of funds at this time and the final funding amount will be subject to the availability of federal appropriations. Šupport in out-years following FY2009 is likewise contingent upon the availability of future funding and the requirements of the Federal agency supporting the project (Department of Commerce or Department of the Interior (DOI)). Each eligible jurisdiction can apply for a maximum of \$600,000. A minimum of 40% of the final award amount must be dedicated to the implementation and support of the Local Action Strategy initiative in each jurisdiction. In certain instances, when requested by the applicant and agreed upon by NOAA and DOI, NOAA may hold back a portion of any awarded funds in order to provide specific coral reef conservation technical assistance in the form of contractual or other services This will only be allowed where such priority technical assistance and/or the lack of sufficient means to deliver it are unavailable at the local level. Such requests proposed herein will be reviewed on a case by case basis with respect to the specific management objectives of this and the local coral reef program. If all funds that become available after Congressional appropriation are not awarded, NOAA and DOI will consult with the eligible applicants on the use of any residual funds. NOAA and DOI will work with each jurisdiction to ensure the greatest degree of success in meeting local, state, territorial and national coral reef management needs.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program is provided by Section 6403 (Coral Reef Conservation Program) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000 (16 U.S.C. 6401 et seg.)

(16 U.S.C. 6401 et seq.)
Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.419,
Coastal Zone Management
Administration Awards.

Application Deadline: Preapplications must be received no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern Standard Time on Monday, December 1, 2008. Final applications must be received no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern Standard Time on Thursday, March 12, 2009.

Address for Submitting Proposals: Final applications should be submitted electronically to: www.grants.gov, the Federal grants portal. If Internet access is unavailable hard copies can be submitted to David Kennedy, NOAA National Ocean Service, NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Program, Office of Response and Restoration, N/ORR, Room 10102, 1305 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910.

Information Contacts: Technical point of contact for State and Territory Coral Reef Management is Dana Wusinich-Mendez at 301–713–3155, extension 159 or e-mail at dana.wusinichmendez@noaa.gov, FAX: 301–713–4367. Address: OCRM/NOAA, N/–ORM3, 1305 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are the governor-appointed point of contact agencies for coral reef activities in each of the jurisdictions of American Samoa, Florida, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Guam, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Cost Sharing Requirements: As per section 6403(b)(1) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, Federal funds for any coral conservation project funded under this Program may not exceed 50 percent of the total cost of the projects. Therefore, any coral conservation project under this program requires a 1:1 match. Match can come from a variety of public and private sources and can include in-kind goods and services such as private boat use and volunteer labor. Federal sources cannot be considered for matching funds, but can be described in the budget narrative to demonstrate additional leverage. Applicants are permitted to combine contributions from multiple non-federal partners in order to meet the 1:1 match requirement, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other funds. Applicants must specify in their proposal the source(s) of match and may be asked to provide letters of commitment to confirm stated match contributions. Applicants whose

proposals are selected for funding will be bound by the percentage of cost sharing reflected in the award document signed by the NOAA Grants Officer. Applicants should be prepared to carefully document matching contributions for each project selected to be funded. As per section 6403(b)(2) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, the NOAA Administrator may waive all or part of the matching requirement if the Administrator determines that the project meets the following two requirements: 1. No reasonable means are available through which an applicant can meet the matching requirement, and, 2. The probable benefit of such project outweighs the public interest in such matching requirement. In the case of a waiver request, the applicant must provide a detailed justification explaining the need for the waiver including attempts to obtain sources of matching funds, how the benefit of the project outweighs the public interest in providing match, and any other extenuating circumstances preventing the availability of match. Match waiver requests including the appropriate justification should be submitted as part of the final application package. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, and in accordance with 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d), the Program shall waive any requirement for local matching funds for any project under \$200,000 (including in-kind contribution) to the governments of Insular Areas, defined as the jurisdictions of the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

Please Note: Eligible applicants choosing to apply 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d) should note the use of the waiver and the total amount of funds requested to be waived in the matching funds section of the respective application.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

3. Bay Watershed Education and Training (B–WET) Hawaii Program

Summary Description: The purpose of this notice is to solicit proposals for grants to support NOAA's goal of developing a well-informed citizenry involved in decision-making that positively impact our coastal, marine and watershed ecosystems in the state of Hawaii. This opportunity is an annually awarded, competitively-based grant that provides initial funding to: (1) Assist in the development of new programs; (2)

encourage innovative partnerships among environmental education programs throughout Hawaii; and (3) support geographically targeted programs to advance environmental education efforts that complement appropriate school requirements. Funded projects provide meaningful science-based outdoor experiences for K-12 students and professional development opportunities for teachers in the area of environmental education as defined in this announcement.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that approximately \$1,000,000 may be available in FY 2009 in award amounts to be determined by the proposals and available funds. The NOAA Pacific Services Center anticipates that approximately 5 to 15 grants will be awarded with these funds, pending availability of funds. Applicants are hereby given notice that funds have not yet been appropriated for this program. It is anticipated that typical project awards for Priority 1 and 2 (see FFO) will range from approximately \$10,000 to \$100,000. Applications requesting Federal support from NOAA of more than \$100,000 total will not be considered for review or funding. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in preaward negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds. If applicants incur any costs prior to an award being made, they do so at their own risk of not being reimbursed by the government.

Notwithstanding verbal or written assurance that may have been received, there is no obligation on the part of NOAA to cover pre-award costs unless approved by the Grants Officer as part of the terms when the award is made.

Statutory Authority: 15 U.S.C. 1540;

33 U.S.C. 892a. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.473, Coastal Services Center.

Application Deadline: Full proposals must be received must be received by

5:59 Hawaii Time on August 15, 2008. Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures must be postmarked on or before August 15, 2008, and sent to: NOAA Pacific Services Center, 737 Bishop Street, Suite 1550, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, ATTN: Stephanie

Bennett. The postmark will be used to determine the timeliness of the proposal. Applicants submitting hard copy applications must submit one (1) hard copy of the entire application package, a CD copy of the package, including all forms with original signatures. Facsimile transmissions and electronic mail submissions will not be

Information Contacts: For administrative and technical questions, contact Stephanie Bennett, Federal Program Officer at NOAA Pacific Services Center, 737 Bishop Street Suite 1550, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 or by phone at (808) 522-7481, or via email at Stephanie.Bennett@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants for Priority 1 and 2 are K-12 public and independent schools and school systems, institutions of higher education, commercial and nonprofit organizations, state or local government agencies, and Indian tribal governments. Individual applicants and Federal agencies are not eligible. Federal agencies are not allowed to receive funds under this announcement but may serve as collaborative project partners. The Department of Commerce/ National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically Black Colleges and Universities, Hispanicserving institutions, Tribal colleges and universities, Alaskan Native and Native Hawaiian institutions, and institutions that service undeserved areas

Cost Sharing Requirements: No cost sharing is required under this program, however, the NOAA Pacific Services Center strongly encourages applicants to share as much of the costs of the award as possible. Funds from other Federal awards may not be considered matching funds. The nature of the contribution (cash versus in-kind) and the amount of matching funds will be taken into consideration in the review process with cash being the preferred method of contribution.

Intergovernmental Review: Funding applications under the Center are subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. It is the state agency's responsibility to contact their state's Single Point of Contact (SPCO) to find out about and comply with the state's process under EO 12372. To assist the applicant, the names and addresses of the SPOCs are listed on the Office of Management and Budget's Web site http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

4. CSCOR FY 2009 NGOMEX and CRES

Summary Description: The purpose of this opportunity is to advise the public that NOAA/NOS/NCCOS/CSCOR is soliciting proposals for two separate programs. Program 1 is the Regional Ecosystem Prediction Program on Coral Reef Ecosystem Studies (CRES) From Science to Conservation: Linking Coral Reefs, Coastal Watersheds and their Human Communities in the Pacific Islands. Projects under this program will be 3 to 5 years in duration. The goal of this funding opportunity is to utilize existing scientific tools and approaches (e.g., biophysical models; coupled watershed and hydrodynamic models) within a social, cultural, and economic framework to develop and implement effective coastal ecosystem management practices in the Pacific Islands. Proposals should be regional in scale, interdisciplinary, comprehensive, integrated, and include multiple investigators to develop capabilities for innovative forecasts and predictions for improved management and control capabilities. Program 2 is the Northern Gulf of Mexico Ecosystems and Hypoxia Assessment Program (NGOMEX) NGOMEX has two components. The Modeling the Causes of Hypoxia component takes a regional ecosystem prediction approach to advance model development assessing the association between the northern Gulf hypoxic zone and causative factors. The proposed research for this competition should be 3-5 years in duration. The Modeling the Impacts of Hypoxia component takes an ecosystem stressors approach to advance understanding of hypoxia on ecologically and commercially important living resource populations of the northern Gulf of Mexico ecosystem. These projects should be 3 to 5 years of duration. Funding is contingent upon the availability of Fiscal Year 2009 Federal appropriations. It is anticipated that final recommendations for funding under this announcement will be made by February 2009 and that projects funded under this announcement will have a July 1, 2009 through August 1, 2009 start date. Background information about the NCCOS/CSCOR efforts can be

found at http://www.cop.noaa.gov. Funding Availability: Funding is contingent upon availability of Federal appropriations. NOAA is committed to continual improvement of the grants process and accelerating the award of financial assistance to qualified recipients in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Process Re-engineering Team. In order to fulfill these responsibilities, this solicitation announces that award

amounts will be determined by the proposals and available funds. Funds for the Coral Reef Ecosystem Studies From Science to Conservation: Linking Coral Reefs, Coastal Watersheds and their Human Communities in the Pacific Islands will not exceed \$200,000 per project per year. (1) It is anticipated that only one project will be awarded for this program with project duration of 3 to 5 years. Funds for the Modeling the Causes of Hypoxia component of the Northern Gulf of Mexico Ecosystems and Hypoxia Assessment program will not exceed \$1,000,000. (2) It is anticipated that only one project will be awarded for this program component with project duration of 3 to 5 years. Funds for the Modeling the Impacts of Hypoxia component of the Northern Gulf of Mexico Ecosystems and Hypoxia Assessment program will be up to \$500,000 per project per year. (3) It is anticipated that 3 to 5 projects will be awarded for this program component with project duration of 3 to 5 years. Applicants are hereby given notice that funds have not yet been appropriated for this program. In no event will NOAA or the Department of Commerce be responsible for proposal preparation costs if this program fails to receive funding or is cancelled because of other agency priorities. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. Publication of this notice does not obligate NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds. If one incurs any costs prior to receiving an award agreement signed by an authorized NOAA official, one would do so solely at one's own risk of these costs not being included under the award. Publication of this notice does not obligate any agency to any specific award or to obligate any part of the entire amount of funds available. Recipients and subrecipients are subject to all Federal laws and agency policies, regulations and procedures applicable to Federal financial assistance awards.

Statutory Authority: For the Coral
Reef Ecosystem Studies From Science to
Conservation: Linking Coral Reefs,
Coastal Watersheds and their Human
Communities in the Pacific Islands
program the program authority is 16
U.S.C. 6403, for the Northern Gulf of
Mexico Ecosystems and Hypoxia
Assessment Program the program
authority is 33 U.S.C. 1442.
Catalog of Federal Domestic

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.478, Center for Sponsored Coastal Ocean Research—Coastal Ocean Program.

Research—Coastal Ocean Program.

Application Deadline: The deadline for receipt of proposals at the NCCOS/CSCOR office is 3 p.m., Eastern Time for

both of the programs. For the Coral Reef Ecosystem Studies proposals are due October 9, 2008. For the Northern Gulf of Mexico proposals are due October 20, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: Laura J.
Golden 1305 East-West Hwy. Routing
Code: N/SCI2, Building: SSMC4, Silver
Spring, MD 20910–3278

Information Contacts: Technical
Information: Program Managers contact
information can be found under each
program element listed in B. Program
Priorities of the FFO. Business
Management Information: Laurie
Golden, NCCOS/CSCOR Grants
Administrator, 301–713–3338/ext 151,
Internet: laurie.golden@noaa.gov.
Eligibility: Eligible applicants are

institutions of higher education, other non-profits, state, local, Indian Tribal Governments, commercial organizations and Federal agencies that possess the statutory authority to receive financial assistance. Please note that: (1) NCCOS/ CSCOR will not fund any Federal Full Time Employee (FTE) salaries, but will fund travel, equipment, supplies, and contractual personnel costs associated with the proposed work. (2) Researchers must be employees of an eligible entity listed above; and proposals must be submitted through that entity. Non-Federal researchers should comply with their institutional requirements for proposal submission. (3) Non-NOAA Federal applicants will be required to submit certifications or documentation showing that they have specific legal authority to receive funds from the Department of Commerce (DOC) for this research. (4) NCCOS/CSCOR will accept proposals that include foreign researchers as collaborators with a research who has met the above stated eligibility requirements. (5) Non-Federal researchers affiliated with NOAA-University Cooperative/Joint Institutes should comply with joint institutional requirements; they will be funded through grants either to their institutions or to joint institutes.

Cost Sharing Requirements: None.

Cost Sharing Hequirements: None. Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

5. FY 2009 California Bay Watershed Education and Training Program

Summary Description: The California B–WET grant program is a competitively based program that supports existing environmental education programs, fosters the growth of new programs, and encourages the development of partnerships among environmental education programs throughout the San Francisco Bay, Monterey Bay, and Santa Barbara Channel watersheds. Projects support organizations that provide students "meaningful" watershed educational experiences and teachers professional development opportunities in the area of environmental education related watersheds.

Funding Availability: This solicitation announces that approximately \$2,000,000 may be available in FY 2009 in award amounts to be determined by the proposals and available funds. About \$850,000 will be made available to the San Francisco Bay watershed area, about \$700,000 will be made available to the Monterey Bay watershed area, and about \$450,000 will be made available to the Santa Barbara Channel watershed area. The National Marine Sanctuary Program anticipates that approximately 35 grants will be awarded with these funds. The California B–WET Program should not be considered a long-term source of funds; applicants must demonstrate how ongoing programs, once initiated, will be sustained.

The National Marine Sanctuary Program anticipates that typical project awards for Meaningful Watershed Experiences and Professional Development in the Area of Environmental Education for Teachers will range from \$30,000 to \$60,000. Proposals will be considered for funds greater than the specified ranges if there is sufficient demonstration that the project requires additional funds and/or if the proposal includes multiple partners. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. The exact amount of funds that may be awarded will be determined in preaward negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds. If applicants incur any costs prior to an award being made, they do so at their own risk of not being reimbursed by the government. Notwithstanding verbal or written assurance that may have been received, there is no obligation on the part of NOAA to cover pre-award costs unless approved by the Grants Office as part of the terms when the award is made.

Statutory Authority: 33 U.S.C. 893 a(a).

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.429, Marine Sanctuary Program. Application Deadline: Proposals must

Application Deadline: Proposals mube received by 5 p.m. Pacific Daylight Time on October 6, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: Attn:
Seaberry Nachbar, B-WET Program
Manager, Monterey Bay National Marine
Sanctuary Office, 299 Foam Street,
Monterey, CA 93940.
Information Contacts: Please visit the

Information Contacts: Please visit the National Marine Sanctuaries CA B-WET Web site at: http://sanctuaries.noaa.gov/news/bwet/welcome.html or contact Seaberry Nachbar, Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary office, 299 Foam Street, Monterey, CA 93940, or by phone at 831–647–4201, or fax to 831–647–4250, or via Internet at seaberry.nachbar@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are K-through-12 public and independent schools and school systems, institutions of higher education, nonprofit organizations, state or local government agencies, and Indian tribal governments. The Department of Commerce/ National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (DOC/NOAA) is strongly committed to broadening the participation of historically black colleges and universities, Hispanic serving institutions, tribal colleges and universities, and institutions that service undeserved areas. The National Marine Sanctuary Program encourages proposals involving any of the above institutions.

Cost Sharing Requirements: No cost sharing is required under this program; however, the National Marine Sanctuary Program strongly encourages applicants applying for either area of interest to share as much of the costs of the award as possible. Funds from other Federal awards may not be considered matching funds. The nature of the contribution (cash versus in-kind) and the amount of matching funds will be taken into consideration in the review process with cash being the preferred method of contribution.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

#### 6. International Coral

Summary Description: The NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program, as authorized under the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, provides

matching grants of financial assistance for international coral reef conservation projects. The Program solicits proposals under four funding categories: (1) Promote Watershed Management in the Wider Caribbean, Brazil, and Bermuda; (2) Support Planning for Effective Marine Protected Area Management; (3) Encourage the Development of National Networks of Marine Protected Areas in the Wider Caribbean, Bermuda, Brazil, Southeast Asia, and the South Pacific; and (4) Promote Regional Socio-Economic Training and Monitoring in Coral Reef Management in the Wider Caribbean, Brazil, Bermuda, the Western Indian Ocean, the Red Sea, the South Pacific, South Asia, and Southeast Asia. Each funding category has specific applicant and project eligibility criteria.

Funding Availability: NOAA announces the availability of up to \$500,000 in FY 2009 to support grants and cooperative agreements under the International Coral Reef Grant Program. These funds will be used to support financial assistance awards under the program categories listed in section I.B. Program Priorities and III.C. Other Criteria that Affect Eligibility of the FFO. Applicants that are invited to submit a final application may be requested to revise award objectives work plans, or budgets prior to submittal of the final application. The amount of funds to be awarded and the final scope of activities will be determined in pre-award negotiations among the applicant, NOAA Grants Management Division (GMD) and relevant NOAA staff. Up to approximately \$500,000 may be available in FY 2009 to support grants and cooperative agreements under this program. Approximately \$75,000-\$100,000 may be allocated to each of the four project categories listed below with the following award ranges: 1. Watershed Management: \$30,000-\$50,000; 2. Planning for Effective Marine Protected Area Management: Single sites: Up to \$50,000; Multiple sites: Up to \$80,000; 3. MPA National Networks: \$40,000–\$50,000; 4. Regional Socio-Economic Monitoring projects: \$15,000-\$30,000 Pre- and final applications with requests over the limit of each category will NOT be accepted. Pre- and final applications must be submitted under only one of the above mentioned categories. Funding will be subject to the availability of federal appropriations. Support in outyears after FY 2009 is contingent upon the availability of funds. Applicants should never begin a project in expectation of funds under this program. The International Program Office reserves

the right to transfer any given proposal to another category within the International program if the proposal better addresses the criteria of another category.

category. Statutory Authority: Authority for the NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program is provided by Section 6403 (Coral Reef Conservation Program) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000 (16 U.S.C. 6401 et seq.). Catalog of Federal Domestic

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.463, Habitat Conservation.

Habitat Conservation.

Application Deadline: Preapplications must be received by NOAA
by 5 p.m., U.S. Eastern Time, on
Monday, November 3, 2008. Final
applications must be received by NOAA
by 5 p.m. U.S. Eastern Time, on Friday,
February. 13, 2009.

February. 13, 2009. Address for Submitting Proposals: 1. Pre-application Submission Information: Pre-applications may be submitted by surface mail or e-mail by 5 p.m., U.S. Eastern Time, November 3, 2008. Submissions by e-mail are preferred to coral.grants@noaa.gov. Acceptable electronic formats for narratives, attachments, and images are limited to Adobe Acrobat (.PDF), or Microsoft Word files. If submitting by surface mail, please include an electronic copy of the pre-application on CD. Federal financial assistance forms are NOT required to be submitted with the pre-application. If surface mail is selected, paper pre-applications must be submitted to: David Kennedy, NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Program Coordinator, Office of Response and Restoration, N/ORR, Room 10102, NOAA National Ocean Service, 1305 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910. Fax submittals will also be accepted for pre-applications (Fax: 301-713-4389). b. Please note that late applications cannot be considered under any circumstances including e-

mail transmission malfunctions.

Electronic files of pre-applications must arrive without viruses. If attachments cannot be opened due to a virus or they arrive with a virus, the pre-applications will be disqualified. You may call us at 301–713–3078 x218 before the deadline to ensure that your

pre-application arrived.

2. Final Application Submission
Information: Applicants who are invited
to submit a final application may be
required to make modifications or
revisions to the project and budget
narratives and must submit these
narratives with a Federal financial
assistance award application package
(federal forms described below). Only
applicants who submitted preapplications by the deadline will be

eligible to be considered for invitations to submit a final application by 5 p.m., U.S. Eastern Time, on February 13 2009. The applicant may submit the final application (narratives, federal forms, and supporting documentation) in one of two ways: Applications must be submitted through http:// www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: Scot Frew. NOAA/NOS International Program Office, 1315 East-West Highway, 5th Floor, N/IP, Room 5735, Silver Spring, MD 20910.

Applicants should consider the delivery time when submitting their pre- and final applications from international or remote areas. Late applications by any method cannot be accepted under any circumstances.

accepted under any circumstances.
Information Contacts: Technical point
of contact for International Coral Reef
Conservation is Scot Frew, NOAA/NOS
International Program Office, 301–713–
3078, extension 220 or e-mail at
scot.frew@noaa.gov.
Eligibility: Eligible applicants include

institutions of higher education, U.S. and international non-profit organizations, and commercial organizations. U.S. federal agencies and individuals are not eligible. For specific country eligibility per category, please refer to individual category descriptions in Section V of the Federal Funding Opportunity. The proposed work must be conducted at a non-U.S. site. Eligible countries are defined as follows: The Wider Caribbean includes the 37 States and territories that border the marine environment of the Gulf of Mexico, the Caribbean Sea, and the areas of the Atlantic Ocean adjacent thereto, and Brazil and Bermuda, but excluding areas under U.S. jurisdiction. The South Pacific Region includes South Pacific Regional Environment Program's Pacific island countries and territories, including the Federated States of Micronesia, Republic of Palau, and the Republic of the Marshall Islands, but excluding U.S. territories and four developed country members. South Asia includes India, Sri Lanka, the Maldives, Pakistan, and Bangladesh. Southeast Asia Region includes Brunei, Cambodia, Indonesia, Laos, Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore, Thailand, Timor-Leste, and Vietnam. The Western Indian Ocean Region includes Comoros, France (La Reunion), Kenya, Madagascar, Mauritius, Mozambique, Seychelles, the United Republic of Tanzania, and South Africa. The Red Sea Region includes five member countries of the Regional Organization for the Conservation of the Environment of the Red Sea and Gulf of

Aden (PERSGA): Djibouti, Egypt, Jordan, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and Vemen

and Yemen.

Cost Sharing Requirements: The
International Coral Grant Program is subject to the matching fund requirements described below. As per section 6403(b)(1) of the Coral Ree Conservation Act of 2000, Federal funds for any coral conservation project funded under this Program may not exceed 50 percent of the total cost of the projects. Therefore, any coral conservation project under this program requires a 1:1 match. Match can come from a variety of public and private sources and can include in-kind goods and services such as private boat use and volunteer labor. Federal sources cannot be considered for matching funds, but can be described in the budget narrative to demonstrate additional leverage. Applicants are permitted to combine contributions from multiple non-federal partners in order to meet the 1:1 match recommendation, as long as such contributions are not being used to match any other funds.

Applicants must specify in their proposal the source(s) of match and may be asked to provide letters of commitment to confirm stated match contributions. Applicants whose proposals are selected for funding will be bound by the percentage of cost sharing reflected in the award document signed by the NOAA Grants Officer. Applicants should be prepared to carefully document matching contributions for each project selected to be funded. As per section 6403(b)(2) of the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000, the NOAA Administrator may waive all or part of the matching requirement if the Administrator determines that the project meets the following two requirements: 1. No reasonable means are available through which an applicant can meet the matching requirement, and, 2. The probable benefit of such project outweighs the public interest in such matching requirement. In the case of waiver request, the applicant must provide a detailed justification explaining the need for the waiver including attempts to obtain sources of matching funds, how the benefit of the project outweighs the public interest in providing match, and any other extenuating circumstances preventing the availability of match. Match waiver requests including the appropriate justification should be submitted as part of the final application package. Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, and in accordance with 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d), the Program shall

waive any requirement for local matching funds for any project under \$200,000 (including in-kind contribution) to the governments of Insular Areas, defined as the jurisdictions of the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

Please Note: Eligible applicants choosing to apply 48 U.S.C. 1469a(d) should note the use of the waiver and the total amount of funds requested to be waived in the matching funds section of the respective pre- and final applications.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under the International
Coral Reef Grant program are not subject
to Executive Order 12372,
Intergovernmental Review of Federal
Programs.

#### NOAA's National Height Modernization Program

Summary Description: The purpose of this notice is to solicit proposals for cooperative agreements and/or grants between NOAA and partnering entities in the United States, implementing NOAA's National Height Modernization Program (NHMP) Plan. Proposals submitted in response to this announcement should contribute to the beneficial public outcomes associated with the five priority issues in this plan which consists of enhancing the vertical component of the National Spatial Reference System (NSRS); enabling users to access the vertical component of the NSRS; outreach and education regarding geospatial issues and activities as they relate to NHMP; capacity building and technology transfer as they relate to NHMP coordination, cooperation, and collaboration with other entities to accomplish common goals as they relate to NHMP. This competition is focused on the geography of the United States and its territories in response to NOAA's NHMP Regional Implementation Plan and subsequent congressional appropriations. The program priorities for this opportunity support NOAA's mission support goal of: Commerce and Transportation, Enable safe, secure, and seamless movement of goods and people in the United States transportation system. Priorities addressing this mission goal also frequently are found to support NOAA's other mission goals: Improve protection, restoration, and management of coastal and ocean resources through ecosystem-based management; increase understanding of climate variability and change; and improve accuracy and

timeliness of weather and water information.

Funding Availability: Total anticipated funding for all awards is approximately \$2,500,000 and is subject to the availability of FY 2009 appropriations. The anticipated federal funding per award (min-max) is approximately \$50,000 to \$1,200,000 per year. The anticipated number of awards ranges from 10 to 20, approximately, and will be adjusted based on available funding and quality of received proposals.

Statutory Authority: 33 U.S.C. 883a and 33 U.S.C. 883d.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.400, Geodetic Surveys and Services (Applications of the National Geodetic Reference System).

Application Deadline: Letters of Intent (LOIs) must be received by the National Ocean Service by 4 p.m. ET on August 1, 2008. Full proposals must be received no later than 4 p.m. ET, September 2, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals: A letter of intent (LOI) may be sent via email to Gilbert.Mitchell@noaa.gov. Insert FY 2009 National NHMP Program as the subject line of the e-mail containing the LOI. Applicants submitting multiple LOIs must use a unique project title for each LOI and may send all LOIs in one e-mail or in multiple e-mails. If hard copy LOIs are submitted, an original and two copies should be sent to the attention of Gilbert Mitchell at 1315 East-West Highway, N/NGS1, Room 9356, SSMC3, Silver Spring, MD 20910 contact him at 301-713-3228x114 or e-mail Glbert.Mitchell@NOAA.gov. Full proposal application packages must be submitted through Grants.gov. If an applicant does not have Internet access, one set of originals (signed) and two copies of the hard copy proposals and related forms should be mailed to the attention of Gilbert Mitchell at 1315 East-West Highway, N/NGS1, Room 9356, SSMC3, Silver Spring, MD 20910 contact him at 301–713–3228x114 No e-mail or fax copies will be accepted. Information Contacts: For

administrative questions, contact Gilbert Mitchell, NOAA NOS, SSMC3; 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910, or by phone at 301-713-3228 Extension 114, or by fax 301-713-4176, or via e-mail at Gilbert.Mitchell@noaa.gov. For technical questions regarding this announcement, contact Renee Shields, NOAA NOS SSMC3; 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910; or contact her by phone at 301-713-3231 Extension 115,

or by fax 301–713–4176, or via e-mail at

Renee.Shields@noaa.gov. Eligibility: Eligible funding applicants are institutions of higher education, state, local and Indian tribal governments.

Cost Sharing Requirements: There is

no requirement for cost sharing.

Intergovernmental Review: Funding applications under the National Ocean Service are subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs. It is the state agency responsibility to contact their state's Single Point of Contact (SPCO) to find out about and comply with the state's process under EO 12372. To assist the applicant, the names and addresses of the SPOCs are listed on the Office of Management and Budget's Web site http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

8. National Coastal and Estuarine Research and Technology Program

Summary Description: The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) seeks to establish a national estuarine research and technology program which operates in partnership with the National Estuarine Research Reserve System (NERRS). Funds will be used to conduct collaborative research and transform the best available science into practical innovative tools that coastal managers can use to detect, prevent, and reverse the impacts of coastal pollution and habitat degradation. Additionally, the program will provide coastal and estuarine managers a better understanding of what tools are available, how well they work, and how best to apply them to detect, prevent, and reverse the impacts of coastal

pollution and habitat degradation. Funding Availability: Funding is contingent upon the availability of Federal appropriations. NOAA's Estuarine Reserves Division anticipates up to \$5,232,000 will be available to fund a National Coastal and Estuarine Research and Technology Program under this competition. Applicants are hereby given notice that funds have not yet been appropriated for this program. In no event will NOAA or the Department of Commerce be responsible for proposal preparation costs if this program fails to receive funding or is cancelled because of other agency priorities. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to make awards for all qualified projects. Publication of this notice does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds. If one incurs any costs prior to receiving an award agreement signed by

an authorized NOAA official, one would do so solely at one's own risk of these costs not being included under the award. Recipients and subrecipients are subject to all Federal laws and agency policies, regulations and procedures applicable to Federal financial assistance awards.

Statutory Authority: Section 310 of the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 1456c.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.419, Coastal Zone Management

Administration Awards.

Application Deadline: Applications must be submitted no later than 5 p.m. (EDT) on September 9, 2008. No facsimile or electronic mail applications

will be accepted.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: Erica Seiden, 1305 East-West Highway, N/ORM5, SSMC4 10542, Silver Spring, MD 20910. Facsimile transmissions and electronic mail submission of full proposals will not be accepted.

Information Contacts: Technical Information: Erica Seiden, OCRM/ERD Project Manager, Erica.Seiden@noaa.gov, 301-563-1172. Business Management Information: Erica Seiden, OCRM/ERD Project Manager, Erica. Seiden@noaa.gov, 301-

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are non-Federal institutions of higher education, other non-profits, commercial organizations, and state and local governments that possess the statutory authority to receive financial assistance. Please note that: (1) The Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management, Estuarine Reserves Division (OCRM) ERD) will not fund any Federal Full Time Employee (FTE) salaries, but will fund travel, equipment, supplies, and contractual personnel costs associated with the proposed work. (2) Researchers must be employees of an eligible entity listed above; and proposals must be submitted through that entity. Non-Federal researchers should comply with their institutional requirements for proposal submission. (3) OCRM/ERD will accept proposals that include foreign researchers as collaborators with a researcher who has met the above stated eligibility requirements.

Cost Sharing Requirements: None. Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372. 'Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

 National Estuarine Research Reserve Graduate Research Fellowship Program FY2009

Summary Description: The National Estuarine Research Reserve System of NOAA announces the availability of graduate research fellowships. The National Estuarine Research Reserve System (NERRS) consists of estuarine areas of the United States and its territories which are designated and managed for research and educational purposes. Each reserve within the system is chosen to reflect regional differences and to include a variety of ecosystem types in accordance with the classification scheme of the national program as presented in 15 CFR part 921. Each reserve supports a wide range of beneficial uses of ecological, economic, recreational, and aesthetic values which are dependent upon the maintenance of a healthy ecosystem. The sites provide habitats for a wide range of ecologically and commercially important species of fish, shellfish, birds, and other aquatic and terrestrial wildlife. Each reserve has been designed to ensure its effectiveness as a conservation unit and as a site for longterm research and monitoring. As part of a national system, the reserves collectively provide an excellent opportunity to address research questions and estuarine management issues of national significance. For detailed descriptions of the sites, refer to the NERR Web site at http:// www.nerrs.noaa.gov/fellowship or contact the site staff.

Funding Availability: The Estuarine Reserves Division anticipates that 25 Graduate Research Fellowships will be competitively awarded to provide funding to qualified graduate students whose research occurs within the boundaries of at least one reserve. Minority students are encouraged to apply for these fellowships. The amount of the fellowship is \$20,000; at least 30% of total project cost match is required by the applicant (i.e. \$8,572 match for \$20,000 in federal funds for a total project cost of \$28,572).

Statutory Authority: Section 315 of the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended CZMA), 16 U.S.C. 1461, establishes the National Estuarine Research Reserve System (NERRS). 16 U.S.C. 1461(e)(1)(B) authorizes the Secretary of Commerce to make grants to any coastal state or public or private person for purposes of supporting research and monitoring within a National Estuarine Research Reserve that are consistent with the research guidelines developed under subsection (cl.)

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.420, Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves.

Application Deadline: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov no later than 11 p.m. (EST) November 1, 2008 or postmarked no later than November 1, 2008.

no later than November 1, 2008. Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov, unless an applicant does not have Internet access. In that case, hard copies with original signatures may be sent to: Alison Krepp, Graduate Research Fellowship Coordinator, NOAA Estuarine Reserves Division, 1305 East West Highway, N/ORM 5, SSMC 4 Station 10503 Silver Spring MD 20910.

Information Contacts: For questions regarding the program and application process, please contact Alison Krepp (301–713–3155 ext. 105) at NOAA/
Estuarine Reserves Division, 1305 East-West Highway, N/ORM 5, SSMC 4, Station 10503, Silver Spring, MD 20910 or via e-mail: Alison Krepp@noaa.gov, or fax: 301–713–4012. The program Web site can be accessed at http://www.nerrs.noaa.gov/fellowship. If the Web page does not provide sufficient information and Alison Krepp is unavailable, please contact Erica Seiden at (301) 713–3155 ext. 172 or erica.seiden@noaa.gov. For further information on specific research opportunities at National Estuarine Research Reserves, contact the site staff listed in Appendix I of the FFO.

Eligibility: Awards are normally made to the fellow's graduate institution through the use of a grant. However. institutions eligible to receive awards include institutions of higher education, other non-profits, commercial organizations, and state and local governments. All reserve staff are ineligible to submit an application for a fellowship under this announcement. Funds are expected to be available on a competitive basis to qualified graduate students for research within a reserve(s) leading to a graduate degree. Applicants must be admitted to or enrolled in a full-time master's or doctoral program at a U.S. accredited university in order to be eligible to apply. Applicants should have completed a majority of their graduate course work at the beginning of their fellowship and have an approved thesis research program. Minority students are encouraged to apply.

Cost Sharing Requirements:
Requested federal funds must be
matched by at least 30 percent of the
TOTAL cost, not the federal share, of
the project (i.e. \$8,572 match for
\$20,000 in federal funds for a total

project cost of \$28,572). Requested overhead costs and institutional fees that do not qualify as direct costs under fellowship awards are limited to 10% of the federal amount. Waived overhead costs may be used as match.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372,
"Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Applicants should contact their State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) to find out about and comply with the State's process under EO12372. The names and addresses of the SPOCs are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's Web site at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

 National Estuarine Research Reserve Land Acquisition and Construction Program FY 2009

Summary Description: This funding opportunity announces funding for land acquisition/construction awards. The National Estuarine Research Reserve System consists of estuarine areas of the Únited States and its territories which are designated and managed for research and educational purposes. Each reserve within the system is chosen to represent different bio-geographic regions and to include a variety of ecosystem types in accordance with the classification scheme of the national program as presented in 15 CFR part 921. Through the funding of designated reserve agencies and universities to undertake land acquisition and construction projects that support the NERRS purpose, NOAA will strengthen protection of key land and water areas; enhance long-term protection of the area for research and education; and provide for facility and exhibit construction.

Funding Availability: This funding opportunity announces that approximately \$6.89 million may be available to designated reserve agencies or universities through this announcement for fiscal year 2009, subject to availability of funding. It is anticipated that 5 to 23 total projects may be funded. Awards will be issued as competitive grants. It is anticipated that the awards will run for up to two years. In the past, funding for land acquisition/construction awards has ranged in amount from approximately \$50,000 to \$3 million.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the NERR program is provided by 16 U.S.C. 1461(e)(1)(A)(i),(ii), and (iii).

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.420, Coastal Zone Management Estuarine Research Reserves. Application Deadline: Complete grant applications must be received or postmarked by 5 p.m., Eastern Standard Time. November 30, 2008.

Time, November 30, 2008.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Applications must be submitted through
www.grants.gov, unless an applicant
does not have Internet access. In that
case, hard copies with original
signatures may be sent to: NOS/OCRM/
ERD, Nina Garfield, 1305 East-West
Highway, Room 10505, Silver Spring,
MD 20910.

Information Contacts: Administrative and Technical questions regarding the program and application process, please contact Nina Garfield, program coordinator, at NOAA/Estuarine Reserves Division, 1305 East-West Highway, N/ORM5, SSMC4, Station 10505, Silver Spring, MD 20910 or via phone: 301–563–1171 ext. 171, e-mail: contact Nina.Garfield@noaa.gov, or fax: 301–713–4363. The program Web site can be accessed at http://

www.ocrm.nos.noaa.gov/nerr.html.
Other questions should be directed to
Nina Garfield of ERD at 301–563–1171
ext. 171, or fax 301–713–4012, or via
Internet at Nina.Garfield@noaa.gov or
Laurie McGilvray at (301) 713–3155 ext.

158, laurie.mcgilvray@noaa.gov.
Eligibility: Eligible applicants are
NERR lead state agencies or universities
in coastal states. Eligible applicants
should have completed all requirements
as stated in the NERRS regulations at
Title 15—Commerce and Foreign Trade,
Chapter IX—National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration,
Department of Commerce, Part 921—
National Estuarine Research Reserve
System Regulations (15 CFR part 921)
http://nerrs.noaa.gov/
Background\_Regulations.html.

Cost Sharing Requirements: The amount of federal funds requested must be matched by the applicant: 30 percent total project match for construction awards and 50 percent total project match for land acquisition awards. Cash or in-kind contributions directly benefiting the project may be used to satisfy the matching requirements. If using Reserve land acquisition banked match, a list of the banked match must be included with the application. Applicants must identify all match sources and amounts equal to that requested above.

requested above. Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372,
"Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Applicants should contact their State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) to find out about and comply with the States process under EO12372. The names and addresses of the SPOCs

are listed in the Office of Management and Budgets Web site at http:// www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

Oceanic and Atmospheric Research (OAR)

1. Climate Program Office for FY 2009

Summary Description: NOAA'S Climate Mission Goal is to understand climate variability and change to enhance society's ability to plan and respond. The long-term climate efforts of NOAA are designed to develop a predictive understanding of variability and change in the global climate system, and to advance the application of this information in climate-sensitive sectors through a suite of process research, observations and modeling, and application and assessment activities. The NOAA Climate Program Office coordinates climate activities across all NOAA in fulfillment of NOAA's Climate Mission Goal. The Program partners with Federal, academic, private, and international research institutions and is a key contributing element of the U.S. Climate Change Science Program (CCSP).

Funding Availability: In FY 2007, approximately \$8M in first-year funding was available for 94 new awards. Similar funds and number of awards are anticipated in FY 2009. Please be advised that the number of new awards and funding levels will depend upon the final FY 2009 budget appropriations. It is anticipated that awards will be up to three years in length and cost between \$50,000 and \$200,000 per year. Federal funding for FY 2010 may be used to fund some awards submitted under this Competition. Current or previous grantees are eligible to apply for a new award that builds on, but does not replicate, activities covered in the current or previous award. Current grantees should not apply for supplementary funding through this announcement.

Statutory Authority: 49 U.S.C. 47720(b), 15 U.S.C. 2904, 15 U.S.C. 2931–2934.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.431, Climate and Atmospheric Research. Application Deadline: Full

Application Deadline: Full applications for all Competitions must be received by 5 p.m. Eastern Time, October 9, 2008. Letters of Intent for all Competitions, although not required, should be received by 5 p.m. Eastern Time, August 11, 2008. LOIs should be submitted by e-mail to the identified Competition Manager.

Address for Submitting Proposals: 1.

Address for Submitting Proposals: 1. Letter of Intent Submission LOIs should

be submitted by e-mail to the identified NOAA Competition Manager listed with each Competition in the Program Priorities section. If an applicant does not have Internet access, LOI hard copies may be sent to the Competition Managers. Hard copies should be sent to NOAA Climate Program Office (R/CP1), SSMC3, Room 12112, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910 or faxed to 301–713–0518. Please allow two weeks after receipt for a response. 2. Full Applications must be submitted through www.grants.gov. If an applicant does not have Internet access, the CPO Grants Manager Diane Brown should be contacted by mail at NOAA Climate Program Office (R/CP1), SSMC3, Room 12112, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910 for hard copy submission instructions. Please allow two weeks after receipt for a response.

Information Contacts: Please visit the CPO Web site for further information http://www.climate.noaa.gov/or contact the CPO Grants Manager, Diane Brown by mail (see Address above). Please allow up to two weeks after receipt for a response.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education, other nonprofits, commercial organizations, international organizations, and state, local and Indian tribal governments. Federal agencies or institutions are not eligible to receive Federal assistance under this notice.

Cost Sharing Requirements: None. Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of federal programs.

2. 2009 NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Marine Resource Economics

Summary Description: The Graduate Fellowship Program generally awards two new PhD fellowships each year to students who are interested in careers related to the development and implementation of quantitative methods for assessing the economics of the conservation and management of living marine resources. Fellows will work on thesis problems of public interest and relevance to NMFS under the guidance of NMFS mentors at participating NMFS Science Centers or Laboratories. The NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Marine Resource Economics meets NOAA's Mission goal of "Protect, Restore and Manage the Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources Through Ecosystem-Based Management.'

Funding Availability: The NMFS-Sea Grant Joint Graduate Fellowship Program in Marine Resource Economics expects to support two new fellowships for up to 2 years for each fellowship.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the Resource Économics Graduate Fellowship Program is provided by the following: 33 U.S.C. 1127(a). Catalog of Federal Domestic

Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.417, Sea

Grant Support.
Application Deadline: Applications must be received by 4 pm, Eastern Time February 20, 2009 by the National Sea Grant Office (NSGO). For applications submitted through www.grants.gov, a date and time receipt indication is included and will be the basis of determining timeliness. The State Sea Grant programs are encouraged to ask for applications from fellowship applicants a month before the due date to facilitate the entry of non-electronic applications into Grants.gov.

Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications from Sea Grant programs must be submitted through www.grants.gov. Facsimile transmission and electronic mail submission of applications will not be accepted.

Information Contacts: Contact Miguel Lugo, National Sea Grant College Program, 1315 East-West Highway Silver Spring, MD 20910; tel: (301) 734– 1075; e-mail: Miguel.Lugo@noaa.gov.

Eligibility: Prospective Fellows must be United States citizens. At the time of application, prospective Marine Resource Economics Fellows must be admitted to a PhD degree program in natural resource economics or a related field at an institution of higher education in the United States or its territories or submit a signed letter from the institution indicating provisional acceptance to a PhD degree program conditional on obtaining financial support such as this fellowship. Applications must be submitted by the institution of higher education, which may be any such institution in the United States or its territories.

Cost Sharing Requirements: Of the \$38,500 award, 50 percent (\$19,250) will be contributed by NMFS, 33  $\frac{1}{3}$ percent (\$12,833) by the National Sea Grant Office (NSGO), and 16 % percent (\$6,417) by the institution of higher education as the required 50 percent match of NSGO funds.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372. Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

3. 2009 NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Population Dynamics

Summary Description: The Graduate Fellowship Program generally awards two new PhD fellowships each year to

students who are interested in careers related to the development and implementation of quantitative methods for assessing the economics of the conservation and management of living marine resources. Fellows will work on thesis problems of public interest and relevance to NMFS under the guidance of NMFS mentors at participating NMFS Science Centers or Laboratories. The NMFS-Sea Grant Fellowships in Population Dynamics meets NOAA's Mission goal of "Protect, Restore and Manage the Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources Through Ecosystem-Based

Management."
Funding Availability: The Graduate
Fellowship Program awards at least two
new PhD fellowships each year to students who are interested in careers related to the population dynamics of living marine resources and the development and implementation of quantitative methods for assessing their status. The award for each Fellowship. contingent upon the availability of Federal funds, will be a multi-vear cooperative agreement in the amount of \$38,500 per year for up to three years This involvement includes serving for 10–20 days aboard a research or commercial vessel during a scientific survey or experimental activity.
Additionally, the Fellow may work on his/her thesis research or related activity at a participating NMFS facility. The Fellow's work will be overseen by a NMFS mentor who will provide

advice and guidance.

Statutory Authority: Authority for the Population Dynamics Graduate Fellowship Program is provided by the following: 33 U.S.C. 1127(a). Catalog of Federal Domestic

Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.417, Sea

Grant Support.

Application Deadline: Applications must be received by 4 p.m., Eastern Time February 20, 2009 by the National Sea Grant Office (NSGO). For applications submitted through Grants.gov APPLY, a date and time receipt indication is included and will be the basis of determining timeliness. The State Sea Grant programs are encouraged to ask for applications from fellowship applicants a month before the due date to facilitate the entry of non-electronic applications into

Grants.gov. Address for Submitting Proposals: Applications from Sea Grant programs must be submitted through www.grants.gov. Facsimile transmission and electronic mail submission of

applications will not be accepted. Information Contacts: Contact Miguel Lugo, National Sea Grant College Program, 1315 East-West Highway,

Silver Spring, MD 20910; tel: (301) 734-

1075; e-mail: Miguel.Lugo@noaa.gov. Eligibility: Prospective Fellows must be United States citizens. At the time of application, prospective Population Dynamics Fellows must be admitted to a PhD degree program in population dynamics or a related field such as applied mathematics, statistics, or quantitative ecology at an institution of higher education in the United States or its territories, or submit a signed letter from the institution indicating provisional acceptance to a PhD degree program conditional on obtaining financial support such as this fellowship. Applications must be submitted by the institution of higher education, which may be any such institution in the United States or its

Cost Sharing Requirements: Of the \$38,500 award, 50 percent (\$19,250) will be contributed by NMFS, 33 1/3 percent (\$12,833) by the National Sea Grant Office (NSGO), and 16 % percent (\$6,417) by the institution of higher education as the required 50 percent

match of NSGO funds.

Intergovernmental Review:
Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal

4. 2010 Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship

Summary Description: This notice announces that applications may be submitted for the Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowship (Knauss Fellowship). The Knauss Fellowship is a program initiated by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) National Sea Grant Office (NSGO), in fulfilling its broad educational responsibilities and legislative mandate of the Sea Grant Act, to provide educational experience in the policies and processes of the Legislative and Executive Branches of the Federal Government to graduate students in marine and aquatic-related fields. The Knauss Fellowship meets NOAA's Mission goal of Protect, Restore and Manage the Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources Through Ecosystem-Based

Management. Funding Availability: The SGCP program receives and administers the overall cooperative agreement of \$44,000 per student on behalf of each Fellow selected from their program. Of this amount, the local Sea Grant program provides \$34,000 to each Fellow for stipend and living expenses (per diem). \$8,000 will be used to cover mandatory health insurance for the

Fellow and moving expenses. Any remaining funds of the \$8,000 shall be used for the fellow during the Fellowship year, first to satisfy academic degree-related activities, and second for Fellowship-related activities. Finally, up to \$2,000 from the total \$44,000 can be used to cover placement week costs. Indirect costs are not allowable from the Federal funds either for the Fellowships or for any costs associated with the Fellowships including the \$2,000 budgeted for placement week. These costs, though, can be denoted as matching funds. During the Fellowship, the host may provide supplemental funds for workrelated travel by the Fellow. The SGCP awards 30-50 agreements each year. Not less than 30 applicants will be selected, of which the selected applicants assigned to the Congress maybe limited to 10.

Statutory Authority: 33 U.S.C. 1127(b).

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.417, Sea Grant Support.

Application Deadline: Applications from prospective fellows to the State Sea Grant College Programs (SGCP) are due February 20, 2009. Contact your state Sea Grant program (see IV.A. of the Federal Funding Opportunity for program contact information) for information on deadlines. Selected applications from the sponsoring SGCP are to be received in the National Sea Grant Office (NSGO) through Grants.gov no later than 5 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) on April 03, 2009. For applications submitted through Grants.gov, a date and time receipt indication is included and will be the basis of determining timeliness.

Address for Submitting Proposals:
Eligible graduate students must submit applications to the SGCP. The addresses and contact information for each SGCP can be found at http://www.seagrant.noaa.gov/other/programsdirectors.html. The addresses can also be received from Miguel Lugo, Knauss Fellowship Program Manager, National Sea Grant College Program, 1315 East-West Highway, R/SG, Rm 11718, Silver Spring, MD 20910. After the State Sea Grant Program review, selected applications from the sponsoring SGCP must be submitted through www.grants.gov. SGCP without Internet access may send hard copy proposals to Miguel Lugo at the above address.

Information Contacts: Contact Miguel Lugo, Knauss Fellowship Program Manager, National Sea Grant College Program, 1315 East-West Highway, R/SG, Rm 11718, Silver Spring, MD 20910; tel: (301) 734-1077 x1075.

Eligibility: Any student, regardless of citizenship, who, on February 20, 2009, is in a graduate or professional program in a marine or aquatic-related field at a United States accredited institution of higher education in the United States or U.S. Territories may apply.

Cost Sharing Requirements: There will be the one-third required cost share of the total cost of the award for those applicants selected as legislative fellows.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

5. FY 2009 Joint Hurricane Testbed

Summary Description: The Office of Oceanic and Atmospheric Research (OAR), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), is soliciting LOIs (Letters of Intent) under the United States Weather Research Program (USWRP), as administrated by the USWRP Joint Hurricane Testbed (JHT). This notice also provides guidelines for the submission of full proposals. This notice describes opportunities and application procedures for the transfer of relevant research and technology advances into tropical cyclone analysis and forecast operations. This notice calls for researchers to submit proposals to test and evaluate, and modify if necessary, in a quasi-operational environment, their own scientific and technological research applications. Projects satisfying metrics for success and operational constraints may be selected for operational implementation by the operational center(s) after the completion of the JHT-funded work. The period of the award is from one to two years. This opportunity addresses the NOAA mission goal of "Serving Society's Needs for Weather and Water Information.

Funding Availability: The estimate for total JHT funding that will be available in FY 2009 is \$1,250,000, which will likely be used to fund 10–15 new projects. Award amounts for previous JHT grants have been mostly between \$50,000 and \$200,000 per year. A similar range is expected for this announcement. Initial and renewal funding of any JHT proposals is contingent upon availability of these funds. In no event will NOAA or the Department of Commerce be responsible for proposal preparation costs.

Statutory Authority: 49 U.S.C.

Statutory Authority: 49 U.S.C. 44720(b), 33 U.S.C. 883d.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.431, Climate and Atmospheric Research.

Application Deadline: Letters of Intent (LOIs) submitted by Principal Investigators (PIs) must be received no later than 5 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) on 31 July 2008. LOIs received after the deadline will not be reviewed, but in such cases PIs are still permitted to submit a full proposal. Response letters will be sent from NOAA no later than 22 September 2008. Full proposals must be received no later than 5 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time (EDT) on 30 October 2008. Full proposals received after the deadline will not be considered for funding.

for funding.

Address for Submitting Proposals: Letters of Intent (LOs) should be submitted to the JHT Director-Dr. Jiann-Gwo Jiing-preferably by e-mail at: Jiann-Gwo.Jiing@noaa.gov. Those without e-mail access should send a printed copy to: Dr. Jiann-Gwo Jiing, Director, Joint Hurricane Testbed, Tropical Prediction Center, 11691 SW. 17th Street, Miami, FL 33165. Full proposal packages must be submitted through the www.grants.gov Web site. For those without Internet access or for federal agency submissions, hard copy proposal packages with original signatures should be addressed to Dorothy Fryar, DOC/NOAA, Office of Weather & Air Quality Research, Routing Code R/WA, 1315 East-West Highway, Room 11209, Silver Spring, MD 20910. Ms. Fryar's phone number is 301-734-1179.

Information Contacts: Please visit the Joint Hurricane Testbed Web site for further information at: http://www.nhc.noaa.gov/jht/index.shtml or contact Dr. Jiann-Gwo Jiing, Director, Joint Hurricane Testbed, Tropical Prediction Center, 11691 SW. 17th Street, Miami, FL 33165, phone (305) 229–4443, or via e-mail at Jiann-Gwo.Jiing@noaa.gov. Any technical questions addressed by Dr. Jiing (or his authorized representative) about this JHT funding opportunity and the answers will be posted on the JHT Web site.

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education; other nonprofits; commercial organizations; foreign governments; organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments; international organizations; state, local and Indian tribal governments; and Federal agencies. Applications from non-Federal and Federal applicants will be competed against each other.

Cost Sharing Requirements: No cost sharing is required under this program.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs.

6. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus—Education

Summary Description: In prior years, OE has funded the development of educational products to enable teachers to bring NOAA science into classrooms throughout the country. With this announcement, OE is seeking proposals that will facilitate the use of NOAA science in formal and informal education environments by extending the use of existing OE education products, located on its Web site http:// oceanexplorer.noaa.gov, in school districts and other learning centers throughout the country. OE is seeking pre-proposals and full proposals to support its mission, consistent with NOAA's Strategic Plan (http:// www.nrc.noaa.gov), to further ocean science education and ocean literacy. It is anticipated that a total of approximately \$300,000 will be available through this Ocean Exploration Education announcement. Only ocean education proposals will be funded, any other kind of project will not be reviewed. Applicants are encouraged to visit the Ocean Explorer Web site (http:// www.oceanexplorer.noaa.gov) to familiarize themselves with past and present OE-funded activities

Funding Availability: In anticipation of the FY09 President's Budget, OE anticipates a total of approximately \$300,000 will be available through this Ocean Exploration Education announcement. Depending on the quality and quantity of proposals received, a minimum of six projects are expected to be funded, resulting in an average award level of approximately \$50,000. The OE Director may hold-over select proposals submitted for 2009 funding for consideration in 2010. The amount of funding available through this announcement is subject to the final FY09 appropriation for Ocean Exploration. Publication of this announcement does not obligate NOAA to fund any specific project or to obligate all or any part of available funds. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to initiate or continue research activities where funding has been recommended by OE. The exact amount of funds that OE may recommend be granted will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Future opportunities for

submitting proposals may be available and will depend on OE funding levels.

Statutory Authority: 33 U.S.C. 883d. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.460, Special Oceanic and Atmospheric Projects.

Ápplication Deadline: Completed preproposals are required for all categories and must be received by 5 p.m. (EDT) on August 29, 2008. Full proposal submissions must be received by 5 p.m. (EDT) on October 21, 2008. Applications received after the above deadlines will not be considered.

Address for Submitting Proposals: Pre-proposal submissions can be either by e-mail (preferred, send to (OAR.OE.FAQ@noaa.gov) or by hard-copy (see address below). If by e-mail, please put your last name in the subject heading along with the words OE Pre-proposal, e.g., "Smith OE Pre-proposal." Adobe PDF format is preferred. No facsimile pre-proposals will be accepted. Full proposal submissions must be through Grants.gov, except for those non-Federal applicants without Internet access and Federal applicants, who may submit hard copies to ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado, Proposal Manager, NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration & Research, SSMC3, 10th Floor, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. (see Address below.) No e-mail or facsimile proposal submissions will be accepted.

Information Contacts: For further information contact the NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration at (301) 734-1015 or submit inquiries via e-mail to the Frequently Asked Questions address: OAR.OE.FAQ@noaa.gov.; e-mail inquiries should include the Principal Investigator's name in the subject heading. Inquiries can be mailed to: ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado, NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration, 1315 East-West Highway, SSMC3, 10th Floor, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. Eligibility: Eligible applicants are

institutions of higher education; other nonprofits; commercial organizations; foreign governments; organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments; international organizations; state, local and Indian tribal governments; and Federal agencies. PLEASE NOTE: Before non-NOAA Federal applicants may be funded, they must demonstrate that they have legal authority to receive funds from another Federal agency in excess of their appropriation. Because this announcement is not proposing to procure goods or services from applicants, the Economy Act (31 U.S.C. 1535) is not an appropriate legal basis.

Cost Sharing Requirements: Cost-

sharing is not required.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372, 'Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Applicants must contact their State's Single Point of Contact (SPOC) to find out about and comply with the State's process under EO 12372. The names and addresses of the SPOC's are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's Web site: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/

7. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus-Marine Archaeology

spoc.html.

Summary Description: Proposals for exploration and discovery of significant maritime heritage sites are the priority. Submerged, previously subaerial, landscapes, shipwrecks, and other maritime cultural sites are typical focus subjects of the program. Proposals will emphasize the early phases of field archaeology: searching, locating, evaluating or inventorying sites. This Announcement does not invite proposals to support later phases of archaeological research, such as intensive site excavations, and major conservation projects. All applicants must convincingly describe: The archaeological significance of their site(s), and their importance to human history; how their research fits within the realm of exploration; why their methodologies are innovative and make the most economical use of current marine technology. OE is seeking pre-proposals and full proposals to support its mission, consistent with NOAA's Strategic Plan (http:// www.nrc.noaa.gov), to search, investigate, and document marine archaeological resources. OE is seeking proposals for exploration and discovery of significant maritime heritage sites, including submerged, previously subaerial, landscapes, shipwrecks, aircraft, and other maritime cultural sites. Competitive OE proposals will be bold, innovative and interdisciplinary in their approach and objectives Proposals will emphasize the early phases of field archaeology: searching, locating, evaluating or inventorying sites. Marine Archaeology projects may be conducted in any of the world's oceans, coasts or Great Lakes regions, on any suitable platform, vessel or other charter. It is anticipated that a total of approximately \$400,000 will be available through this announcement. Only marine archaeology proposals will be funded. Any other kind of project will not be reviewed. Applicants are encouraged to visit the Ocean Explorer

Web site (http:// www.oceanexplorer.noaa.gov) to familiarize themselves with past and present OE-funded activities Background on how to apply and the required proposal cover sheets are accessible through the OE Office Web site at http://www.explore.noaa.gov/ opportunity/welcome.html. The program priorities for this opportunity support NOAAs mission support goal of: Ecosystems—Protect, Restore, and Manage Use of Coastal and Ocean Manage use of Coasta and Ocean Resources through Ecosystem-Based Management. Full proposal submissions for non-Federal applicants must be submitted through Grants.gov. Federal applicants or applicants without Internet access may submit hard-copies to: ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado, Proposal Manager, NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration & Research, SSMC III, 10th Floor, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910. No E-mail or facsimile full proposal submissions will be accepted.

Funding Availability: In anticipation of the FY09 President's Budget, OE anticipates a total of approximately \$400,000 will be available through this announcement for Marine Archaeology. OE anticipates supporting approximately four awards through this solicitation, averaging \$100,000. The OE Director may hold-over select proposals submitted for 2009 funding for consideration in 2010. The amount of funding available through this announcement is subject to the final FY09 appropriation for Ocean Exploration. Publication of this announcement does not obligate NOAA to fund any specific project or to obligate all or any part of available funds. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to initiate or continue research activities where funding has been recommended by OE. The exact amount of funds that OE may recommend be granted will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Future opportunities for submitting proposals may be available and will depend on OE funding levels.

Statutory Authority: 33 U.S.C. 883d. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.460, Special Oceanic and Atmospheric Projects

Application Deadline: Completed preproposals are required for all categories and must be received by 5 p.m. (EDT) on August 29, 2008. Full proposal submissions must be received by 5 p.m. (EDT) on October 21, 2008. Applications received after the above deadlines will not be considered.

Address for Submitting Proposals: Pre-proposal submissions can be either by E-mail (preferred, send to OAR.OE.FÂQ@noaa.gov) or by hardcopy (send three copies to the mailing address below). If by E-mail, please put your last name in the subject heading along with the words OER Pre-proposal, e.g., "Smith OER Pre-proposal." Adobe PDF format is preferred. No facsimile pre-proposals will be accepted. Full proposal submissions for non-Federal applicants must be submitted through Grants.gov. Federal applicants or applicants without Internet access may submit hard-copies to: ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado, Proposal Manager, NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration & Research, SSMC III, 10th Floor, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, MD 20910. No E-mail or facsimile full proposal submissions will be accepted.

Information Contacts: For further information contact the NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration at (301) 734-1015 or submit inquiries via E-mail to the Frequently Asked Questions address: oar.oe.FAQ@noaa.gov.; E-mail inquiries should include the Principal Investigator's name in the subject heading. Inquiries can be mailed to ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado (Proposal Manager), NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration, 1315 East-West Highway, SSMC3, 10th Floor, Silver Spring, MD

Eligibility: Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education; other nonprofits; commercial organizations; foreign governments; organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments; international organizations; state, local and Indian tribal governments; and Federal agencies. PLEASE NOTE: Before non-NOAA Federal applicants may be funded, they must demonstrate that they have legal authority to receive funds from another Federal agency in excess of their appropriation. Because this announcement is not proposing to procure goods or services from applicants, the Economy Act (31 U.S.C. 1535) is not an appropriate legal basis. Cost Sharing Requirements: Cost-

sharing is not required.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Applicants must contact their State's Single Point of Contact (SPOC) to find out about and comply with the State's process under EO 12372. The names and addresses of the SPOC's are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's Web site: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/ spoc.html.

8. FY 2009 Ocean Exploration Omnibus-Ocean Exploration

Summary Description: OE is seeking pre-proposals and full proposals to support its mission, consistent with NOAA's Strategic Plan (http:// www.nrc.noaa.gov), to search, investigate, and document poorlyknown and unknown areas of the ocean and Great Lakes through interdisciplinary exploration, and to advance and disseminate knowledge of the ocean environment and its physical. chemical, and biological resources Competitive OE proposals will be bold, innovative and interdisciplinary in their approach to Ocean Exploration. NOAA OE anticipates a total of approximately \$1,400,000 including costs for ship and submersible assets will be available through this announcement. Only exploratory proposals will be funded, any other kind of project will not be reviewed. Applicants are encouraged to visit the Ocean Explorer Web site (http://www.oceanexplorer.noaa.gov) to familiarize themselves with past and present OE-funded activities Background on how to apply and the required proposal cover sheets are accessible through the OE Office Web site at http://www.explore.noaa.gov. The program priorities for this opportunity support NOAA's mission support goal of: Ecosystems-Protect, Restore, and Manage Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources through Ecosystem-Based Management. Pre-proposal submissions can be either by E-mail (preferred, send to OAR.OE.FAQ@noaa.gov or by hard-copy (send three copies to the mailing address below). If by E-mail, please put your last name in the subject heading along with the words OER Pre-proposal, e.g., "Smith OER Pre-proposal." Adobe e.g., "Smith OER Pre-proposal. Adout pre-proposals will be accepted. Full proposal submissions for non-Federal applicants must be submitted through Grants.gov. Federal applicants or applicants without Internet access may submit hard-copies to: ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado, Proposal Manager, NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration & Research, SSMC III, 10th Floor, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. No E-mail or facsimile full proposal submissions will be accepted.
Funding Availability: In anticipation

of the FY09 President's Budget, OE anticipates a total of approximately \$1,400,000 will be available through this announcement. Depending on the quality and quantity of proposals received, OE anticipates supporting approximately 4 awards through this solicitation, resulting in an average

award level of approximately \$350,000. The OE Director may hold-over select proposals submitted for 2009 funding for consideration in 2010. The amount of funding available through this announcement is subject to the final FY09 appropriation for Ocean Exploration. Publication of this announcement does not obligate NOAA to fund any specific project or to obligate all or any part of available funds. There is no guarantee that sufficient funds will be available to initiate or continue research activities where funding has been recommended by OE. The exact amount of funds that OE may recommend be granted will be determined in pre-award negotiations between the applicant and NOAA representatives. Future opportunities for submitting proposals may be available and will depend on OE funding levels.

Statutory Authority: 33 U.S.C. 883d. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.460, Special Oceanic and Atmospheric Projects

Application Deadline: Completed preproposals are required for all categories and must be received by 5 p.m. (EDT) on August 29, 2008. Full proposal submissions must be received by 5 p.m. (EDT) on October 21, 2008. Applications received after the above deadlines will

not be considered.

Address for Submitting Proposals: Pre-proposal submissions can be either by E-mail (preferred, send to OAR.OE.FAQ@noaa.gov or by hardcopy (send three copies to the mailing address below). If by E-mail, please put your last name in the subject heading along with the words OER Pre-proposal, e.g., "Smith OER Pre-proposal." Adobe PDF format is preferred. No facsimile pre-proposals will be accepted. Full proposal submissions for non-Federal applicants must be submitted through Grants.gov. Federal applicants or applicants without Internet access may submit hard-copies to: ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado, Proposal Manager, NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration & Research, SSMC III, 10th Floor, 1315 East-West Highway, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. No E-mail or facsimile full proposal submissions will be

accepted. Information Contacts: For further information contact the NOAA Office of Ocean Exploration at (301) 734–1015 or submit inquiries via E-mail to the Frequently Asked Questions address: OAR.OE.FAQ@noaa.gov. E-mail inquiries should include the Principal Investigator's name in the subject heading. Inquiries can be mailed to: ATTN: Dr. Nicolas Alvarado (Proposal Manager) NOAA Office of Ocean

Exploration 1315 East-West Highway SSMC3, 10th Floor, Silver Spring, Maryland 20010

Maryland 20910. Eligible applicants are institutions of higher education; other nonprofits; commercial organizations; foreign governments; organizations under the jurisdiction of foreign governments; international organizations; state, local and Indian tribal governments; and Federal agencies. PLEASE NOTE: Before non-NOAA Federal applicants may be funded, they must demonstrate that they have legal authority to receive funds from another Federal agency in excess of their appropriation. Because this announcement is not proposing to procure goods or services from applicants, the Economy Act (31 U.S.C. 1535) is not an appropriate legal basis. Cost Sharing Requirements: Cost-

Cost Sharing Requirements: Costsharing is not required. Intergovernmental Review:

Applications under this program are subject to Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs." Applicants must contact their State's Single Point of Contact (SPOC) to find out about and comply with the State's process under EO 12372. The names and addresses of the SPOC's are listed in the Office of Management and Budget's Web site: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants/spoc.html.

#### IV. NOAA Non-Competitive Project

The following entry provides the description and requirements of NOAA's noncompetitive project.

1. NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program—Coral Reef Ecosystem Besearch Grants

Summary Description: The NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grant Program announces that it is providing funding to the NOAA Undersea Research Program (NURP) Centers for: the Southeastern U.S., Florida, and Gulf of Mexico Region, the Southeast U.S. and Gulf of Mexico Center; and the Hawaii and Western Pacific Region, the Hawaii Undersea Research Laboratory, to administer two external, competitive coral reef ecosystem research grants programs. Research supported through these programs will address priority information needs identified by coral reef ecosystem managers and scientists. Broad coral reef research priorities supported through these programs may include research on coral disease and bleaching, fisheries population dynamics and ecology, coral reef restoration and mitigation approaches, effects of anthropogenic stressors on benthic invertebrates, impacts and

spread of invasive species, and evaluation of management actions and strategies. Specific priorities within these broad areas, and geographic preferences, will be indicated in each NURP Center's request for proposals. The NURP Center external coral reef research grants programs are part of the NOAA Coral Reef Conservation Grants Program under the Coral Reef Conservation Act of 2000. The program priorities for this opportunity support NOAA's mission support goal of: Ecosystems—Protect, Restore, and Manage Use of Coastal and Ocean Resources through Ecosystem-Based Management.

Funding Availabilty: Approximately \$600,000 may be available in FY 2009 to support awards under this program. Statutory Authority: Statutory

Statutory Authority: Statutory authority for this program is provided under 16 U.S.C. 6403. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.430,

Assistance (CFDA) Number: 11.430, National Undersea Research Program. Information Contact: Kimberly Puglise, 301–734–1007 or E-mail at kimberly.puglise@noaa.gov. Announcements requesting proposals will be announced on: http://www.uncw.edu/nurc, for the NURP Center for the Southeastern U.S. and the Gulf of Mexico; on http://www.soest.hawaii.edu/HURL, for the NURP Center for Hawaii and the Western Pacific, the Hawaii Undersea Research Laboratory.

Cost Sharing Requirements: The awards require a 1:1 federal to nonfederal match.

Intergovernmental Review: Applications under this program are not subject to Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs."

#### Limitation of Liability

Funding for programs listed in this notice is contingent upon the availability of Fiscal Year 2009 appropriations. Applicants are hereby given notice that funds have not yet been appropriated for the programs listed in this notice. In no event will NOAA or the Department of Commerce be responsible for proposal preparation costs if these programs fail to receive funding or are cancelled because of other agency priorities. Publication of this announcement does not oblige NOAA to award any specific project or to obligate any available funds.

#### Universal Identifier

Applicants should be aware that, they are required to provide a Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number during the application process. See the October 30, 2002 Federal Register, (67 FR 66177) for additional information. Organizations can receive a DUNS number at no cost by calling the dedicated toll-free DUNS Number request line at 1–866–705–5711 or via the Internet http://www.dunandbradstreet.com.

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)

NOAA must analyze the potential environmental impacts, as required by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), for applicant projects or proposals which are seeking NOAA federal funding opportunities. Detailed information on NOAA compliance with NEPA can be found at the following NOAA NEPA Web site: http:// www.nepa.noaa.gov/, including our NOAA Administrative Order 216-6 for NEPA, http://www.nepa.noaa.gov/ NAO216—6—TOC.pdf, NEPA Questionnaire, http:// www.nepa.noaa.gov/questionnaire.pdf, and the Council on Environmental Quality implementation regulations, http://ceq.eh.doe.gov/nepa/regs/ceq/ toc-ceq.htm. Consequently, as part of an applicant's package, and under their description of their program activities, applicants are required to provide detailed information on the activities to be conducted, locations, sites, species and habitat to be affected, possible construction activities, and any environmental concerns that may exist (e.g., the use and disposal of hazardous or toxic chemicals, introduction of nonindigenous species, impacts to endangered and threatened species, aquaculture projects, and impacts to coral reef systems). In addition to providing specific information that will serve as the basis for any required impact analyses, applicants may also be requested to assist NOAA in drafting of an environmental assessment, if NOAA determines an assessment is required. Applicants will also be required to cooperate with NOAA in identifying feasible measures to reduce or avoid any identified adverse environmental impacts of their proposal. The failure to do so shall be grounds for not selecting an application. In some cases if additional information is required after an application is selected, funds can be withheld by the Grants Officer under a special award condition requiring the recipient to submit additional environmental compliance information sufficient to enable NOAA to make an assessment on any impacts that a project may have on the environment.

Compliance With Department of Commerce Bureau of Industry and Security Export

Administration Regulations (a) This clause applies to the extent that this financial assistance award involves access to export-controlled information or technology. (b) In performing this financial assistance award, the recipient may gain access to export-controlled information or technology. The recipient is responsible for compliance with all applicable laws and regulations regarding export-controlled information and technology, including deemed exports. The recipient shall establish and maintain throughout performance of the financial assistance award effective export compliance procedures at non-NOAA facilities. At a minimum, these export compliance procedures must include adequate controls of physical, verbal, visual, and electronic access to export-controlled information and technology. (c) Definitions (1) Deemed export. The Export Administration Regulations (EAR) define a deemed export as any release of technology or source code subject to the EAR to a foreign national, both in the United States and abroad. Such release is "deemed" to be an export to the home country of the foreign national. 15 CFR 734.2(b)(2)(ii). (2) Export-controlled information and technology. Export-controlled information and technology is information and technology subject to the EAR (15 CFR parts 730 et seq.), implemented by the DOC Bureau of Industry and Security, or the International Traffic I Arms Regulations (ITAR) (22 CFR parts 120-130) implemented by the Department of State, respectively. This includes, but is not limited to, dual-us items, defense articles and any related assistance, services, software or technical data as defined in the EAR and ITAR. (d) The recipient shall control access to all export-controlled information and technology that it possesses or that comes into its possession in performance of a financial assistance award, to ensure that access is restricted, or licensed, as required by applicable Federal laws, Executive Orders, and/or regulations. (e) Nothing in the terms of this financial assistance award is intended to change, supersede, or waive and of the requirements of applicable Federal laws, Executive Orders or regulations. (f) The recipient shall include this clause, including this paragraph (f), in all lower tier transactions (subawards, contracts, and subcontracts) under the financial assistance award that may involve

access to export-controlled information technology.

NOAA implementation of Homeland Security Presidential Directive—12

If the performance of a financial assistance award, if approved by NOAA, requires recipients to have physical access to Federal premises for more than 180 days or access to a Federal information system, any items or services delivered under a financial assistance award shall comply with the Department of Commerce personal identity verification procedures that implement Homeland Security Presidential Directive—12, FIPS PUB 201, and the Office of Management and Budget Memorandum M-05-24. The recipient shall insert this clause in all subawards or contracts when the subaward recipient or contractor is required to have physical access to a Federally controlled facility or access to a Federal information system. The Department of Commerce Pre-

The Department of Commerce Pre-Award Notification Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements.

The Department of Commerce Pre-Award Notification Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements contained in the Federal Register notice of February 11, 2008 (73 FR 7696) are applicable to this solicitation.

#### Paperwork Reduction Act

This document contains collection-of-information requirements subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA). The use of Standard Forms 424, 424A, 424B, 424C, 424D, and SF-LLL has been approved by OMB under the respective control numbers 4040–0004, 0348–0044, 4040–0007, 0348–0041, 4040–0009, and 0348–0046. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no person is required to respond to, nor shall any person be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with, a collection of information subject to the requirements of the PRA unless that collection of information displays a currently valid OMB control number.

#### Executive Order 12866

This notice has been determined to be not significant for purposes of Executive Order 12866. Executive Order 13132 (Federalism). It has been determined that this notice does not contain policies with Federalism implications as that term is defined in Executive Order

Administrative Procedure Act/ Regulatory Flexibility Act

Prior notice and an opportunity for public comment are not required by the Administrative Procedure Act or any other law for rules concerning public property, loans, grants, benefits, and contracts (5 U.S.C. 553(a)(2)). Because notice and opportunity for comment are not required pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 553 or any other law, the analytical

requirements of the Regulatory Flexibility Act (5 U.S.C. 601 et seq.) are inapplicable. Therefore, a regulatory flexibility analysis has not been prepared.

Dated: July 3, 2008.

#### Dan Clever,

Deputy Director, Acquisition and Grants Office, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.

[FR Doc. E8-15720 Filed 7-10-08; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 3510-PJ-P

#### APPENDIX III: FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS RECEIVED

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
The Univ. of ME		The Feelegy of finfish notherens in	
System acting through the Univ. of		The Ecology of finfish pathogens in a bivalve/finfish integrated poly-	
ME	Aquaculture	trophic aquaculture system	249,464
1012	riquadantaro	Identification of Grouper at the	210,101
Applied Food	Optimum Utilization of	Genus Level by a Discriminating	
Technologies, LLC	Harvested Resources	PCR-Based Diagnostic	126,000
		The Joint Modeling of Seasonal	
		Recreational Demand, Entry-Exit	
Arizona State	Optimum Utilization of	Decisions, and Fish Stocks over Time with an Application to Great	
University	Harvested Resources	Lakes Sportfishing	190,806
Offiversity	Tialvested resources	Studying the viability of a proposed	130,000
		industry funded federal Area 3	
		lobster fishery buyout program in	
Atlantic Offshore		order to determine the conservation	
Lobstermen's	Fisheries	benefit, socioeconomic impacts and	
Association	Socioeconomics	potential effort shifts.	36,900
	Conservation	Steps towards the first FDA/CVM - approved anesthetic for transport	
Auburn University	Engineering	and handling of marine fish	112,500
Aubuin Onliversity	Linginieening	Evaluating Demand for Bait in Gulf	112,500
		Charter Fishing Communities, and	
		the Potential for Aquaculture	
Auburn University	Aquaculture	Products	182,579
Board of Trustees,		Use of Alternative Feedstuffs and	
Southern Illinois		Innovative Feeding Strategies in	40= 004
University	Aquaculture	Marine Aquaculture	107,681
Board of Trustees,		Use of alternative lipid sources and	
Southern Illinois		finishing feeds to improve the	
University		nutritional value and safety of	400 540
Carbondale	Aquaculture	aquaculture products	183,548
		Florida Pompano (Trachinotus carolinus) Production as a Nutrient	
Brunswick		Source for Algae for Biodiesel in a	
Community College	Aquaculture	Recirculating Aquaculture System	198,180
	1	Determining the suitability of	
		artificially propogating three new	
		marine species for open ocean cage	
		culture: The Big Eyed Bream	
Buldley Foods II O	A gua a cultura	Monotaxus grandoculis, Blue-gray	050 000
Bukilau Foods LLC	Aquaculture	Snapper and Aprion virescens	250,000
Catch a Piece of	Optimum Utilization of	Catch a Piece of Maine: Lobster	
Maine	Harvested Resources	From our Trap to your Table	253,000
		Protected Species and Lobster	,
Commonwealth of	Optimum Utilization of	Fishing - A Comprehensive	
Massachusetts	Harvested Resources	Research and Outreach Program	249,426

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Coonamessett Farm Foundation, Inc	Conservation Engineering	Loggerhead Sea Turtle Satellite Tagging Study	157,754
Cornell Cooperative Extension of Suffolk County	Conservation Engineering Optimum Utilization of	An evaluation of a non-toxic antifoulant for mariculture gear  Making Fish Gelatin Commercially	36,174
Cornell University	Harvested Resources	Viable	90,057
Cornell University	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Human Responses to VHSV- related Fisheries Risks in the Great Lakes: Implications for Education, Management, and Policy	232,323
Dahl Natural	Conservation Engineering	Antigen Production by Gene Variation and Digestibility of Pulse Protein Concentrates Fed to Trout	245,000
Dantec Engineering, Inc.	Conservation Engineering	Development of a self-contained modular dryer for utilization of seafoods by-products and by-catch	249,787
Deep Blue Research LLC	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Multi-Trophic Offshore Co-Culture of Fish and Sea Cucumbers	64,840
Downeast Institute for Applied Marine Research &		Enhancing sea scallop stocks in eastern Maine through applied aquaculture research and	
Education	Aquaculture	technology transfer	154,167
Duke University	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Fishing Behavior, Fish Abundance and Climate Change	164,844
Eric James Schott	Conservation Engineering	Monitoring reo-virus in the blue crab Callinectes sapidus: molecular tools for the soft shell industry and fishery management	180,401
Feral Cat Control	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Implement techniques and educate to reduce the mortality of fish discarded or released and reduce or eliminate impacts of fishing activity on fish habitat	120,000
Florida Atlantic University	Conservation Engineering	Improving Technology for Production and Pre-Release Conditioning of Early Juvenile Redfish for Sportfish Enhancement	124,469
Florida Atlantic University	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Understanding the Effect of Age and Environment on PaV1 Prevalence and Impact on Spiny Lobster, Panulirus argus, Fisheries and Culture	104,559
Florida Atlantic University Foundation Inc	Conservation Engineering	Efficacy of electropositive metals for by-catch reduction in long line fisheries	283,888

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Characterization of Recreational- Discard Composition and Mortality for Gray Snapper and other Estuarine-Dependent Reef Fishes Within a Gulf Coast Estuary and Nearshore Florida waters.	234,672
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Is the calico scallop fishery in South Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico waters limited by reduced growth?	125,122
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Genetic Stock Structures of Four High-Priority Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic Marine Finfish Species	144,859
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Characterization of Recreational- Discard Composition and Mortality for Gray Snapper and other Estuarine-Dependent Reef Fishes Within a Gulf Coast Estuary and Nearshore Florida Waters	222,495
Florida Gulf Coast University	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Impacts of the red-tide organism (Volety)	225,000
Florida Keys Community College	Conservation Engineering	Evaluation of electropositive metals as shark bycatch reduction technology during commercial pelagic longline fishing in the straits of Florida	199,425
Florida Keys Community College	Conservation Engineering	Chemical extraction process for converting shark bycatch discards from commercial pelagic longlines into a into chemical shark repellent for application as bycatch reduction technology	112,000
Florida State University	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	"Fishing for a Solution: The Process and Impacts of Sustainable Seafood Certification"	209,621
George Mason University	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Estimating discard mortality of elasmobranchs in bottom trawl fisheries	252,507
Georgia Department of Natural Resources	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Georgia Blue Crab Cooperative Survey Enhanced economic and	148,382
GreatBay Aquaculture, LLC	Fisheries Socioeconomics	environmental production of Atlantic cod based on advancements in hatchery production and integrated multi- trophic aquaculture	242,390

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Gulf & South Atlantic		Assessment of Participatory Management in the Gulf and South	
Fisheries Foundation, Inc.	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Atlantic Fishery Management Arena	116,331
	Tidi Veeted Teeedisee	Assessment of the Impacts of the	110,001
Gulf and South		Oculina Bank Marine Protected Area and In-Depth Ethnographic	
Atlantic Fisheries	Fisheries	Profile of the Fort Pierce, Florida	400 704
Foundation, Inc.	Socioeconomics	Fishing Community  Development of a Viable Timed-	120,794
		Release Lobster Buoy to Minimize	
Gulf of Maine Lobster Foundation	Conservation Engineering	Vertical Lines and Entanglement Potential	156,337
		Understanding Opportunities and	
Gulf of Maine	Fisheries	Barriers to Increased Profitability for the Gulf of Maine Lobster	
Research Institute	Socioeconomics	Industry	157,273
		Trawl development to reduce the environmental impacts of demersal	
Gulf of Maine	Conservation	trawling and improve the socio- economic condition of the New	
Research Institute	Engineering	England Groundfish Fishery.	170,837
		Hawaii Fisheries Initiative, Phase	
Hawaii Institute for	Optimum Utilization of	II: Evaluation of Existing Data	
Public Affairs	Harvested Resources	Collection Systems Advancement of hatchery	180,000
		technologies for commercial-scale	
Hubbs - Sea World Research Institute,		production of California yellowtail (Seriola lalandi) and yellowfin tuna	
California	Aquaculture	(Thunnus albacares)	246,056
Interstate Shellfish			
Sanitation Conference	Fisheries Socioeconomics	ISSC Vibrio vulnificus illness reduction program	197,850
Oomerence	Godiocconomics	This project will employ the	137,000
		Community Supported Fishery model, as well as direct marketing	
		through local farmers markets to	
Just Lobster	Fisheries Socioeconomics	increase domestic consumption and utilization of Maine lobster.	120,000
			.20,000
Kake Non-Profit Fisheries Corporation	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Rocky Pass Geoduck "Grow-Out" Research Project	267,225
- Islandia Golpoladoli	1 12.1 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 2	Operational and economic	_0.,0
		efficiencies of surface cage technologies: The key to	
Kona Blue Water		profitability in America's open	
Farms, LLC	Aquaculture	ocean fish farming industry	247,433

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
		Utilization of Economic Discards:	
Louisiana State		Developing Functional Protein and Microencapsulated Astaxanthin	
University Agricultural	Fisheries	Powder from Crawfish and Shrimp	
Center	Socioeconomics	Processing Byproducts	175,546
Maina Danautmant of	Concentation	Determination of gear densities and	
Maine Department of Marine Resources	Conservation Engineering	endline risk mitigation strategies in Maine coastal waters	88,825
		A proposal to conduct collaborative	
		research studies on two of Maine's	
		'Species of Concern' in the near- shore Gulf of Maine: Cusk (Brosme	
Maine Department of	Optimum Utilization of	brosme) and Atlantic Wolffish	
Marine Resources	Harvested Resources	(Anarhichas lupus).	74,463
		Enhancement of Coastal Populations of Atlantic Sea Scallops	
		(P.magellanicus) Using Offshore	
		Stocks: Examination of Risks &	
Maine Department of Marine Resources	Fisheries	Development of Recommended	176 122
Manne Resources	Socioeconomics	Next Steps A self-sufficient aqua-hydronic farm	176,433
		utilizing solar heated water and all	
Mark Kenneth Hesse	Aquaculture	fish/plant food grown in house.	100,000
		The economic impacts of no-fishing zones on Stellwagen Bank National	
Massachusetts		Marine Sanctuary: an analysis of the	
Fishermen's	Fisheries	small-scale ground-fishing fleet and	
Partnership Inc.	Socioeconomics	their local coastal communities	249,763
Massachusetts Institute of		Acoustic Biomass Assessment in	
Technology	Aquaculture	Axis-Symmetric Cages	246,878
Massachusetts		Socioeconomic Impacts of Herring	
Institute of	Fisheries	Fishery Management in the	
Technology	Socioeconomics	Northeast	237,428
Michigan State	Fisheries	Halibut Allocation: Community	470.004
University	Socioeconomics	Impacts in Southeast Alaska The use of reverse genetic approach	173,801
		to study pathogenic mechanisms of	
Michigan State	Conservation	the Great Lakes strain of Viral	_
University	Engineering	Hemorrhagic Septicemia Virus	249,987
Michigan State	Fisheries	Fostering Sustainable Fisheries	
University	Socioeconomics	through Seafood Labeling	249,902

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Micro Technologies,		Development of a Technology Platform for the Assessment and Controlled Delivery of Therapeutic	405.045
Inc.	Aquaculture	Bacteriophage in Aquaculture	185,645
NC State University	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Producing Dry Forms of Surimi with High Functionality	247,781
National Fisheries Institute	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Collection of sex ratio data for summer flounder landings: commercial and recreational	212,252
New England Aquarium Corporation	Right Whale Gear Entanglement	A Forensic Study of North American Right Whale Entanglements	166,983
Nova Southeastern University, Inc.	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources, Fisheries Socioeconomics	Assessment of Life-History Parameters for Two Bycatch Species in the U.S. Pelagic Longline Fishery: Escolar (L. flavobrunneum) and Pelagic Stingray (P. violacea)	261,555
·		Development of marine finfish hatchery technologies in support of marine aquaculture: biosecurity	
Oceanic Institute Old Dominion University Research Foundation	Aquaculture Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	and fingerling production efficiency.  Genetic Population Structure of Summer Flounder (P. dentatus) Along the US Atlantic Coast	225,000
Old Dominion University Research Foundation	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Pathogenic mycobacteria of striped bass and Atlantic menhaden: Ecology and transmission	213,304
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Improving monitoring methods for estimation of non-retaned salmonids encountered in Columbia river spring chinook fisheries	190,401
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Improving monitoring methods for estimation of non-retaned salmonids encountered in summer and fall Columbia River commercial fisheries	118,648
Oregon State University	Conservation Engineering	Fieldable early detection method for Vibrio tubiashii toxin in marine hatcheries	187,500
Pacific Islands Fisheries Group	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Hawaii Oio Tagging Project to track movement and growth of bonefish around the Island of Oahu, Hawaii.  Harvest Management Tools to	84,180
Pacific Shellfish Institute	Aquaculture	Control the Levels of Vibrio parahaemolyticus in Oysters and Other Bivalve Shellfish	245,133

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Pacific Shellfish		Biosecure domestication of native	
Institute	Aquaculture	geoduck clams	210,267
Pacific Shellfish Institute	Aquaculture	Microbial Ecology of Marine Bivalve Hatcheries: Detection and Control of Vibrio tubiashii	249,217
Penobscot East Resource Center	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Sentinel groundfish fishery to ensure optimum utilization of harvested resources, and development of a spatially-explicit stock assessment model	267,683
Pfleger Institute of Environmental Research	Conservation Engineering	Development of a Southern California Deep-set Buoy Fishery for Swordfish Xiphias gladius	181,208
Purdue University	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Assessing Market Competitiveness of Yellow Perch	239,159
Quotamax, Inc	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Alaska Fish By-Products: Turning Alaska fish waste into meal and feeds for use in State Salmon Hatcheries.	158,800
Regents of the University of	Optimum Utilization of	Changes in Trophic Position and Contaminant Pathways for Great Lakes Fishes Shifting Diets Native to	
Michigan	Harvested Resources	Non-indigenous Species	194,543
Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey	Fisheries Socioeconomics	A Retail and Food Service Price Elasticity and Value Assessment of Branded Aquaculture Hard Clam (Mercenaria mercenaria)	144,801
Scott T. Cook c/o "Capt. Dennis, Inc."	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Assessment of Occurrence of the Spiny Lobster, Panulirus argus, in Offshore Waters of the Carolinas, USA	84,051
Smithsonian Institution	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	A novel application of biogeochemical fingerprinting to evaluate the nursery potential of Chesapeake Bay subestuaries to contribute to the blue crab spawning stock	229,544
South Carolina Department of Natural Resources	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Transcriptomic responses in shrimp species to viral challenges	229,390
South Carolina Department of Natural Resources,		Evaluation of Habitat Utilization, Recruitment Bottlenecks and Movement of Coastal Striped Bass Population(s) Using Cultured Animals and Genetic-Based	
Marine Center	Aquaculture	Identification Tools	215,939

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
0	Fisheries	Atlantic and Gulf Swordfish Market	404 704
State of Florida	Socioeconomics	Development Program	191,764
System Science Applications, Inc.	Aquaculture	Simulation software for Fish-Bivalve Integrated Aquaculture	199,860
Teresa M. Stafford	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Labor Supply of Commercial Fishermen: An Empirical Analysis	2,700
Texas A&M Research		Construction of a Genetic Map for Direct Use in Aquaculture, Stock Enhancement, and Resource Management of Red Drum	
Foundation	Aquaculture	(Sclaenops Ocellatus)	80,860
Texas A&M Research		Survival, Sispersal and Fishery- Contribution of hatchery-reared red drum (Sclaenops Ocellatus) released for stock enhancement in	
Foundation	Aquaculture	Texas waters	187,095
Texas A&M Research	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Development of Molecular Assays to Determine the Gender of Billfishes	130,617
Texas A&M University-Corpus Christi	Aquaculture	Impact of increased seawater temperature and CO2 on development of larval and juvenile southern flounder, Paralichthys Lethostiga	228,121
Texas A&M University-Corpus Christi	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Life threatening disease infections from fishing: Evaluating the mode of transmission for the pathogen vibro vulnificus, a human health hazard to fishermen	154,566
Texas A&M University-Corpus Christi	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Effect of anthropogenic noise on nutrition, physiology and migration of red drum, Sciaenops ocellatus	192,514
The Curators of the University of Missouri	Aquaculture	Development of a low-cost diet for juvenile haddock through amino acid digestibility determination and fish meal replacement.	250,000
The Ocean Foundation	Conservation Engineering	A Thunnus gene chip to measure gender, reproductive status and captive condition in Northern Bluefin Tunas.	136,297
The Regents of the University of Michigan	Aquaculture	Improving the Environmental Sustainability of Shrimp Aquaculture Systems through Microbial Resource Management and Life Cycle Assessment	259,833

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
		Restoring Long Island's winter flounder fishery: Influence of natural	
The Research	Optimum Utilization of	and anthropogenic factors on health,	
Foundation of SUNY	Harvested Resources	fitness and recruitment success.	255,867
		Assessment of nutraceutical properties and palatability of squid	
		processing byproduct hydrolysate	
The University of	Optimum Utilization of	for applications in human and pet	407.000
Rhode Island	Harvested Resources	food supplements  Epidemiology of the pathogenic	167,226
		dinoflagellate Amyloodinium	
The University of	Optimum Utilization of	ocellatum: Life cycle analysis and	
Southern Mississippi	Harvested Resources	identification of critical control points.	241,852
The University of	A	Development of an Atlantic croaker	240 527
Texas at Austin	Aquaculture	baitfish aquaculture industry  Connectivity between Offshore and	248,537
		Inshore Lobster Populations in	
Trustees of Boston	Optimum Utilization of	Southern New England: Genetics	
University	Harvested Resources	and Morphology	243,493
		Identifying fish stocking practices to	
Trustees of	Optimum Utilization of	reduce mercury accumulation in	
Dartmouth College Univ. of Maine	Harvested Resources	stream fish	153,863
System Acting			
Through the Univ. of		Sea Vegetables in Integrated	
Maine	Aquaculture	Polytrophic Aquaculture	249,801
University of Alaska	Fisheries	Implications of High Energy Costs	
Anchorage	Socioeconomics	for Alaska's Fishing Industry	249,803
		The Business of Fish Textbook: A	
University of Alaska	Fisheries	Financial Management Guide for the	
Fairbanks	Socioeconomics	US Commercial Fishing Industry	123,601
University of Alaska			
Fairbanks	Aquaculture	King Crab Aquaculture in Alaska	173,854
		Development of rapid, sensitive multiplex real-time PCR (and RT-	
		PCR) assays for the detection and	
		quantitation of viruses and an	
Linius vaitus of Asians	Conservation	intracellular bacterium in penaeid	440.000
University of Arizona	Engineering	shrimp Biofouling Tunicates on Shellfish	112,932
		Aquaculture Gear as Potential	
University of		Vectors of Harmful Algal	
Connecticut	Aquaculture	Introductions	249,651

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
		Post-release survivorship for scalloped (Sphyrna lewini) and great (Sphyrna mokarran) hammerhead	
University of Florida	Conservation Engineering	sharks caught in commercial longline fisheries	194,400
University of Florida	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Extraction, Characterization and Utilization of Bioactive Proteins and Peptides from Shrimp Processing Byproducts	241,699
	Conservation	Evaluating rates of capture and relative hooking mortality of bycatch in the pelagic longline fishery in the Gulf of Mexico	
University of Florida  University of Georgia	Engineering  Conservation Engineering	Reducing bycatch in the shrimp industry: testing the capabilities of a newly certified turtle excluder device	167,446 44,590
	Fisheries	Reducing the Risks of Contaminated Seafood and Protecting Local Livelihoods in the Commercial Blue	
University of Georgia	Socioeconomics	Crab Fishery	36,687
	Conservation	An exploratory application of agent based modeling for policy evaluations in Hawaii's lonline	
University of Hawaii	Engineering	fishery The Development of a Probiotic	199,528
University of Maine	Aquaculture	Feed Supplement for the American Lobster (Homarus americanus)	247,547
		Establishment of an Atlantic cod breeding program for the US	
University of Maine	Aquaculture	aquaculture industry	246,738
University of Maine System Acting Through the Univ. of	Optimum Utilization of	Spatial Dynamics and Trophic Vectors Between Red Tides and Lobsters in the Gulf of Maine: A Risk	
Maine University of Maine	Harvested Resources	Analysis	247,845
System acting through the Univ. of Maine	Conservation Engineering	The Development of a Disease Survey and Health Management Model for Molluscan Bivalves	238,094
University of Maine System acting	Fightories	Employing Conjoint Analysis to Assess the Affects of Coastal Fisheries Culture on Tourism, Using	
through the Univ. of Maine	Fisheries Socioeconomics	the Lobster Culture in Rural Maine as a Model	154,237
University of Maine System acting through the Univ. of	Fisheries	Feasibility study of unified, generic marketing effort for the American	
Maine	Socioeconomics	lobster (Homarus americanus).	156,140

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
University of Maine		Davidaria a calculation	
System acting		Developing a value-added	
through the Univ. of	A successitions	biotechnology product from the	040.004
Maine	Aquaculture	American lobster catch.	243,694
University of Maine		An analysis of voluntary participation in the New England Fisheries	
System acting through the Univ. of	Fisheries	Management Council meetings and	
Maine	Socioeconomics	its impacts on policy development	98,136
University of	Cociocconomics	Aquaculture Priority: Assessing	30,130
Maryland Center for		Effects of Off-bottom Oyster	
Environmental		Aquaculture on Nutrient Cycling and	
Science	Aquaculture	Benthic Habitat Quality	246,465
University of		Improving conservation of New	
Massachusetts,	Optimum Utilization of	England whelks (Busycon and	
Dartmouth	Harvested Resources	Busycotypus)	220,381
University of			
Massachusetts,	Conservation	Post-release survivability of longline-	
Dartmouth	Engineering	caught large coastal sharks	362,294
		Developing Aquaculture Technology	
		for Reproduction, Larval Rearing,	
		Fingerling Production and Grow-out	
University of Miami-		of Goggle Eye (Selar	
Marine Affairs and		crumenophthalmus) a High-Value	
Policy	Aquaculture	Marine Baitfish	264,614
University of Miami-		Development of Hatchery	
Marine Affairs and	Aguagailting	Technology for Blackfin Tuna	204 547
Policy	Aquaculture	(Thunnus atlanticus)	294,517
		Dismissing Dogma: The Use of Satellite Tags to Examine the	
		Behavior of Spiny Dogfish (Squalus	
		acanthias) in Relation to Habitat	
		Use, Depth Preferences and	
University of New	Optimum Utilization of	Movement Patterns in the Northwest	
England	Harvested Resources	Atlantic	237,078
			,
		T . (B	
University of New	Conservation	Test of Rope Separator Trawl on	0.47.000
Hampshire	Engineering	Georges Bank	247,090
		Design and Test of a New Turtle	
University of New	Conservation	Exclusion Device for Scallop Trawls to Reduce Turtle and Finfish	
Hampshire	Engineering	Bycatch	224,919
патрыше	Linginiconning	Dyouton	224,313
University of New		A Submersible Raft for Mussel	
Hampshire	Aquaculture	Aquaculture	247,107
		Evaluation of the efficacy of using a	
		Discard Mortality Reduction Device,	
		The Hydrostatic Hinge, to enhance	
University of New	Conservation	discard survival in the Long-line and	
Hampshire	Engineering	Gill-net Fisheries	89,260

Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
	Submerged Culture of Steelhead	
Aquaculture		249,468
Aquaculture	Production and Grow Out of Sea Urchins for Aquaculture Development in the Gulf of Maine	236,503
Aquaculture	Intensive Cultivation of Red Porgy in the Southeastern US Using Alternative Protein Sources	149,165
Aquaculture, Fisheries Socioeconomics	Aquaculture Products and Capture Fishery Products in the U.S. Market	255,399
Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Use of the Edible Meat from American Lobsters (Homarus americanus) with Shell Disease	177,620
Fisheries	Market Development for the Southern Oyster Drill (S haemastoma): A Method to Enhance the Eastern Oyster (C virginica) Fishery in the Northern Gulf of	
Socioeconomics		220,925
Aquaculture	Development of Hatchery Procedures for Aquaculture of the Red Snapper (Lutjanus campechanus): Investigations on Larval Nutrition and Potential Alternative Diets	262,280
Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources, Fisheries Socioeconomics	Defining biologically-relevant boundaries for protecting grouper spawning aggregations in the US Virgin Islands and Pohnpei	249,948
Aquaculture	Threats to bivalve aquaculture and fisheries: the influence of emerging diseases and environmental change	243,115
	protection of newly-outplanted juveniles in geoduck aquaculture operations of Puget Sound: An	
Aquaculture		203,961
Aquaculture	Contemporary hatchery technology to address seed shortages in the mid-Atlantic	249,519
Aquaculture	Oyster aquaculture in shallow water ecosystems in the Chesapeake Bay: optimal carrying capacity guidelines for the industry and regulators	200,000
	Aquaculture  Aquaculture  Aquaculture, Fisheries Socioeconomics  Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources  Fisheries Socioeconomics  Aquaculture  Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources, Fisheries Socioeconomics  Aquaculture  Aquaculture  Aquaculture	Aquaculture  Aquaculture, Fisheries Socioeconomics  Aquaculture Products and Capture Fishery Products in the U.S. Market Use of the Edible Meat from American Lobsters (Homarus americanus) with Shell Disease  Market Development for the Southern Oyster Drill (S haemastoma): A Method to Enhance the Eastern Oyster (C virginica) Fishery in the Northern Gulf of Mexico  Development of Hatchery Procedures for Aquaculture of the Red Snapper (Lutjanus campechanus): Investigations on Larval Nutrition and Potential Alternative Diets  Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources, Fisheries Socioeconomics  Aquaculture  Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources, Fisheries Socioeconomics  Threats to bivalve aquaculture and fisheries: the influence of emerging diseases and environmental change Predator exclusion structures for protection of newly-outplanted juveniles in geoduck aquaculture operations of Puget Sound: An evaluation of influence on local ecosystem biodiversity  Contemporary hatchery technology to address seed shortages in the mid-Atlantic  Oyster aquaculture in shallow water ecosystems in the Chesapeake Bay: optimal carrying capacity guidelines

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Aquaculture	Epidemiological Studies on a Parasitic Ciliate of Blue Crabs, Callinectes sapidus, and Its Possible Role in Winter Mortalities	247,767
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Aquaculture, Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	The "100 Lobsters" Project: A Cooperative Demonstration Project on Epizootic Shell Disease in the American Lobster	248,759
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Optimization of molecular methods for detecting and monitoring pathogenic human norovirus in bivalve shellfish	228,288
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Aquaculture	Genetic relationships between hatchery and field performance: selecting for eyed larvae production in the eastern oyster, crassostrea virginica	147,159
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Seafood Demand: Will ecolabel marketing reward well-managed fisheries and encourage conservation?	249,196
Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Selective fishing in a lacustrine environment	197,875
Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Evaluate reef nets for selective harvest	235,068
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife	Aquaculture	A multilateral research program to investigate aquaculture-based stock rebuilding, using lingcod (Ophiodon elongatus) as a model species.	187,869
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	Columbia River Live Capture Commercial Fisheries	84,120
Western Fishboat Owners Association	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Wild Pacific Albacore: Marketing Project	161,450
Wild American Shrimp Inc.	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Wild American Shrimp Marketing Program	306,477
Wild American Shrimp Inc.	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources, Fisheries Socioeconomics	Improve maintain and market high quality wild caught domestic shrimp products with an objective of increasing value to both US and foreign markets.	326,700

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
Woods Hole		Development of an Integrated Economic and Ecological Framework	
Oceanographic	Fisheries	for Ecosystem-Based Management of	
Institution	Socioeconomics	Fisheries in New England	130,468

**Grand Total** 30,295,502

#### APPENDIX IV: FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING

Proposal #	Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Recipients Cost Share
09NWR09	Pacific Shellfish Institute	Harvest Management Tools to Control the Levels of Vibrio parahaemolyticus in Oysters and Other Bivalve Shellfish	245,133	52,665
09NWR07	Oregon State University	Fieldable early detection method for Vibrio tubiashii toxin in marine hatcheries	187,500	51,800
09SER035	University of the Virgin Islands	Defining biologically-relevant boundaries for protecting grouper spawning aggregations in the US Virgin Islands and Pohnpei	249,948	67,500
09SER001	Florida Atlantic University	Efficacy of electropositive metals for by-catch reduction in long line fisheries	283,888	32,000
09SWR003	Arizona Board of Regents, University of Arizona	Development of rapid, sensitive multiplex real-time PCR (and RT-PCR) assays for the detection and quantitation of viruses and an intracellular bacterium in penaeid shrimp	112,932	23,368
09SWR006	Pfleger Institute of Environmental Research	Development of a Southern California Deep-set Buoy Fishery for Swordfish Xiphias gladius	181,208	31,025
09PIR01	University of Hawaii	An exploratory application of agent based modeling for policy evaluations in Hawaii's Longline Fishery	199,528	22,448
09NWR10	Pacific Shellfish Institute	Biosecure domestication of native geoduck clams	210,267	51,000
09SER031	Florida Keys Community College	Chemical extraction process for converting shark bycatch discards from commercial pelagic longlnes into a into chemical shark repellent for application as bycatch reduction technology	112,000	12,773
09NER067	Smithsonian Institution	A novel application of bio-geochemical fingerprinting to evaluate the nursery potential of Chesapeake Bay subestuaries to contribute to the blue crab spawning stock	229,544	26,210
09SWR005	Hubbs-SeaWorld Research Institute	Advancement of hatchery technologies for commercial-scale production of California yellowtail (Seriola lalandi) and yellowfin tuna (Thunnus albacares)	246,056	140,214
09NER007	University of New Hampshire	Test of Rope Separator Trawl on Georges Bank	247,090	36,334
09NER061	Micro Technologies,	Development of a Technology Platform for the Assessment and Controlled Delivery of Therapeutic Bacteriophage in Aquaculture	185,646	21,153

Proposal #	Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Recipients Cost Share
09NER071	AZ Board of Regents, acting for Arizona State University	The Joint Modeling of Seasonal Recreational Demand, Entry-Exit Decisions, and Fish Stocks over Time with an Application to Great Lakes Sportfishing	190,806	45,126
09SER013	South Carolina Department of Natural Resources	Evaluation of Habitat Utilization, Recruitment Bottlenecks and Movement of Coastal Striped Bass Population(s) Using Cultured Animals and Genetic-Based Identification Tools	215,939	25,917
09SER016	University of North Carolina Wilmington	Practical Diet Development for Intensive Cultivation of Red Porgy in the Southeastern US Using Alternative Protein Sources	149,165	18,672
09NER048	Trustees of Boston University	Connectivity between Offshore and Inshore Lobster Populations in Southern New England: Genetics and Morphology	243,493	80,297
09SER036	Texas A&M Research Foundation	Development of Molecular Assays to Determine the Gender of Billfishes	130,617	15,961
09SER034	Gulf & South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation, Inc.	Assessment of the Impacts of the Oculina Bank Marine Protected Area and In-Depth Ethnographic Profile of the Fort Pierce, Florida Fishing Community	120,794	13,800
09NER030	University of Rhode Island	Assessment of nutraceutical properties and palatability of squid processing byproduct hydrolysate for applications in human and pet food supplements	167,226	32,107
09SER021	The University of Southern Mississippi	Development of Hatchery Procedures for Aquaculture of the Red Snapper (Lutjanus campechanus): Investigations on Larval Nutrition and Potential Alternative Diets	262,280	85,344
09SER028	University of Miami	Development of Hatchery Technology for Blackfin Tuna (Thunnus atlanticus)	294,517	67,150
09PIR03	Kona Blue Water Farms, LLC	Operational and economic efficiencies of surface cage technologies: The key to profitability in America's open ocean fish farming industry	247,433	116,750
09NER051	University of Massachusetts Dartmouth	Post-release survivability of longline- caught large coastal sharks	362,294	40,754
09NER011	University of Maine System acting through the Univ. of Maine	The Development of a Probiotic Feed Supplement for the American Lobster (Homarus americanus)	247,547	61,705
09NER005	University of Connecticut	Biofouling Tunicates on Shellfish Aquaculture Gear as Potential Vectors of Harmful Algal Introductions	249,651	74,055
09AKR003	University of Alaska Fairbanks	King Crab Aquaculture in Alaska	173,854	25,562

Proposal #	Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Recipients Cost Share
	University of	Threats to bivalve aquaculture and fisheries: The influence of emerging		
09NWR08	Washington	diseases and environmental change	243,115	70,799
09NER064	University of New Hampshire	Addressing Issues of Hatchery Production and Grow Out of Sea Urchins for Aquaculture Development in the Gulf of Maine	236,503	52,906
09NWR01	Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife	Improving monitoring methods for estimation of non-retained salmonids encountered in summer and fall Columbia River commercial fisheries	118,648	27,499
09NWR02	Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife	Improving monitoring methods for estimation of non-retained salmonids encountered in Columbia River Spring Chinook Fisheries	190,401	25,982
09NER004	University of Massachusetts Darmtouth	Improving conservation of New England whelks (Busycon and Busycotypus)	220,381	34,988
09NER008	Board of Trustees, Southern Illinois University	Use of alternative lipid sources and finishing feeds to improve the nutritional value and safety of aquaculture products	183,548	71,206
09NER006	University of New England	Dismissing Dogma: The Use of Satellite Tags to Examine the Behavior of Spiny Dogfish (Squalus acanthias) in Relation to Habitat Use, Depth Preferences and Movement Patterns in the Northwest Atlantic	237,078	26,400
09SER027	University Of Miami	Developing Aquaculture Technology for Reproduction, Larval Rearing, Fingerling Production and Grow-out of Goggle Eye (Selar crumenophthalmus) a High-Value Marine Baitfish	264,614	60,332
09NER031	Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution	Development of an Integrated Economic and Ecological Framework for Ecosystem-Based Management of Fisheries in New England	130,468	44,930
09NER044	University of Maine System acting through UMaine	Establishment of an Atlantic cod breeding program for the US aquaculture industry	246,738	88,194
09NER038	Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Epidemiological Studies on a Parasitic Ciliate of Blue Crabs, Callinectes sapidus, and Its Possible Role in Winter Mortalities	247,767	27,700

**Grand Total** 8,065,617 1,802,626

APPENDIX V: FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS NOT RECOMMENDED FOR FUNDING

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
The Univ. of ME System acting through the Univ. of ME	The Ecology of finfish pathogens in a bivalve/finfish integrated poly-trophic aquaculture system	249,464	95,476
Applied Food Technologies, LLC	Identification of Grouper at the Genus Level by a Discriminating PCR-Based Diagnostic	126,000	30,000
Atlantic Offshore Lobstermen's Association	Studying the viability of a proposed industry funded federal Area 3 lobster fishery buyout program in order to determine the conservation benefit, socioeconomic impacts and potential effort shifts.	36,900	12,730
Auburn University	Steps towards the first FDA/CVM- approved anesthetic for transport and handling of marine fish	112,500	18,900
Board of Trustees, Southern Illinois University	Use of Alternative Feedstuffs and Innovative Feeding Strategies in Marine Aquaculture	107,681	43,250
Brunswick Community College	Florida Pompano (Trachinotus carolinus) Production as a Nutrient Source for Algae for Biodiesel in a Recirculating Aquaculture System	198,180	94,194
Bukilau Foods LLC	Determining the suitability of artificially propagating three new marine species for open ocean cage culture: The Big Eyed Bream Monotaxus grandoculis, Blue-gray Snapper and Aprion virescens.	250,000	62,500
Catch a Piece of Maine	Catch a Piece of Maine: Lobster From our Trap to your Table	253,000	179,000
Coonamessett Farm Foundation, Inc	Loggerhead Sea Turtle Satellite Tagging Study	157,754	27,228
Cornell Cooperative Extension of Suffolk County	An evaluation of a non-toxic antifoulant for mariculture gear	36,174	25,774
Dantec Engineering, Inc.	Development of a self-contained modular dryer for utilization of sea-foods by-products and by-catch	249,787	82,697

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
Deep Blue Research LLC	Multi-Trophic Offshore Co-Culture of Fish and Sea Cucumbers	64,840	11,424
Downeast Institute for Applied Marine Research & Education	Enhancing sea scallop stocks in eastern Maine through applied aquaculture research and technology transfer	154,167	17,130
Duke University	Fishing Behavior, Fish Abundance and Climate Change	164,844	18,500
Eric James Schott	Monitoring reo-virus in the blue crab Callinectes sapidus: molecular tools for the soft shell industry and fishery management	180,401	30,000
Florida Atlantic University	Improving Technology for Production and Pre-Release Conditioning of Early Juvenile Redfish for Sportfish Enhancement	124,469	14,487
Tiona / Martio Oniversity	Understanding the Effect of Age and Environment on PaV1 Prevalence and Impact on Spiny Lobster, Panulirus argus,	124,400	14,407
Florida Atlantic University	Fisheries and Culture Is the calico scallop fishery in South	104,559	10,500
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico waters limited by reduced growth?	125,122	31,988
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Genetic Stock Structures of Four High- Priority Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic Marine Finfish Species	144,859	17,878
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission	Characterization of Recreational-Discard Composition and Mortality for Gray Snapper and other Estuarine-Dependent Reef Fishes Within a Gulf Coast Estuary and Nearshore Florida Waters	222,495	27,356
Florida Gulf Coast University	Impacts of the red-tide organism (Volety)	225,000	25,460
Florida Keys Community College	Evaluation of electropositive metals as shark bycatch reduction technology during commercial pelagic longline fishing in the straits of Florida	199,425	25,000
Florida State University	"Fishing for a Solution: The Process and Impacts of Sustainable Seafood Certification"	209,621	23,297
George Mason University	Estimating discard mortality of elasmobranchs in bottom trawl fisheries	252,507	28,061
Georgia Department of Natural Resources	Georgia Blue Crab Cooperative Survey	148,382	32,049

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
	Enhanced economic and environmental production of Atlantic cod based on advancements in hatchery production and		
GreatBay Aquaculture, LLC	integrated multi-trophic aquaculture	242,390	53,240
Gulf & South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation, Inc.	Assessment of Participatory Management in the Gulf and South Atlantic Fishery Management Arena	116,331	14,025
Gulf of Maine Lobster Foundation	Development of a Viable Timed-Release Lobster Buoy to Minimize Vertical Lines and Entanglement Potential	156,338	0
Gulf of Maine Research	Understanding Opportunities and Barriers to Increased Profitability for the Gulf of		
Institute  Gulf of Maine Research	Maine Lobster Industry  Trawl development to reduce the environmental impacts of demersal trawling and improve the socio-economic condition of the New England Groundfish	157,273	20,497
Institute	Fishery.	170,837	101,606
Hawaii Institute for Public Affairs	Hawaii Fisheries Initiative, Phase II: Evaluation of Existing Data Collection Systems	180,000	20,760
Interstate Shellfish Sanitation Conference	ISSC Vibrio vulnificus illness reduction program	197,850	49,500
Just Lobster	This project will employ the Community Supported Fishery model, as well as direct marketing through local farmers markets to increase domestic consumption and utilization of Maine lobster	120,000	44,400
Kake Non-Profit Fisheries Corporation	Rocky Pass Geoduck "Grow-Out" Research Project	267,225	48,000
Louisiana State University	Utilization of Economic Discards: Developing Functional Protein and Microencapsulated Astaxanthin Powder from Crawfish and Shrimp Processing		
Agricultural Center	Byproducts  Determination of gear densities and	175,546	45,694
Maine Department of Marine Resources	endline risk mitigation strategies in Maine coastal waters	88,825	14,063
Maine Department of Marine Resources	A proposal to conduct collaborative research studies on two of Maine's 'Species of Concern' in the near-shore Gulf of Maine: Cusk (Brosme brosme) and Atlantic Wolffish (Anarhichas Iupus).	74,463	32,650

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
Maine Department of Marine Resources	Enhancement of Coastal Populations of Atlantic Sea Scallops (P.magellanicus) Using Offshore Stocks: Examination of Risks & Development of Recommended Next Steps	176,433	35,438
Massachusetts Fishermen's Partnership Inc.	The economic impacts of "no-fishing" zones on Stellwagen Bank National Marine Sanctuary: an analysis of the small-scale ground-fishing fleet and their local coastal communities	249,763	32,020
Michigan State University	Halibut Allocation: Community Impacts in Southeast Alaska	173,801	62,564
Michigan State University	The use of reverse genetic approach to study pathogenic mechanisms of the Great Lakes strain of Viral Hemorrhagic Septicemia Virus	249,987	72,173
Michigan State University	Fostering Sustainable Fisheries through Seafood Labeling	249,902	191,181
Nova Southeastern University, Inc.	Assessment of Life-History Parameters for Two Bycatch Species in the U.S. Pelagic Longline Fishery: Escolar (Lepidocybium flavobrunneum) and Pelagic Stingray (Pteroplatytrygon violacea)	261,555	63,280
Oceanic Institute	Development of marine finfish hatchery technologies in support of marine aquaculture: biosecurity and fingerling production efficiency.	225,000	25,000
Old Dominion University Research Foundation	Genetic Population Structure of Summer Flounder (Paralichthys dentatus) Along the US Atlantic Coast  Pathogenic mycobacteria of striped bass	200,222	27,484
Old Dominion University Research Foundation	and Atlantic menhaden: Ecology and transmission	213,304	30,989
Pacific Islands Fisheries Group	Hawaii Oio Tagging Project to track movement and growth of bonefish around the Island of Oahu, Hawaii.	84,180	40,000
Pacific Shellfish Institute	Microbial Ecology of Marine Bivalve Hatcheries: Detection and Control of Vibrio tubiashii	249,217	45,259
Penobscot East Resource Center	Sentinel groundfish fishery to ensure optimum utilization of harvested resources, and development of a spatially-explicit stock assessment model	267,683	109,249
Purdue University	Assessing Market Competitiveness of Yellow Perch	239,159	37,555

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
Quotamax, Inc	Alaska Fish By-Products: Turning Alaska fish waste into meal and feeds for use in State Salmon Hatcheries.	158,800	17,750
Regents of the University of Michigan	Changes in Trophic Position and Contaminant Pathways for Great Lakes Fishes Shifting Diets Native to Non- indigenous Species	194,543	55,344
Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey	A Retail and Food Service Price Elasticity and Value Assessment of Branded Aquaculture Hard Clam (Mercenaria mercenaria)	144,801	52,190
Scott T. Cook c/o "Capt. Dennis, Inc."	Assessment of Occurrence of the Spiny Lobster, Panulirus argus, in Offshore Waters of the Carolinas, USA	84,051	9,339
South Carolina Department of Natural Resources	Transcriptomic responses in shrimp species to viral challenges	229,390	40,952
State of Florida	Atlantic and Gulf Swordfish Market Development Program	191,764	32,689
System Science Applications, Inc.	Simulation software for Fish-Bivalve Integrated Aquaculture	199,860	76,480
Teresa M. Stafford	Labor Supply of Commercial Fishermen: An Empirical Analysis	2,700	300
Texas A&M Research Foundation	Construction of a Genetic Map for Direct Use in Aquaculture, Stock Enhancement, and Resource Management of Red Drum (Sclaenops Ocellatus)	80,860	24,750
Texas A&M Research Foundation	Survival, dispersal and fishery-contribution of hatchery-reared red drum (sciaenops ocellatus) released for stock enhancement in texas waters	187,095	144,935
Texas A&M University- Corpus Christi	Impact of increased seawater temperature and CO2 on development of larval and juvenile southern flounder, paralichthys lethostigma	228,121	34,017
Texas A&M University- Corpus Christi	Life-threatening disease infections from fishing: evaluating the mode of transmission for the pathogen vibrio vulnificus, a human health hazard to fishermen	154,566	21,229
Texas A&M University- Corpus Christi	Effect of anthropogenic noise on nutrition, physiology and migration of red drum, Sciaenops ocellatus	192,514	81,584

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
The Ocean Foundation	A Thunnus gene chip to measure gender, reproductive status and captive condition in Northern Bluefin Tunas.	136,297	61,100
The Regents of the University of Michigan	Improving the Environmental Sustainability of Shrimp Aquaculture Systems through Microbial Resource Management and Life Cycle Assessment	259,833	97,438
The Research Foundation of	Restoring Long Island's winter flounder fishery: Influence of natural and anthropogenic factors on health, fitness		
The University of Southern	and recruitment success.  Epidemiology of the pathogenic dinoflagellate Amyloodinium ocellatum: Life cycle analysis and identification of	255,868	57,938
Mississippi The University of Texas at Austin	critical control points.  Development of an Atlantic croaker baitfish aquaculture industry	241,852 248,537	75,089
Trustees of Dartmouth College	Identifying fish stocking practices to reduce mercury accumulation in stream fish	153,863	42,959
Univ. of Maine System Acting Through the Univ. of Maine	Sea Vegetables in Integrated Polytrophic Aquaculture	249,801	94,772
University of Alaska Anchorage	Implications of High Energy Costs for Alaska's Fishing Industry	249,803	27,756
University of Alaska Fairbanks	The Business of Fish Textbook: A Financial Management Guide for the US Commercial Fishing Industry	123,601	13,757
University of Florida	Post-release survivorship for scalloped (Sphyrna lewini) and great (Sphyrna mokarran) hammerhead sharks caught in commercial longline fisheries	194,400	21,600
University of Florida	Extraction, Characterization and Utilization of Bioactive Proteins and Peptides from Shrimp Processing Byproducts	241,699	55,564
University of Florida	Evaluating rates of capture and relative hooking mortality of bycatch in the pelagic longline fishery in the Gulf of Mexico  Reducing bycatch in the shrimp industry:	167,446	18,606
University of Georgia	testing the capabilities of a newly certified turtle excluder device  Reducing the Risks of Contaminated	44,590	6,421
University of Georgia	Seafood and Protecting Local Livelihoods in the Commercial Blue Crab Fishery	36,687	5,283

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
University of Maine System Acting Through the Univ. of	Spatial Dynamics and Trophic Vectors Between Red Tides and Lobsters in the		
Maine	Gulf of Maine: A Risk Analysis	247,845	151,258
University of Maine System	The Development of a Disease Survey		
acting through the Univ. of	and Health Management Model for	000 004	04.405
Maine	Molluscan Bivalves Employing Conjoint Analysis to Assess the	238,094	84,135
University of Maine System	Affects of Coastal Fisheries Culture on		
acting through the Univ. of	Tourism, Using the Lobster Culture in		
Maine	Rural Maine as a Model	154,237	29,613
University of Maine System	Feasibility study of unified, generic		
acting through the Univ. of Maine	marketing effort for the American lobster (Homarus americanus).	156 140	52 220
University of Maine System	(Homarus americanus).	156,140	52,329
acting through the Univ. of	Developing a value-added biotechnology		
Maine	product from the American lobster catch.	243,694	85,551
	An analysis of voluntary participation in the		
University of Maine System	New England Fisheries Management		
acting through the Univ. of Maine	Council meetings and its impacts on policy development	98,136	18,842
ivialite	Aquaculture Priority: Assessing Effects of	90,130	10,042
University of Maryland Center	Off-bottom Oyster Aquaculture on Nutrient		
for Environmental Science	Cycling and Benthic Habitat Quality	246,465	92,665
	Design and Test of a New Turtle Exclusion		
University of New Hempehire	Device for Scallop Trawls to Reduce Turtle	224.040	25.007
University of New Hampshire	and Finfish Bycatch	224,919	35,987
University of New Hampshire	A Submersible Raft for Mussel Aquaculture	247,107	37,420
Oniversity of New Hampshire	Evaluation of the efficacy of using a	247,107	37,420
	Discard Mortality Reduction Device, The		
	Hydrostatic Hinge, to enhance discard		
	survival in the Long-line and Gill-net	00.000	40.000
University of New Hampshire	Fisheries	89,260	10,800
University of New Hempehire	Submargad Cultura of Staalhaad Traut	240.460	20 046
University of New Hampshire	Submerged Culture of Steelhead Trout Interaction Between Imported Aquaculture	249,468	38,046
	Products and Capture Fishery Products in		
University of Rhode Island	the U.S. Market	255,399	60,188
	Use of the Edible Meat from American		
Habitanita of Divide Jalani	Lobsters (Homarus americanus) with Shell	477.000	04.400
University of Rhode Island	Disease  Market Development for the Southern	177,620	34,103
	Oyster Drill (Stramonita haemastoma): A		
	Method to Enhance the Eastern Oyster		
	(Crassostrea virginica) Fishery in the		
University of South Alabama	Northern Gulf of Mexico	220,925	28,551

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
	Predator exclusion structures for protection of newly-outplanted juveniles in geoduck aquaculture operations of Puget Sound: An evaluation of influence on local		
University of Washington	ecosystem biodiversity.	203,961	25,000
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Contemporary hatchery technology to address seed shortages in the mid-Atlantic.	249,519	113,991
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Oyster aquaculture in shallow water ecosystems in the Chesapeake Bay: optimal carrying capacity guidelines for the industry and regulators.	200,000	25,632
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	The "100 Lobsters" Project: A Cooperative Demonstration Project on Epizootic Shell Disease in the American Lobster	248,759	30,439
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Optimization of molecular methods for detecting and monitoring pathogenic human norovirus in bivalve shellfish	228,288	51,000
Virginia Institute of Marine Science	Genetic relationships between hatchery and field performance: selecting for eyed larvae production in the eastern oyster, crassostrea virginica	147,159	40,671
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	Seafood Demand: Will ecolabel marketing		44,719
Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife	Selective fishing in a lacustrine environment	197,875	31,638
Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife	Evaluate reef nets for selective harvest	235,068	57,868
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife	A multilateral research program to investigate aquaculture-based stock rebuilding, using lingcod (Ophiodon elongatus) as a model species	187,869	35,000
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife	Columbia River Live Capture Commercial Fisheries	84,120	25,053
Western Fishboat Owners Association	Wild Pacific Albacore: Marketing Project	161,450	40,500
Wild American Shrimp Inc.	Wild American Shrimp Marketing Program	306,477	35,733

Applicant Name	Project Title	Federal Share	Matching Funds
Wild American Shrimp Inc.	Improve maintain and market high quality wild caught domestic shrimp products with an objective of increasing value to both US and foreign markets.	326,700	37,660

Grand Total 19,414,506 4,795,024

#### APPENDIX VI: FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS DISQUALIFIED

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
		Evaluating Demand for Bait in Gulf Charter Fishing Communities, and	
Auburn University	Aquaculture, Fisheries Socioeconomics	the Potential for Aquaculture Products	182,579
7 aban Ginversity	Concoconomico	Protected Species and Lobster	102,070
Commonwealth of Massachusetts	Conservation Engineering	Fishing - A Comprehensive Research and Outreach Program	249,425
	Optimum Utilization of	Making Fish Gelatin Commercially	_ : = ; : _ = =
Cornell University	Harvested Resources	Viable	90,057
		Human Responses to VHSV-related	
	Optimum Utilization of	Fisheries Risks in the Great Lakes: Implications for Education,	
Cornell University	Harvested Resources	Management, and Policy	232,323
	Optimum Utilization of	Antigen Production by Gene Variation and Digestibility of Pulse	
Dahl Natural	Harvested Resources	Protein Concentrates Fed to Trout	245,000
		Implement techniques and educate	
	Optimum Utilization of	to reduce the mortality of fish	
	Harvested Resources, Conservation	discarded or released and reduce or eliminate impacts of fishing activity	
Feral Cat Control	Engineering	on fish habitat.	120,000
		Characterization of Recreational-	
		Discard Composition and Mortality	
Florida Fish and		for Gray Snapper and other Estuarine-Dependent Reef Fishes	
Wildlife Conservation	Optimum Utilization of	Within a Gulf Coast Estuary and	
Commission	Harvested Resources	Nearshore Florida waters.	234,672
		A self-sufficient aqua-hydronic farm	
Mark Kenneth Hesse	Aquaculture	utilizing solar heated water and all fish/plant food grown in house.	100,000
Massachusetts	/ iquabulture	non plant 1000 grown in 110036.	100,000
Institute of		Acoustic Biomass Assessment in	
Technology	Aquaculture	Axis-Symmetric Cages	246,878
Massachusetts	Figharias	Socioeconomic Impacts of Herring	
Institute of Technology	Fisheries Socioeconomics	Fishery Management in the Northeast	237,428
	Optimum Utilization of	Producing Dry Forms of Surimi with	
NC State University	Harvested Resources	High Functionality	247,781
Notional Fisheries	Ontingues Hallington of	Collection of sex ratio data for	
National Fisheries Institute	Optimum Utilization of Harvested Resources	summer flounder landings: commercial and recreational	212,252
New England	rial vostou Nesouroes	Commordia and redicational	212,202
Aquarium	Right Whale Gear	A Forensic Study of North American	
Corporation	Entanglement	Right Whale Entanglements	166,983

### APPENDIX VI (CONTINUED): FY 2009 S-K APPLICATIONS DISQUALIFIED

Applicant Name	Priority	Project Title	Federal Share
The Curators of the		Development of a low-cost diet for juvenile haddock through amino acid digestibility determination and fish	
University of Missouri	Aquaculture	meal replacement.	250,000

**Grand Total** 2,815,379